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We are committed to creating value for stakeholders
by providing comprehensive and innovative solutions
that achieve high quality results.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR
RERERRE

T W

Won two bronze awards in the 7th Best Property Safety Provision of property management services to the
Management Award. Independent Commission Against Corruption Building in
North Point.

T R ) 2 T A 8 ST (R4 2 o
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The 7* Best Property Safety Management Award Forum and Award Presentation Ct
15-1-2020

BILARBRIBANER{MEERRE -

Awarded of three batches of 3-year contracts from Link Property Management Services
Limited for the provision of fitter services term maintenance contracts for the shopping
centres, carparks, markets and cooked-food stalls in various districts.

EERERMEEEARARZAUNZELROBYT L  FHE AHRAR
BESLY  MRHEERBEHRE -

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT



SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR
ZNG SN )
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Won 132 security, property and training awards from various
regions, of which the New Territories North topped others
as it alone attained 114 awards.

REBRE MERZIERBHEE132@482E - K
FEF AL RES 114 EEE  AREZE

Fu_Shin Estate Management Office

Awarded contract of the operation and management of
vehicle park and provision of vehicle entry registration
service in Western Wholesale Food Market under the
Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department.

AEARBAEEEETORARAUBEMENRZES
BEMERSONANRRHERAREESLRE

Provision of security services for Caritas Medical Centre and
Yan Chai Hospital, Kowloon West cluster, Hospital Authority.

REREERBPEERMCEER NEABERERE

Provision of property
management and cleaning
services for a multi-block
industrial building — Kwun
Tong Industrial Centre.

RERATEKE — BUE
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KON 7 7y -
Awarded of an air-conditioning system replacement and
addition and alteration works contract for English Schools

Foundation’s Quarry Bay School.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR
NGRS I

e NOV+—A

Awarded of an addition and alteration works contract at
5-19 Jardine's Bazaar located at the heart of Causeway Bay.

Awarded of a renovation works contract for Victoria Centre

in Tin Hau.
AEEA R REEZ OB E — B A S-195R A INE BEEMRREHEZNR OB IESL -
FRETEAH -
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Won the Hong Kong Institute of Housing (HKIH) Elite
Awards — Best Crisis Management Team Merit Award.

RETEFERESERIAE [RESKEEBK

Awarded of a security services contract of Lung Mun Oasis in
—BEE]-

Tuen Mun.
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SUBSEQUENT SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER 2020
2020 FF & K= A

2021

Provision of property management services to Cheung On
Estate, the second largest public housing estate in Tsing Yi.

RERE-ARARHAER — REPIRHEMEE LR

Awarded a contract of the bus cleaning services at The

Kowloon Motor Bus Co. (1933) Ltd. termini, covering over
130 locations.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

Chairman
Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ha
+ [

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Synergis Holdings
Limited (the "Company” or “Synergis”), | hereby present to you the annual
performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Year”).

Hong Kong economy experienced unprecedented challenges due to the
pandemic of novel coronavirus since January 2020. Affected by the local
economic downturn and unstable environment, the Group recorded a total
revenue of approximately HK$1,127.7 million for the Reporting Year which
was approximately HK$441.6 million below the last year. Although some
business lines have been affected to varying degree and saw contrary financial
performance in the Reporting Year, our property and facility management
("PFM") business and ancillary business (the “Ancillary Business”) (collectively,
the "PFM Business”) remained stable as a whole. The segment saw a moderate
increase in revenue and gross profit, which helped offset part of the loss from
our interiors and special projects business (the “ISP Business”). Also, benefited
from the government subsidies of approximately HK$86.0 million under
HKSAR Government's Employment Support Scheme (‘ESS”) mainly from the
PFM Business, the Group recorded a profit attributable to Shareholders of
approximately HK$14.2 million for the Reporting Year, which was around one-
third of that last year at approximately HK$37.6 million.
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The PFM business maintained a stable and improved performance from
past years even though not counting in the government subsidies from
ESS. The financial results in terms of operating profit and net profit hit the
record high this year from 2014 as we achieved satisfactory result on
business development and maintained high contract retention rate as in
the past. Substantial improvement on profit contribution showed in latter
half of 2020 after the team continuously put remitting efforts as compared
with first half 2020. As of the date of this report, we manage over 90,000
residential units and 8.7 million square metres of residential, commercial
and industrial facilities of over 360 PFM projects in Hong Kong and China.
We remain as one of the leading independent PFM service providers in
Hong Kong due to our ability to offer one-stop-shop services to customers
with our strength to proactively making improvement in our services in
PFM. Under the economic downturn, our PFM Business which is more
stable in business nature topped ISP Business, the Group’s another key
business arm, and contributed about 65% of the Group's revenue during
the Reporting Year. The segment managed to explore new business
opportunities during that difficult time and acquired about 50 new key
contracts ranging from one-year to five-year project period with a total
contract sum of over HK$380 million which was the highest from the past
in terms of both number of contracts awarded and contract sums. The top
three remarkable contracts we got including three batches of Fitter
Services Term Maintenance Contracts with Link Property Management
Services Limited ('Link”) to provide technical support services to its
shopping centers and car parks, the management and cleaning services
contract for 4-block industrial buildings — Kwun Tong Industrial Centre
and the car park contract of Western Wholesale Food Market under the
Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department.

Subsequent to the end of the Reporting Year, PFM Business was awarded a
few significant new contracts with a total contract sum of over HK$100
million including a 30-month contract of bus cleaning services at The
Kowloon Motor Bus Co. (1933) Ltd. termini, covering over 130 locations and
a T-year contract of provision of property management services to Cheung

On Estate, the second largest public housing estate in Tsing Yi with a total
of 10 blocks of 7,338 residential units.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR WE

BME e MR BIRBLFEFTEIR BT AL - W3
REMEBEBHRATE  BEAFHRESR
BRIRE - WEERFRAFIME @ AFED
TS %4881 T B 2014 F AR EFT =K - A1
BRMEEBERRESARENER  WE—
MUERFSEHNREER - LBEBKZE AT
1%+ 2020F T HF A= F B RAE 2020 F L4
KIERE - HEAREBH  RMOEZBRS
Blascof@ERREERBEEEREBA
90,000 &1 =& B {7 5 8,700,000 F 77 KK fE=E
RERTERE ABRRMAERFREHE IR
BRIEEVBE DA RIEM ¥ KR E B ARS 5 iR
BAGERES  REBKRASEBBENEL
MERZHEEERBHERN . — EEBERR
T MERSEEEEBSARNEBEEE AIZ
E o FIARBERASES —EZLEBREAE
HIRSHRBEEBEARL  TRBREFES
RNEE TR 65% UGS ° 2D BIEREFX
BRIV EE  TRHO0D AR —F2
hAFMNETEHEEAY  BENSTEHBBBE
380,000,0007C * MERELHEE REHNESTEM
T HABLURES c BMESH=KEEE
BHBE-HERVMEETEBRAG([ER])
REREZTHRESL  UWAEEDFLE
FHEIGRERM SRR 4R TEXNE — 8
BEIXFRLHERREZRBEHUAR

RELEARIRLUETENEESEL -

RRMEFELERE  MERRBEREFER
BNDEARTAN BEHNSERBBREE
100,000,0007C * B4 A B3 0E A LR =
(—hA=Z)ERARAUEBE B ZREAL
BEBBI0EGE  UERAT I FHRTE
MEETEREAY  RELPRBEXFE_AAH
E - AHEEF 1087338 EFEEELL »

—ETFFHR/  ARRERARALTE




008

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Another stream of income was contributed by ISP Business, which had
faced more challenges last year under the economic downturn. The local
economy especially retail and hotel operations severely affected by the
social distancing measures and travel restrictions since January 2020 and
ultimately ISP’s performance on new contracts hit. During the Reporting
Year, ISP contributed about one-third of the total revenue of the Group and
saw a total revenue of approximately HK$374.8 million compared to that of
approximately HK$838.1 million , which was about half less than last year.
The segment saw an operating loss of approximately HK$83.6 million, a big
twist comparing to an operating profit of approximately HK$10.0 million in
the last year. The significant decrease in revenue and gross profit was
mainly due to the completion of a few key contracts and several loss-
making projects during the Reporting Year. As a result of re-structuring the
management team from mid of 2020 to adopt more appropriate business
strategy, the team has awarded several new key contracts in the latter half
of 2020 including English School Foundation school addition and alteration
("A&A") works, Victoria Centre renovation works and 5-19 Jardine's Bazaar
A&A works.

Reference was made to the interim report of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2020, a winding up order has been made against
Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited ("Hsin Chong") by the Supreme Court
of Bermuda in its place of incorporation in Bermuda in January 2020 and
the Company has filed the proof of debts with the joint and several
provisional liquidators of Hsin Chong in Bermuda in latter half of 2020. Even
so, as an unsecured creditor, the recoverability of debts seems to be
remote. On 2 November 2020, the Company applied to the High Court for
the dismissal of the petition against Hsin Chong, such petition was
delivered to the Court of First Instance of High Court on 18 January 2019.
The dismissal of the petition did not have any financial impact on the
Company.

Reference was made to the announcement dated 27 January 2021 in
respect of the Company entered into the settlement agreement on 25
January 2021 with QBE Hongkong and Shanghai Insurance Limited (“QBE")
after the conduction of the mediation regarding the writ of summons
received on 23 January 2020 by QBE against the Company for a claim of
approximately HK$34.2 million under joint employee compensation policy
with Hsin Chong. Under the Settlement Agreement, it is agreed, among
other things, the Company shall pay a sum of HK$19.5 million to QBE
(inclusive of all interests, costs, disbursements, costs of mediation of QBE)
in full and final settlement of QOBE's claims and all the matters and disputes.
The Company has recognized further loss of approximately HK$10.2 million
for the Reporting Year. The settlement has no material impact on the
Group's liquidity position and was for the best interest for the Company.
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On the other hand, on 14 January 2021, Falcon Insurance Company (Hong
Kong) Limited, as the 1st defendant, and ISP Construction (Engineering)
Limited (“ISPCE"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the 2nd defendant (collectively, the "“Defendants”), received a writ of
summons issued by Fortune Pharmacal Co., Ltd (“Fortune”) against the
Defendants for the sum of approximately HK$54.4 million regarding the
Defendants’ breaches of the surety bond executed by the Defendants to
guarantee due performance and observance by ISPCE for construction of
main contract works for Fortune Pharmacal New Factory Development at
Yuen Long given the ISPCE breaches of the contract and/or its negligence
in carrying out the works. ISPCE is seeking legal advice in respect of the
proceeding and would defend its position as well as filed the summons
with the High Court on 1 March 2021 for a stay of proceedings in favour of
arbitration. The hearing for the application to stay of proceedings to be
held in mid of June 2021.

Taking into account of the financial results, the Group’s available cash
reserves and working capital requirements, the Board resolved not to
declare final dividend for the Reporting Year (31 December 2019: Nil).

Stepping into 2021, we expect the local economy will return to positive
growth as a whole following the mass vaccination program and help bring
the pandemic of novel coronavirus under control. Although the degree
and speed of recovery is subject to a host of uncertainties such as the
pandemic development and China-US relations, we can look forward to life
returning to normal and economic recovery across the globe later of the
year. Meanwhile, we would capture the opportunity of the steady local
residential property sector as well as education sector, banks and offices,
and strive to maintain a continuous business growth. Considering that the
overall financial performance of the Group remains stable, we believe we
can minimise financial risk amid appropriate measures and careful
monitoring of our financial position. Leveraging on its solid foundation and
committed management team, the Group has full confidence in
overcoming the difficulties we face.

Aligning our values of customer-focus, integrity, teamwork, innovation and
pursuit of excellence, sustainability is our core business strategy. We are
committed to proactively making improvements under implementation of
Total Quality Management through the comprehensive and innovation

solutions in provision of quality of services with the aim to enhance
customer satisfaction. The Group is cautiously optimistic about the outlook
of both businesses with continuing challenge and uncertainties in 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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The year just past was a volatile year for Hong Kong's economy, with  RIRBERN—F @ "KEKBEESETIE - 24K
significant contraction recorded throughout the year. On behalf of the IEZ45 - KA ZRKREZTERESTNELEN
Board, | would like to express my most sincere gratitude to our Directors  HIBI[X1E & — 2R 205 HE B ZE IS /08 3 H AR
and dedicated team for their unwavering commitment and passion for the ~— ZELEZE DA N ES) T NE BB R A FEERE - B
business during that difficult time and have put forth in driving the Group ~ LASR SR /0K RGE o KA TREE LT B E & 8RR
towards sustainable development. | would also like to sincerely thank all — 7St ER) « EREBHEUALRKRE —BHUKRNE S
our valued service providers, business partners as well as our shareholders — SZ45EUA S Z Ay B o

for their continuous support.

Kingston Chu Chun Ho FE
Chairman REBE
Hong Kong, 23 March 2021 BE 20213 H23H
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GROUP STRUCTURE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW HMEHE
Change
HKS$'million BERET 2020 2019 Amount %
it

Revenue & 1,127.7 1,569.3 (441.6) | 281%
Gross profit EA 50.1 1424 (92.3) | 64.8%
Gross profit margin e 4.4% 9.1% = | 4.7%
Operating expenses (excluding interest) A& 5% (TE ) (87.7) (94.1) 6.4 | 6.8%
Government subsidies R 7 B 86.0 = 86.0 =
Profit attributable to shareholders 1% R 1k A 14.2 376 (234 | 622%
EBITDA BREN  TER

54 B 2 A 54.2 716 (17.4) | 243%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRYE AR BT GEEAL) 3.3 838 (5.5) | 62.5%

The Group reported consolidated revenue and gross profit of
approximately HK$1,127.7 million (2019: HK$1,569.3 million) and
approximately HK$50.1 million (2019: HK$142.4 million) respectively for the
Reporting Year, representing a 28.1% and 64.8% decrease respectively as a
result of local economic downturn caused by the pandemic of novel
coronavirus together with the completion of a few key ISP contracts and
several loss-making ISP projects. In spite of the unprecedented economic
challenges, the Group’s PFM Business, which was more stable in business
nature, managed to explore new business opportunities and acquired
several significant projects during the Reporting Year. Those new wins
coupled with a high contract renewal rate has raised the segment’s gross
profit and offset part of the loss from the ISP Business. Although the Group
has received and accounted for the government subsidies of
approximately HK$86.0 million under HKSAR Government's ESS mainly
from the PFM Business, the Group recorded a profit attributable to
Shareholders of approximately HK$14.2 million for the Reporting Year,
which was around one-third of that last year at approximately HK$37.6
million. Earnings per share was 3.3 HK cents (2019: earnings per share was
8.8 HK cents).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
Business Overview

The Group's PFM Business remained stable and contributed about two-
third of the Group’s revenue while the remaining one-third was
contributed by ISP Business during the Reporting Year.

Although there were some material adverse impacts on specific
businesses because of the pandemic of novel coronavirus during the
Reporting Year, mainly from carpark as well as repair and
maintenance, our core PFM Business still well covered and showed
up a steady growth of 10.7% in terms of profit contribution.

The revenue of PFM Business attained approximately HK$752.9
million which was slightly above that of last year (2019: HK$731.2
million) and the gross profit also saw a moderate increase to
approximately HK$94.4 million comparing with that of last year
(2019: HK$91.9 million).

Ancillary Business remained strong with an increase of gross profit
by 17.4% to approximately HK$27.7 million as compared to that of
last year amid the intake of three batches of significant fitter
maintenance services term contracts and the steady growth from
several business lines.

Total revenue of ISP Business was halved to approximately HK$374.8
million (2019: HK$838.1 million) during the Reporting Year and the
segment also saw an operating loss of approximately HK$83.6
million mainly due to the completion of a few key ISP contracts and
substantial loss being incurred in some of the project works as well
as certain costs incurred involving works done from construction
projects still under negotiations with customers.

The Group's operating expenses reduced by 6.8% to approximately
HKS$87.7 million (2019: HK$94.1 million) as a result of the cost
conscious approach in monitoring the expenditure and the
continuously improvement in operating efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE LD

The operating results for the respective year ended 31 December of PFM M E KRB IEEE N ENEM NISHRIEE %
and ISP Businesses in the following sections excluded the exceptional item,  FEEEZ 12 A31 B IS EEER A T S E1H
being the additional cost of approximately HK$10.2 million recognised this &4 245 » W ABIEEHRIER @ B2 2021 F
year arising from commercial settlement with QBE in January 2021 which 1 7 B2 B B B4R 4 17 79 22 A0 R 1 2= A BV BB ON
was made against the Company for a claim of approximately HK$34.2 k7N 7 5 7K 4 5 32 4978 510,200,000 7T * 5% K1
million under joint employee compensation policy with Hsin Chong (the & iR IR E M HE S E B M ERER A AT

“Insurance Compensation”). T2 4978 %5 34,200,000 TR RIE ([{RRES(E ) ©
PFM ISP
NERRHER EREHREHER
Change Change
HKS' million BEEET 2020 2019 Amount % 2020 2019 Amount %
£ £
Revenue ez 752.9 7312 217 1 3.0% 374.8 8381 (4633) | 55.3%
Gross profit/(Loss) £/ (£8) 94.4 919 25 12.7% (44.3) 505 48) | 187.7%
Operating expenses BERY (48.7) (506) 19 | 38% (29.5) (35.1) 56 | 160%
Interest expenses FEHY - - - - (9.8) (54) (44) 1 81.5%
Operating profit/(loss) &EH5/(FR) 457 Mn3 44  110.7% (83.6) 10.0 (93.6) | 936.0%
Exceptional item SHIER - - - - (10.2) - (102) -

Operating profit/(loss) after ~ MBR4EHIAE 4K

exceptional item wesm/ (B8) 45.7 413 44 1107% (93.8) 100 (1038) | 10380%
Government subsidies BT HE B 81.9 - 819 - 4.1 - 41 -
Others it 03 24 @n | 875% (0.9) 04 (13) ] 3250%
Taxation BB (6.9) (60) 09 1150% (6.5) (08) 7)1 7125%
Net profit/(loss) E%F/(5R) 121.0 377 833 1221.0% (97.1) 96  (106.7) | 1,111.5%
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Property and Facility Management Business
Property and Facility Management

2020 had been an exceptional year with unprecedented economic
challenges. Amid over four decades of solid and extensive experience,
Synergis has successfully sustained the growth of PFM Business and
remained one of the market leaders under the devastating economic
situation. The Group maintains a diverse portfolio for a wide spectrum of
clients including government, corporate clients, public institutions and
private clients. The scope of service includes but not limited to government
departments, large-scale public facilities, transportation systems, airport
cargo terminals, education institutions, hospitals, commercial and industrial
properties, shopping malls, public housing estates, private housing and car
parks, etc.

NAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE WAk

EISE A S
WERRIEEE

2020 FF RAFIREN—5F - AT HIFIARB K
RiE - BREOTZFNRBIEERLR A8
BNMERMERRBERERIER - EmB R
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Operating profits for PFM Business

MERRBEREL 2 KERR
HKS' million
BERET
50 0%
A\E
454 45.7%
406 41.3
40
356
30.2
30
23.2
20
10
0
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
PFM
YT R I 36.0 333 320 29.8 183 323 33.5
Ancillary Business
R 94 7.3 3.6 04 49 9.0 12.2

*In 2020, we hit the record high from 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE LD

Leveraging on our rich management experience, exceptional talents and
leading-edge innovative technology, we are capable of providing the most
appropriate “one-stop-shop” solutions to our clients and earning their trust.
During the Reporting Year, we were awarded about 50 new key contracts
ranging from one-year to five-year project with a total contract sum of over
HK$380 million which was the highest from the past in terms of both
number of contracts awarded and contract sums. Significant new contracts
include:

a 5-year contract of operation and management of vehicle park and
provision of vehicle entry registration service in Western Wholesale
Food Market under the Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation
Department;

a 3-year contract of provision of property management services to
the Independent Commission Against Corruption Building;

a 3-year contract of provision of security services for Caritas Medical
Centre and Yan Chai Hospital;

a 21-month management contract for a multi-block industrial
building — Kwun Tong Industrial Centre; and

a 39-month contract of provision of security services for Lung Mun
Oasis in Tuen Mun.

Subsequent to the end of the Reporting Year, we awarded a 1-year
contract of provision of property management services to Cheung On
Estate, the second largest public housing estate in Tsing Yi with a total of
10 blocks of 7,338 residential units.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our “Synergis Parking” successfully increased our brand awareness in the
car park industry and we were awarded four new contracts covering six car
parks including Greenhill Villa Carpark, Mount Verdant Carpark, Western
Garden Carpark, Terrace Concerto Carpark, Bo Shek Mansion Carpark and
Kingston Terrace Carpark, with a total number of around one thousand
parking spaces during the Reporting Year. Among those, four of them were
from the Hong Kong Housing Society. Car park business faced great
challenge due to the gatherings and dining out restrictions in the
commercial and shopping districts affected by the social distancing
measure during the Reporting Year.

In spite of the economic challenges brought by the pandemic of novel
coronavirus, our resilient PFM service team managed to explore new
business opportunities and achieved the satisfactory results on business
development as shown above. Besides, we are able to maintain a high
renewal rate of over 90% with some existing major contracts
notwithstanding some delay for the contract renewal due to the pandemic
of novel coronavirus. During the Reporting Year, the renewed key contracts
included the provision of management services at Residential, Riding
Schools and other associated properties at the Hong Kong Jockey Club,
Asia Airfreight Terminal, Fu Shin Estate, Tin Ping Estate, Lung Mun Qasis, Tai
Wo Estate, Tai Po Garden and Chung Nga Court, etc. All in all, our revenue
and operating profit have increased by 4.4% and 3.7% to approximately
HKS$627.2 million and HK$33.5 million respectively for the Reporting Year as
compared with those of last year. With our stable and unique market
position, we will continue to retain our current portfolio whilst exploring
opportunities in commercial and operational facilities in the territory.

B E A am Mo

F AP [ Synergis Parking ] * BXIN IR & @ RS
BISTENMBELRREFE - BROHH
G4 MENEFEEE  BEZIRHLESE
% BEREEE - HRESE  ZREESH
B BAREFESRENEFES BB
HARY—THE - ghHEEESREBTEERE
g  RBEFE AREZHIEHEER
2 REERBYSEREENEGRINITEZ
BER 1) T 38 B4 (== B8 455 5 745 T Bk U BB, o

REFUBRRSRIBHREERE - EWE
M E IR RIS E B CGNE T E - KIS
MR ES XTI AR E B RS o It
N - BPSABE D IRA E B R P 4158 90%
MEENE BEFATRESRBELSE
HEBELRE - PNREFE  BEZFTEEHE
REEAEREEE RSB LEMEEY
¥ -DMNZEEHRL - EEW RFW - 5
B~ KT - RIBEE kB FREERR
o BIEMT - Was RAE R T D BB F 18
h14.4% K2 3.7% & %) 7% ® 627,200,000 7T K 75 &
33,500,0007C © /REERE KB R MISHA - &
MBEERBREEHEE  RNTREANTER
EER A o

—T-TEEH ) RERRERAT



018

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE LD

Ancillary Business

Our Ancillary Business comprising integrated procurement, laundry,
cleaning, security, maintenance and technical support services has
persistently been playing a supportive role to our core PFM business and
offers comprehensive value-added services to our clients. Over the years,
these businesses have well developed and unleashed their market
potential with proven dazzling results this year. Although the pandemic of
novel coronavirus has inevitably casted some adverse impacts on some
business lines this year, Ancillary Business still recorded a steady growth
with an increase of gross profit by 17.4% to approximately HK$27.7 million
as compared to that of last year, by means of prudent cost control
measures to gear up the margins. It contributed a satisfactory and
encouraging result of around 26.7% of the operating profit of PFM Business
during the Reporting Year.

Amid the new win of several fitter services maintenance contracts, our
maintenance and technical support business became another key
contributor of our Ancillary Business in 2020. Our cleaning business
undeniable still be champion among all other business and contributed
over half of revenue during the Reporting Year. As a whole, our Ancillary
Business remained stable and has obtained around 20 new key contracts
with a total contract sum of over HK$90 million in 2020. Major contracts
include:

3 batches of 3-year contracts of provision of Fitter Services Term
Maintenance for The Link's shopping centres, carparks, markets and
cooked-food stalls in Yuen Long & Tuen Mun, Kowloon Central,
Kowloon West & Wong Tai Sin and Tsuen Wan, Kwai Tsing, Tung
Chung & Hong Kong Island;

a 21-month cleaning services contract for Kwun Tong Industrial
Centre, a multi-block industrial building;

a 22-month contract of provision of cleansing and horticultural
maintenance services to the Food Safety Laboratory of the

Government Laboratory;

a 3-year cleaning services contract for King Hin Court, a residential
estate in Ngau Chi Wan;

Finishing works of resurfacing of wall in Tai Po Garden; and

a T-year security service contract for 8A Hart Avenue in Tsim Sha Tsui.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Subsequent to the Reporting Year, our cleaning business received its
largest contract in record, a 30-month contract of bus cleaning services at
The Kowloon Motor Bus Co. (1933) Ltd. termini, covering over 130 locations,
amounting to a contract sum of approximately HK$100 million.

Ancillary Business demonstrated its development potential and proved
itself to be a key business component of Synergis over the years. Looking
forward, we will continue to grow the business progressively by expanding
its client base and further enhancing its service quality.

Interiors and Special Projects Business

As another major business arm of Synergis, ISP Business provides one-stop
services including planning, design, consultancy, project management, etc.
to its customers.

2020 had been a tough year for ISP Business. The total revenue of ISP
Business recorded a plunged by 55.3% to approximately HK$374.8 million
during the Reporting Year (2019: HK$838.1 million). The segment also saw
an operating loss before insurance compensation of approximately
HK$83.6 million, a big twist from an operating profit of approximately
HKS$10.0 million in 2019. Barely recovered from the weakened economy
caused by local order events in 2019, the segment was further hit by the
novel coronavirus pandemic since January 2020 when Hong Kong reported
its first local case. The launch of social distancing measures and travel
restrictions hit severely the construction, retail as well as hotel industries
and ultimately the segment’s performance. All in all, the decrease in gross
profit of ISP Business was attributable to the following key factors:

the completion of a few key contracts and substantial loss being
incurred in some of the project works;

certain costs incurred involving works done from construction
projects still under negotiations with customers;

lack of new significant ISP orders replenishment during the
Reporting Year because of the increasingly competitive business
environment; and

the novel coronavirus pandemic having disrupted the progress of
some on-going projects and reduced the number of available
tenders in the industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE LD

Despite the uncertainty of external economic environment, the total
outstanding workload for contracts on hand recorded by ISP Business as of
31 December 2020 was approximately HK$350 million, which was
attributed to the hard work of our management team. We were awarded
several new major contracts with a total contract sum of approximately
HK$120 million during the Reporting Year. Major contracts include:

Air-conditioning system replacement and addition and alteration
works at English Schools Foundation's Quarry Bay School in Quarry
Bay;

Renovation works of Victoria Centre located in Tin Hau; and

Addition and alteration works at basement to 4/F, 5-19 Jardine’s
Bazaar in Causeway Bay.

Subsequent to the end of the Reporting Year, the segment was awarded a
few new contracts in which the most significant one was cladding
replacement works and works complying Mandatory Building Inspection
Scheme requirements at The Langham, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon.

Amid the public health crisis, Hong Kong has seen a record plunge in
economic performance in 2020. Construction projects and property sales
have slowed down as developers and investors took a more prudent
business approach. At the same time, the launch of social distancing
measures and travel restrictions further reduced economic activities and
gave a severe hit to the local operating environment, in particular retail and
hotel operations. All these have inevitably affected our ISP Business. During
this difficult time, we will put more focus on the opportunities of education
sector, banks and offices which are relatively more stable under economic
downturn. With the team'’s commitment to excellence, we are looking
forward to an improvement of our overall business performance in the
near future when the pandemic eases with vaccination.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outlook of the Group

Looking forward, the Hong Kong economy is expected to see positive
growth for 2021 as a whole following the mass vaccination program,
though the degree and speed of recovery are subject to a host of
uncertainties such as the duration of novel coronavirus pandemic and the
development of China-US relations. In the midst of economic uncertainties,
we would capture the opportunity of the steady local residential property
sector as well as education sector, banks and offices and strive to maintain
a continuous business growth.

On a Group-wide overview, we consider that the overall financial
performance of the Group remains stable. Alongside improving financial
performance, we must carry on in delivering a transparent, responsible and
inclusive approach to business so that we can continue our journey to
sustainable development. Aligning our values of customer focus, integrity,
teamwork, innovation and pursuit of excellence, sustainability is our core
business strategy. Synergis is ready to play with the determination,
resilience and our can do spirit to overcome any challenges and enhance
our customer satisfaction with the improvement to our services quality.
Besides, with the rapid change of business environment, we will continue
to advance our risk management procedures to mitigate faced risks and
turn some of the risks into new business opportunities. Leveraging on its
solid foundation and committed management team, the Group has full
confidence in overcoming all the challenges ahead of us.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE LD

Disposal of PFM Business

Reference was made to the interim report of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2020. On 6 April 2020, the Company and the
potential purchaser (the “Potential Purchaser”) entered into a non-legally
binding memorandum of understanding in relation to possible disposal of
the PFM Business, pursuant to which the Company has intended to dispose
of, and the Potential Purchaser has intended to acquire the entire issued
share capital of the certain subsidiaries of the Company which are
principally engaged in the PFM Business (the “Possible Disposal”). In
addition to the Potential Purchaser, the Company has been in negotiation
with several potential purchasers for the Possible Disposal.

As at the date of this annual report, no formal agreement has been entered
into between the Company and the potential purchasers and the Board
will continue to negotiate the terms of the formal agreement with the
potential purchasers. The Company will make further announcement(s)
should there be any updates in relation to the Possible Disposal as and
when appropriate. Details of the Possible Disposal are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 6 April 2020, 18 May 2020, 4 June
2020 and 8 October 2020 respectively.

Financial Position and Financial Risk Management

As at 31 December 2020, the total outstanding bank loan was HK$64.0
million, and scheduled to be repaid within one year for supporting ISP
operation and business development, details of which are disclosed in
note 22 to the financial statements in this annual report. During the
Reporting Year, the Group's sources of fund were generated primarily from
operating and financing activities (including bank facilities).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Interest costs on bank borrowings were primarily charged based on a
spread over HIBOR. With regard to the current portfolio of businesses,
management expects that financial requirements for the foreseeable future
will be met from a combination of shareholders’ equity and banking
facilities. The Group would continue to proactively monitor the financial
position and maintain sufficient working capital and liquidity in the way
that can enable us to capture any good business opportunities and to
meet the challenges ahead.

The Company placed the 7% convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$42 million (the “Convertible Bonds”) on 18 November 2019
pursuant to the placing agreement dated 24 October 2019 (the “Placing”)
by the placing agents to six placees, being individual and corporate
investors who are the independent third parties and are not connected
with the Company as well as its connected persons, whereby the
Convertible Bonds may be convertible into a maximum of 84 million
conversion shares based on the initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per
conversion share upon exercise in full of the conversion rights attaching to
the Convertible Bonds. As at 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, no conversion share has been issued under the Convertible
Bonds which will be due in November 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE LD

The gross and net proceeds from the Placing amounted to HK$42 million
and approximately HK$41 million respectively. The net issue price for the
Placing is approximately HK$0.49 per conversion share. The net proceeds
from the Placing were fully used as the general working capital of the
Group according to the purpose of the Placing. Details of the Placing are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 24 October 2019 and
18 November 2019 respectively as well as note 25 to the financial
statements in this annual report.
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Financial position (HK$'000) MR (B8 FT) 2020 2019
Total assets EERE 628,198 836,365
Receivables and other assets JEBBR R R B B = 385,974 673,725
Cash and cash equivalents BHe MBS 215,837 128,344
Current assets REEE 601,811 802,069
Payables and other liabilities FENBEZREMEE 373,527 534,383
Bank loans RITEX 64,000 131,000
Convertible bonds AR ES 38,912 -
Current liabilities REBEaE 476,439 665,383
Other non-current liabilities Hi3EmEacG 6,277 4,440
Convertible bonds AR E S = 35,882
Non-current liabilities FREEE 6,277 40,322
Net assets EEZFHE 145,482 130,660
Net assets per share (HK cents) EREEREGEEMW) 28.8 259
Current ratio BN =R 1.3 12

The Group adopts a conservative approach in the management of its
financial risks and resources, under the supervision of the Executive
Committee.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Interest rate risk arising from bank borrowings is low as interest rates are
fixed for short-term periods to take advantage of the lower rates thus
available. Interest rates will be subject to fluctuation at the time of renewal.

The Group's business is conducted primarily in Hong Kong, and its majority
assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. Therefore, the
Group has minimal foreign currency exposure. The growth of the Group’s
business in China has been funded via permanent capital injection, which
is for the long-term and as such, foreign currency hedging is considered
unnecessary.

It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative transactions for
speculative purposes. It is also the Group's policy not to invest its financial
resources in financial products, including hedge funds or similar
instruments, with significant underlying leverage or derivative exposure.

There were no material investments, capital commitments or contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report,
other than a writ of summons received by ISP Construction (Engineering)
Limited ("ISPCE"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
from Fortune, details of which are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 January 2021 and the "Writ of Summons" under the
section headed "Subsequent Events After 2020" on page 27 of this annual
report.

Cash Management

The Group operates a centralised cash management system. Cash balances
surplus to meet immediate requirements are mainly placed as short-term
bank deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE WAk

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 4,879 staff (31
December 2019: 4,944) in Hong Kong and China.

Year 2020 was a year of unprecedented challenges for Hong Kong, with
pandemic of novel coronavirus impacting the economy, business and the
job market. Throughout the past year, human resources playing a major
role in supporting the Group under new normal. From enhancing
employee wellness programs, to redesigning working measures, we have
been instrumental in maintaining businesses continuity and preparing the
Group for sustainable growth. Since the future will bring more flexible,
remote-friendly, digital working norms, the changes in processes,
workspaces, collaboration systems, and employee wellness are of
increasing urgent importance that we will take good care of. In order to
sustain our quality services, it is always our long-term goal to retain top
talent for the Group. We put a lot of efforts in ensuring our staff members
are enjoying competitive remuneration and benefits through market
research for regular benchmarking review. Our Human Resources Team
always strives their best to keep track of changes in the latest market
conditions for attracting more high caliber candidates to join our winning
team. In addition, aiming for the mutual growth of the staff and the Group,
we do our utmost to invest and share resources with our staff. We have
formulated a holistic policy on human capital management with the
theme of “We Care We Share Z2& B 12 H =R We do believe our
staff will reward the Company and customers through providing quality
services and thus gain more appreciation and recognition from the
customers. Besides, the Human Resources team manages through
enhancing the existing Human Resources system aiming to uplift the
effectiveness and efficiency of business operations.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting
Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER 2020
Writ of Summons

Reference was made to the announcement of the Company dated 18
January 2021. Falcon Insurance Company (Hong Kong) Limited, as the 1st
defendant and ISPCE, as the 2nd defendant (collectively, the “Defendants”),
received a writ of summons (the “Writ of Summons”) on 14 January 2021
issued in the Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong by
Fortune as a plaintiff, against the Defendants for the sum of approximately
HK$54.4 million regarding the Defendants’ breaches of the surety bond
executed by the Defendants to guarantee due performance and
observance by ISPCE for construction of main contract works for Fortune
Pharmacal New Factory Development at Yuen Long given the ISPCE
breaches of the contract and/or its negligence in carrying out the works.
ISPCE is seeking legal advice in respect of the proceeding and defended its
position as well as filed the summons with the High Court on 1 March 2021
for a stay of proceedings in favour of arbitration. The hearing for the
application to stay of proceedings will be held in mid of June 2021.

Insurance Compensation

References were made to the announcements of the Company dated 30
January 2020 and 27 January 2021 respectively. The Company entered into
the settlement agreement on 25 January 2021 with QBE after the
conduction of the mediation regarding the writ of summons received on
23 January 2020 by QBE was made against the Company for a claim of
approximately HK$34.2 million under joint employee compensation
insurance policy with Hsin Chong. Under the settlement agreement, it was
agreed, among other things, the Company shall pay a sum of HK$19.5
million to QBE (inclusive of all interests, costs, disbursements, costs of
mediation of QBE) in full and final settlement of QBE's claims and all the
matters and disputes. The Company has recognized further loss of
approximately HK$10.2 million for the Reporting Year. The settlement will
have no material impact on the Group's liquidity position and was for the
best interest for the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
ESZ2EN

MR. KINGSTON CHU CHUN HO

(aged 35)

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho (“Mr.
Chu") was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the
Company with effect from 9 March
2017. He is also a member of each of
the Executive Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the

Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Chu is a licensed person under Securities and Futures Ordinance for
Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activities for Kingston Securities Limited and Kingston Corporate
Finance Limited, respectively. Mr. Chu is a member of Guangxi Committee
of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a member of
General Committee of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies, vice
president of Hong Kong CPPCC Youth Association, vice director of Youth
Committee of HKCPPCC (Provincial) Members Association, vice president
of Federation of Hong Kong Guangxi Community Organisations, vice
chairman of Hong Kong Guangdong Youth Association, honorary chairman
of Hong Kong Guangxi Youth Organisations and founder chairman of
Youth Committee of Hong Kong Federation of Dongguan Associations. Mr.
Chu holds a Bachelor Degree of Science in Business Administration from
the University of Southern California in the US.A.

Mr. Chu has been an executive director of Kingston Financial Group Limited
(stock code: 1031) since 21 August 2015 and an executive director of
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 444) (“Sincere HK") since
29 May 2012, both of which are listed on the main board (the “Main Board")
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Chu has also been a director of Sincere Watch Limited, a shareholder of
Sincere HK since 21 May 2012. He was a non-executive director of New
Concepts Holdings Limited (stock code: 2221) from September 2016 to
November 2017, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chu is the son of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, the ultimate beneficial owner of

Champ Key Holdings Limited, which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company.
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MS. MANDY HUI SUK MAN

MBA, FCCA, FCPA (aged 45)

Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man (“Ms. Hui")
was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Deputy Chairman of
the Company with effect from 24
April 2019 and the Managing
Director for the property and facility
management (the "PFM") of the
Group with effect from 24 June 2019.
She is also a member of the Executive Committee, the Finance Director of
the Group and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Hui is responsible for strategic planning and implementation, business
development, monitoring operation of the PFM and supervising corporate
services teams to improve the operational efficiency of the Group. She is
also in charge of the finance and accounting operations, budgetary and
financial control, and treasury management of the Group. Ms. Hui is
responsible for overseeing merger and acquisition projects implemented
by the Group. She is a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and has
over 20 years of experience in corporate accounting, financing and
taxation. Ms. Hui joined the Group in 2006 and prior to that, she got solid
experience in both audit and accounting field. She is also responsible for
the company secretarial practice of the Group and is the primary corporate

contact person of company secretarial function for the Company. Ms. Hui
holds a Master's Degree of Business Administration from Hong Kong
Baptist University. She is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
EFZEHN

MR. LAU MAN TAK

(aged 51)

Mr. Lau Man Tak ("Mr. Lau") has been
appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director since 28 September
2017. He is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee, and a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

|

Mr. Lau graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
bachelor’s degree of arts in accountancy in November 1991. He has more
than 20 years of experience in finance and accounting. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of each of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Mr. Lau is currently the chairman and a non-executive director of REF
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1631), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of
each of Kingston Financial Group Limited (stock code: 1031) and Chinese
Food and Beverage Group Limited (stock code: 8272), which are companies
listed on the Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange respectively. Mr.
Lau was an executive director and chairman of TEM Holdings Limited
("TEM") since 2015 and was re-designated as a director in January 2021
upon the withdrawal of the listing of TEM by way of privatisation.
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MR. ERICLEE HON MAN

(aged 54)

Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man ("Mr. Lee") has
been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director since 28
September 2017. He is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee, and a
member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director of REF Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1631), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He is also employed by Alliance Capital Partners Limited, a
company engaging in advising on corporate finance and dealing in
securities, as managing director. Mr. Lee graduated from the University of
Birmingham, the United Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree of engineering
in electronic and electrical engineering in July 1988, and obtained a
master's degree in business administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in December 1993.

Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience in the corporate finance industry.
He was an independent non-executive director of TEM since April 2016
until his resignation in January 2021 upon the withdrawal of the listing of
TEM by way of privatisation. From March 2017 to June 2020, Mr. Lee
worked at Orient Capital (Hong Kong) Limited, a company engaging in
advising on corporate finance, as managing director of investment banking
department. From August 2015 to February 2017, Mr. Lee worked at LY
Capital Limited, a company engaging in advising on corporate finance, as a
director. From April 2002 to November 2014, Mr. Lee worked at First
Shanghai Capital Limited, a company engaging in advising on corporate
finance, and his last position was managing director. From July 1997 to
March 2002, Mr. Lee worked at DBS Asia Capital Limited, a company
engaging in advising on corporate finance, and his last position was vice
president.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
EFZEHN

MR.TO CHUN WAI

(aged 64)

Mr. To Chun Wai (“Mr. To") has been
appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director since 1 March
2021. He is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, and a
member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. To is at present the chief executive officer of a Hong Kong registered
consultancy company, and an independent non-executive director of Auto
[talia Holdings Limited (stock code: 720) and Greenheart Group Limited
(stock code: 94), both of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. To spent most of his career with the Hong Kong Police,
beginning in 1974 and rising up the ranks to Assistant Commissioner
(Crime), being responsible for the overall charge of policy designs and
operations of, among others, the Commercial Crime Bureau, Organized
Crime & Triad Bureau, Criminal Intelligence Bureau, Financial Investigation
Bureau (anti money-laundering), and Technology Crime Bureau, until his
retirementin 2011.

Mr. To was awarded the Police Meritorious Service Medal by the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, in recognition
of his long and staunch service and contribution to the Hong Kong society.
From 2011 to 2012, he served as a part-time tutor at the University of Hong
Kong. Between April 2013 and August 2018, he served as the chief strategic
officer, chief operating officer, and a non-executive director of Integrated
Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited (“IWS"), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 923), and sat
on both the remuneration and nomination committees of IWS during his
tenure of services.

Mr. To has wide administrative and management experiences in both the

public and private sectors, and holds a master degree of public
administration from the University of Hong Kong.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP’S KEY PERSONNEL

MS. CELINE TAM PUI CHING

MHousMan (HKU), F.PFM, MHKIloD,
MCIH, RPHM, MHIREA (aged 60)

Ms. Celine Tam Pui Ching (“Ms.
Tam”) is the Director — Property
Management and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.
She is responsible for overseeing
daily management operations as
well as strategic planning and
business development of the Group’s Hong Kong and Kowloon Regions of
property management segment.

Ms. Tam, with over 30 years' experience in property and facility
management profession, began her career at Hong Kong Housing
Department. She was later transferred to the then City and New Territories
Administration as Liaison Officer to serve at the deployed District Offices.
She left the civil service and gained extensive working experience in the
private sector at some well-established property/facility management
companies. Prior to her joining to Synergis in May 2017, she was at senior
management level when working for a property management subsidiary
of a reputable property developer in Hong Kong.

Ms. Tam holds a Master’'s Degree of Housing Management from The
University of Hong Kong. She is an expert in property management with
rich experience in related fields. Being the Fellow Member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Facility Management, she was elected as the President of
the Institute for the year term of 2011-2012. She is currently a Registered
Professional Housing Manager who holds membership of Chartered
Institute of Housing Asian Pacific Branch, Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate

Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP’S KEY PERSONNEL
EEEZEE 2EN

MR. IVAN CHEUNG YUKLUNG

BBA, BAHS (Hons), RPHM, FHKIH, MRICS,
VBAS Assessor (List 2B), PMP (Tier 1)
Licence, Estate Agent’s Individual
Licence (aged 44)

Mr. Ivan Cheung Yuk Lung (“Mr.
Cheung") is the Director — Property
Management and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.
He is responsible for the strategic
planning, business development and management operation of the

Group's New Territories East and West regions of property management
segment as well as car park segment. He is a holder of PMP (Tier 1) Licence
and Estate Agent’s Individual Licence. He possesses over 20 years of
experience in property management.

Mr. Cheung received a Bachelor's Degree of Arts in Housing Studies from
the City University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor’'s Degree of Business
Administration in Applied Economics from the Baptist University of Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Housing and
has served as a council member since 2017. Also, he is a professional
member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, a registered
professional housing manager of the Housing Managers Regjistration Board
and a national property manager of Human Resources and Social Security
Department of Guangdong Province.

Mr. Cheung began his career at Synergis as property officer in 2002. Three
years later, he was promoted to assistant property manager and started his
managerial career path. After that, he was subsequently promoted to the
current position in 2021.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP’S KEY PERSONNEL

MR. LEUNG CHI MING

EMBA, RICS, CIH, CPM (aged 47)

Mr. Leung Chi Ming (“Mr. Leung”) is
the Regional Director (China) and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Leung holds an
Executive Master's Degree of
Business Administration in Real
Estate from Shanghai Advanced
Institute of Finance. He is also
currently a Registered Professional Housing Manager of Institute of Real
Estate Management and a member of each of the Chartered Institute of

Housing Asian Pacific Branch and Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyor.

Mr. Leung joined the Group in 1999 and has over 20 years of extensive
experience in real estate consultancy and service in Hong Kong and China. He
is responsible for the overall strategic planning, business development and
management operations of the real estate business of the Group in China.

MS. LORNA WONG BIG SEE

MSc, MRICS, MHKIS, MHKIFM (aged 56)

Ms. Lorna Wong Big See (“Ms. Wong")
joined the Group as an Associate
Director of Synergis Facility
Management Limited in 2016 and is
currently a Deputy Director — Facility
Management. She is responsible for
overall strategic planning, business
development,
operation and operauonal policy execution of the facility management

management

business in sustaining added value as well as high quality facility
management services delivery to the clientele and investors.

Ms. Wong holds a Master’s Degree of Social Science in Counseling from
University of South Australia and a Bachelor's Degree of Science in Estate
Management from University of Reading in United Kingdom. She is also a
member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

Ms. Wong possesses over 25 years of experiences in shopping mall
management, project management as well as property and facility
management perspectives and had served various renowned developers
and major consulting firms in Hong Kong prior to the joining of Synergis.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP'S KEY PERSONNEL
SEZBZEN

MR. MARTIN LEE KA FU

MSc, BEng(Hons), CEng, CEnv, MCIBSE,
MCIOB, MIET, MCIPHE, FSOE, FIPlantk,
PFM , MHKIE, RPE(BSS), REA, REW (CO, HO),
PMP (Tier 1) Licence (aged 43)

Mr. Martin Lee Ka Fu (“Mr. Lee") is the
Assistant General Manager
(Technical) of the property and
facility management division and a

director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is responsible for all technical issues, business development,
budget management of the business as well as the setting up and
standardization of relevant technical documentation, systems and
procedures.

Mr. Lee graduated with a Bachelor's Degree in Building Service from the
University of Central Lancashire and a Master's Degree in Fire and Safety
Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He qualified as a
Chartered Building Service Engineer, Chartered Environmentalist and
Registered Professional Engineer of the Hong Kong Engineers Registration
Board. He is also a corporate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Facility
Management and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Engineers.

Mr. Lee possesses over 20 years of experience in projects and facilities
maintenance, renovation as well as addition and alternation works. He is an
expert in commercial, residential and industrial buildings maintenance
works especially for the design and consulting services aspects. Prior to his
joining to Synergis in November 2017, he worked for various property
management company and consulting firms. He has been involved in
monitoring serval renowned renovation projects for commercial buildings,
hotel and museum in Hong Kong.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP’S KEY PERSONNEL

MR. GARY TSE CHI CHIU

MEng (Civil & Architectural), CEng,
MiStructE, MCIOB, MHKIE, MHKICM, ICE,
RPE(Structural), Chartered Construction
Manager (aged 43)

Mr. Gary Tse Chi Chiu (“Mr. Tse") was
appointed as an Acting Managing
Director for the interiors and special
projects business (the “ISP Business”)
and a member of the Executive
Committee with effect from 7 May 2020. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and is responsible for strategic planning,
business development and overall operation of ISP Business and in charge

of Planning, Engineering and Plant Department of the Group.

Mr. Tse joined interiors and special projects division in 2011. He has strong
background in structural design and consultation knowledge and
processes 19 years of experience in the design, construction, supervision
and project management. He has also been involved in various building,
civil and renovation projects in Hong Kong, Macau, United Kingdom and
Middle East.

Mr. Tse is a qualified contractor specialising in construction management
in a wide range of construction projects including high rise class residential
and commercial development, social facilities, shopping complex, hotel,

hospital building; fitting-out works together with alteration and addition
works, major demolition and repair works. He also qualified as a combined
Chartered Civil and Structural Engineer as well as a Registered Professional
Engineer.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP’S KEY PERSONNEL
SEEBS 28N

MR.YUNG HEUNG WING

(aged 43)

Mr. Yung Heung Wing (“Mr. Yung") is
a director of certain subsidiaries of
Company and is responsible for
strategic planning, business
development and overall operation
of interiors, new building and
alteration and addition works. He
also oversees the Construction and
Operation Department, HSEQ Department, Procurement Department and

Planning and Engineering Department.

Mr. Yung holds a Master’s Degree in Construction Management from
Greenwich University. Besides, he joined interiors and special projects
division since 2011,
operation and abundant practices from feasibility study to completion of

he has been also responsible for on-site construction

building construction. During the career in two decades, his experience
covers cross-variety construction project management including large-
scale revitalization of industrial building, Grade A office, residential estate,
hotel, shopping complex, recreational facility and Museum.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company recognises the interests of and its responsibility to one of its
most important stakeholders — the shareholders. Synergis is committed to
upholding high standards of corporate governance as a means of
protecting and enhancing shareholder value and ensuring the integrity of
operations of the Group. Synergis’s corporate governance standards are
built on the principles of independence, accountability, transparency and
fairness with an appropriate system of checks and balances.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles, code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code") as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

Throughout the Reporting Year, the Company has complied with all code
provisions of the CG Code and, where appropriate, the applicable
recommended best practices of the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time by the Stock Exchange) as
its own code of conduct for regulating securities transactions by Directors.
Having made specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the Reporting Year.

The Board has further adopted the Model Code as the written guidelines
for regulating securities transactions by the senior management (whose
names are set out in Profiles of the Group’s Key Personnel on pages 33 to

38 of this annual report) and certain employees (collectively, the “Relevant
Employees”) of the Group. The Board believes that the Relevant Employees
may, by virtue of their positions, likely be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1 % = #& =
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

During the Reporting Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho (Chairman)
Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director for
PFM business)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Man Tak

Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man

Mr. To Chun Wai (appointed with effect from 1 March 2021)

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (resigned with effect from 23 December 2020)

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions is available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company (www.synergis.com.hk).

Coming from diverse businesses and professional backgrounds, the Board
members possess a balance of skills, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group and they are
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. Save as disclosed in the
Profiles of Directors set out on pages 28 to 32 of this annual report, there is
no relationship among the Board members.

Following the resignation of Dr. Wong Yun Kuen as an Independent Non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
with effect from 23 December 2020, the Company failed to comply with
Rules 3.10(1), 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Rule 3.11, 3.23
and 3.27, the Company should appoint sufficient number of independent
non-executive directors and make appropriate appointment to the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee within three months after
failing to meet the requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.21 and 3.25 of the
Listing Rules.
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The Company has appointed Mr. To Chun Wai as an Independent Non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
with effect from 1 March 2021. Following the appointment of Mr. To Chun
Wai, the Company is in compliance with the relevant requirements under
Rules 3.10(1), 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

The Company currently has three Independent Non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the total number of Board members
and is in compliance with the requirement under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. The views of the Independent Non-executive Directors carry weight
in the Board’s decisions, and their participation helps the Board exercise
judgement, make decisions and act objectively in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has given to the
Company an annual confirmation of independence in compliance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are and have remained
independent. Mr. Lau Man Tak, chairman of the Audit Committee, has the
appropriate accounting and financial management expertise required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Board members, including all the Independent Non-executive
Directors, are expressly identified in all corporate communications which
disclose the names of the Directors of the Company.

Functions

The Board has an ultimate oversight of the Group's activities. Its primary
functions are to set and direct the Company’s strategy and to monitor and
measure the management’s performance. The Board is accountable for the
overall strategic development of the Group with the objective to enhance
shareholder value. Material matters are reserved for the Board’s
considerations or decisions which include, among other things, overall
strategy of the Group, business plans, annual budgets, significant capital
expenditure, interim and annual results and reports, dividend policy and
payments, material acquisitions, disposals or investment proposals,
directors’ appointments, re-appointments or removal, and other material
transactions.

The Board has delegated certain of its responsibilities to the Audit

Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Executive Committee. It has also delegated the day-to-day operations of
the Group's business to the senior management. Delegation of duties to
the Board committees and daily business operations to the management
are discussed on pages 47 to 55 of this report.
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Board Chairman and Managing Director

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho is the Chairman of the Board. The role of chief
executive of the Company is played by two managing directors responsible
for our PFM Business and ISP Business respectively. Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man
is the Managing Director for PFM Business. Mr. David Chan Tat Wai was the
Acting Managing Director for the ISP Business until 6 May 2020, and Mr.
Gary Tse Chi Chiu has been appointed as the Acting Managing Director for
the ISP Business with effect from 7 May 2020.

At all times, the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Directors are not
related to each other and there are clear divisions among their
responsibilities with a view to achieving a balance of power and authority.
The Chairman of the Board provides leadership to the Board in terms of
formulating policies and strategies, and discharges those duties set out in
code provision A.2 of the CG Code. The Managing Directors have the
overall responsibility of implementing the decisions, policies and strategies
approved by the Board, and overseeing the Group’s business and
operations. The duties of the Chairman and the Managing Directors are set
out in their respective service agreements entered into with the Company.

With the support from the Executive Director and the Company Secretary,
the Chairman of the Board ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on
all issues arising from Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the appointment,
re-election and removal of the Directors. The Board set up a Nomination
Committee in 2011 to recommend the appointment, re-election and
removal of the Directors.

All the Independent Non-executive Directors have entered into letters of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-
laws"), including the requirement of retirement by rotation and re-election
or standing for re-election at annual general meetings ("AGM(s)") of the
Company at least once every three years. The term is renewable upon

expiry.
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Any new Director to be appointed by the Company shall be provided with
information on duties and obligations of director, relevant regulatory
requirements and the Group's business affairs. All Directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the Company
or next following AGM respectively and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the meeting according to the Bye-laws.

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular Board meetings for next year
are scheduled approaching the end of each calendar year in order to
facilitate the Directors to plan for attendance of the meetings. Additional
Board meetings will be convened, as and when required, to deal with ad
hoc issues. Any Director who is not able to present physically may
participate at any Board meeting through electronic means of
communication, such as conference telephone or other similar
communication equipment, in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Board Proceedings

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14 days in
advance, and reasonable notice is given for other Board meetings. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board to prepare the
meeting notice and agenda. Each Director may include any item in the
agenda. The agenda, accompanied by meeting papers with sufficient and
reliable information, are sent to each Director normally not less than three
days before the date of a Board meeting to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions on the matters to be discussed, except where a Board
meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to consider any urgent ad hoc
matter.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board
meetings, drafts and final versions of which will be circulated to Directors
for comment and records, respectively, and in both cases, within a
reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes shall record in sufficient detail
the matters considered by the Board at the meeting and decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors or dissenting view (if any)

expressed. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
and open for inspection to any Director on request.
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All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are complied with and all applicable rules
and regulations relating to Board process are followed. Directors have full
and timely access to all relevant information, including reports from the
Board committees and reports from the management. They are also
provided with updates on the latest developments of the Listing Rules and
other relevant legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to
the Directors in discharging their duties as and when appropriate.

To assist the Directors to discharge their duties, the Board has adopted
written procedures for any Director who wishes to seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

Board approval is also given by circulation of resolution in writing pursuant
to the Bye-laws on urgent matters which require decisions in a tight
timeframe and hence convening a Board meeting is difficult or not
practicable. In the case where a resolution in writing is circulated, sufficient
information and explanatory materials will also be provided to the Directors
at the same time.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter
(including material transactions with connected persons) which the Board
determines to be material, the Board will hold a meeting to consider the
relevant matter.

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors' and officers’ liabilities has been
arranged to protect the Directors and officers of the Group.
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Attendances of Meetings

Eight Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings, one Remuneration
Committee meeting, one Nomination Committee meeting and one
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general meeting were held during the Reporting Year. Attendances of (RBRZE @@ H M1 NBREREANE - FREFIE
these meetings by Directors are set out below: EHEZELRERLIIBRA
Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
g/ RERERER
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors EEnE Ezg EREEE FHZEES REZEE BRRAE
Executive Directors HTES
Kingston Chu Chun Ho KB 8/8 n/a 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mandy Hui Suk Man AR 8/8 n/a n/a n/a 1/1
Independent BIEHTES
Non-executive Directors
Lau Man Tak B 8/8 22 11 1/1 1/1
Eric Lee Hon Man ZHN 8/8 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
Wong Yun Kuen =R
(resigned with effect from (820205127238
23 December 2020) EEHE) 717 212 1/1 /1 1/1
n/a:  notapplicable n/a:  TiEA

During the Reporting Year, the Chairman of the Board also held one
meeting with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the other
Director present.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the

views of shareholders generally. All Independent Non-executive Directors
attended the AGM held on 22 May 2020 by electronic means or in person.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Directors are aware of the requirement under code provision A.6.5 of the
CG Code regarding continuous professional development. During the
Reporting Year, the Company provided reading materials to the Directors
for self-study. In addition, the Directors have attended external courses or
conferences organised by various organisations for their own continuous
training.

Directors also reviewed the business and financial updates and other
reading materials provided to them concerning latest developments in
corporate governance practices, and relevant legal and regulatory
developments. A record of the Directors’ participation in various
continuous professional development programme is kept by the company
secretarial department. A summary of training received by the Directors for
the Reporting Year according to the records provided by the Directors is as
follows:

attending seminars/

EERIIREXRRRE

BUEEHERFENERARRNEREL
ARARBNEE - XA RBARER

EFHABEAEE AT AT FRARIE A6S IR
ERBEEXERORTE - RBEFE - A2
RS RERRUMNEEMEETER - thIh -
EEE2MBTA#EBEERNINARIEZNS

& ARERERE -

EENEHNRSREHRZEB LM BOENE
HAREMEREEE AT R MAMERNEX
RBERTBERNOMEER - 1 HEF2ELD
REEXERIARWRE  BRRMER
fr- EERNBERESFEMEIEINOHE
(REBEEFRHACERE T

Reading newspapers,

journals and updates

relating to the economy,

Giving talks or general business,

accounting, laws, rules

conferences/forums and regulations, etc
BRI -
—REX g5 EE-
BITHRERHE RAREREFTEZ
Name of Directors EEHR mee g8 HiE HRE - HHREHEN
Kingston Chu Chun Ho N v v
Mandy Hui Suk Man TR ER Vv v
Lau Man Tak B> 1= Vv v
Eric Lee Hon Man FE v Vv
Wong Yun Kuen =R
(resigned with effect from (82020512 H23H
23 December 2020) REEHE) v v
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Each of the Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Executive
Committee, is to assist in the execution of the Board's responsibilities and
to oversee particular aspect of the Group’s affairs. Each Board committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties properly, and
holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws, its specific written terms
of reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of Board meeting.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The members of Audit Committee during the
Reporting Year and up to date of this report were:

Mr. Lau Man Tak (Chairman)

Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man

Mr. To Chun Wai (appointed with effect from 1 March 2021)

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (resigned with effect from 23 December 2020)

None of the Audit Committee members is or has been a former partner of
the Company’s existing external auditor for the past two years.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for conducting an
independent and objective review of the financial reporting process,
internal controls and audit function with emphasis on:

(i) appraise the quality of the audit effort of the Company’s internal and
external auditors;

(i) serve as an independent and objective party to review the financial
information presented by management to shareholders, regulators
and the general public;

(i) ascertain the adequacy of the Company's systems of risk management
and internal control which management and the Board have
established; and

(iv)  serve as useful channel of communication between the Board and
the external and internal auditors on matters relating to and arising

out of the external and internal audit.

The authority and duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its specific

written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
recommending to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment or
removal of the Company’s external auditor and on its remuneration;
reviewing the Company’s interim and annual financial statements and
other financial reports; and reviewing the Company'’s financial reporting
system, internal control procedures (including monitoring the effectiveness
of the internal audit function) and risk management system. The Audit
Committee has explicit authority to investigate any activity within its duties
and responsibilities and the authority to obtain external legal or other
independent professional advice if it considers necessary.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. During the Reporting
Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed on page 45 of this report.

During the Reporting Year, the Audit Committee members with the
participation of the internal and external auditors and the management, (i)
reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of the Group;
(i) reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the interim results for the period ended 30 June 2020 and the related
financial statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that these
financial statements were prepared in accordance with the accounting
principles and standards generally accepted in Hong Kong and considered
the reports from the external auditor on the scope and findings of its
independent review of the interim financial statements and audit of the
annual financial statements; (iii) reviewed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions and their training programmes and
budget; (iv) reviewed and approved the external auditor’s fees for audit
and non-audit services; (v) reviewed the independence of external auditor;
and (vi) recommended the Board to nominate the re-appointment of the
external auditor at AGM.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee’s
view on re-appointment of external auditor, and they both have agreed to
recommend the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the Company’s
external auditor for the ensuing year at the 2021 AGM.

ERZEEZIRREBERE(ETERINE

T ENRZEXRLARAINEZBED L E
MemESSELER  BHARRPHRF

EHBHRRAREMIBRE AT AR A
ZHBRERHE - AREEREF (BREER
BB 2 B AR EIEHE - BRE
B AEWER JEHEBRAEMRTHEANS

BEMNES - WHERER AN FREGINE
RN EMBIEEEZR -
EZEZECEBFEVRITMAEE - RS
FE ERZESLRTT2RSH HESE
ZIBERERATRE S 45 B IR ©

RBEFE - BRRZEEXEDERAR RN

EZHSAEERRE () BERNASE cRRERE R
N EPESYE B u%&ﬁ$ AEE2019F 12

A3 BIEFENFEEEREZE 202056 A 30
B IFEE A R HR 248 LA R AR RA RS A5 Rk - DARE
REZEMEBEBEBED S AR RA R ER]
iR B K A BE IR AZ SRR ph L ) R B ER AR S B A
WFEITE I BEMBIZ 2 BE R ATS 4
EH 2| E (VBT AEBHN2E - AEE
B ERRNENE T 2ER éﬁ&iﬁﬁ
EERR  UREENEIIREREE
&z%ﬁ&ﬁt)&ﬁlﬁ%*‘?%{ﬁﬁiE’J%V&#%VHE%%E

W AR FT INEEAZ BRAD RSB LM - R (vi) R
%%@Eh%ﬂﬁﬁ;‘ﬂz%i%ﬁé&?\\ﬂﬁz
HA -

EEORERZEORENTEINEAEE £
TESFER  MESHERERAGRTZ
2201 ERREFRS L BHEFRTEBL
ERRETMEBMARARABEARRREZ
HNER A% ELA

048 SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ALl A~ N

TEEARSE

FMZEES

FINZ B2 BATHRURESMAN - SUBT I
TERHZH RREFEREEAREH
0 FHMZEemEmT

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four Directors, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. The members
of the Remuneration Committee during the Reporting Year and up to date
of this report were:

Mr. To Chun Wai (Chairman) (appointed with effect from 1 March 2021) HIRESCE(EE)(B2021F3 A1 BRRERT)

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho E Nt
Mr. Lau Man Tak R fmiE
Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man TN E

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (resigned with effect from 23 December 2020) = EEB LT (82020912 A 23 BiEBHE)
FMEE g s R RBEHN A EEmBE
HEAN - FWEEGRESE2 XD FHN
R T R FTABIE A ©

The authority and duties of the Remuneration Committee are set out in its
specific written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

FHZ B e RR AR AREZFHMEER R
ARNRBEFHESETEABZHMEFS - AR
ARt

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management of the Company. Its duties are
summarised below:

RARBMBEERSEEEAEFHM

(i) make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and (i)

(if)

(iif)

structure for all Directors and senior management remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors and senior management;

(i)

(iif)

ZBRERE - AR ERFMBR M
RIN—EERBEAZRAEZREF RME
EEELEE

R2EZBEQ/EXBNLBRR @
A RHLEE IR B 2 FrNE RS

ERNATEZRREEEAR ZHMN
8 MEESFLES

(iv)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Non-  (iv) WIEATEZ Z2HM MESSELHE
executive Directors; =3
(v)  consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment ~ (v) EELE AT X MHEH S - BN E O

and responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group;

FMBE  ARAEERE BB R
PG
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(vi)  review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(vii) review and approve compensation arrangements, relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

(viii) ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the
Reporting Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held.
Attendance of the meeting has been disclosed on page 45 of this report.

During the Reporting Year, the Remuneration Committee members
reviewed (i) the bonus distribution proposal of the senior management for
PFM Business for the year ended 31 December 2019; (ii) the salary revision
proposal for general staff of ISP Business for the year ended 31 December
2020; (iii) the remuneration packages of the newly appointed Acting
Managing Director for ISP Business; (iv) the salary reduction and
subsequent adjustment for senior management of ISP Business; (v) the
one-off performance bonus for Managing Director for PFM Business; and
(vi) recommended the aforesaid matters to the Board for approval.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
senior management by band for the Reporting Year is set out below:

o) RERIEARTEEREBERAR
BER B RS L BT S E B %
BRI+ DAREIR LB (SR 4 I —
B ERERANER B BENE
AFAE  FRBZ

(i) AR RAEREFITRKRE MR EXE
PERESMEROEBER S - UER
ZERHEAOGR B HREES
WER—B ERBENEREEER
54

(vii) FEREFNESIEEMERATFSE
BEEHH B -

HWNEESEBFELRIT NGRS
FE CFHEESETTIAERE HEEH
ZIERBAARTRE S 45 BIKEE ©

i

RBEFE  HTNEZESKNECRTVWER
RMEEEESBEEABHE2019F12A
31 BIEFEREAL DR E ¢ (i) = NS &0 RF
PRIEE %/ —ME TEZE2020F12 8318 1E
FENFMARER  (WFEEERNEH R
FoRIE B £ ERESBLENFH AR © (v)
FAEEARMESEHRIEEEBSEEEAED
G NEBNRARE  WVHERBEEEFEBSE
FRLI|BH—RMRIBILL R giitEE
MEBRAESSELEBEZ -

RIBEEEATRZ TR EBISE - AT
B EEEABRBERS FENHIE
Al

Number of
individuals
Within the band of 48 B F A A8
up to HK$1,000,000 551,000,000 TEEL LA T 11
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 7S 1,000,001 7T 2 & 2,000,000 7T 6
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 751K 2,000,001 7T 28 % 3,000,000 7T 1
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Remuneration Policy of the Group

The Group sets out its remuneration policy by making reference to the
prevailing market conditions and benchmark of the industry and
formulating an appropriate performance-based reward system, so as to
ensure that the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives of
the highest calibre, which is essential to the successful leadership and
effective management of the Group. The performance measures are
balanced between financial and industrial comparatives. The components
of remuneration package may consist of basic salary, allowances, benefits-
in-kind, fringe benefits including medical insurance and contributions to
pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus, participation
in a share option scheme or long-term rewards.

The remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company are determined by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board by reference to their respective
duties and responsibilities in the Group, individual performance,
achievement of the Group's targets and the prevailing market terms in the
industry.

The remunerations of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
approved by the Board with the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee by reference to their duties and responsibilities in the Group,
time involvement and the prevailing market situation.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four Directors, a majority
of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. The members of the
Nomination Committee during the Reporting Year and up to date of this
report were:

Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man (Chairman)

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho

Mr. Lau Man Tak

Mr. To Chun Wai (appointed with effect from 1 March 2021)

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (resigned with effect from 23 December 2020)

The authority and duties of the Nomination Committee are set out in its
specific written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the

Nomination Committee is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ALl A~ N

TEEARSE

REE 2 HMBUR

AEEGEEEFMBERRE2ZERTRL
TREFEE  YHE - ERRRHBBNAERE
HIE - ARERAKERERS - BELABAR
BB H  AIRNRERBEREEAREZA
A e EETRANISHEEBYBOUARRITE
BRAREMRE REIGFE - FMFE8 2 AN
Mo BREAHS R BWREA - K
B (BB RRR SRR S 1) RAENBE
TEAL - 2 HEBRERT SRR B ERE A -

ARAPTEERSEBEEEABZHMTET
MFEMEZEEREETERL2EREZANEE
BMZBERELT  BARR AKEREZE
BRIER R ENE R 2 TG RFIRETE ML -

BIMFATESTZHMIAESTEREFME
Beris IRSEZESINAREZBE
KRB - PR B R ERTORERLE -

REZEESE
REZESANAMBESMAK - WBILIEH
TEEHZH RREFEREEAHREAR
B RRLZBEKENT

A (EE)

KEERAE

B Edk A

MIERE LA (B2021 43 81 BREERE)
= EEB LT (82020912 A 23 BiLEHT)

REZBEZERMERFN T E S HBE
BEAN - - REREGZABEREEEEXDE
FNARF R FAABUEA -

—ETFFHR/  ARRERAERLTE




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\M_I/_/\—f\-\ #&m

EXRE

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for formulating REEZEZE€TEZARHITREBELRTEYE
nomination policy and leading the process of identifying and nominating ~ K&3EZE & (7:E E’Jﬂﬁ o HEREHEMANT

suitable candidates. Its duties are summarised below:

()

(i)

review the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, skills,

ELBFRVEFTENARE HERS
T (BRETRRMER - Fi&& - R

knowledge, professional experience and length of service) of the HEES EK- K- A BEL
Board at least annually and make recommendations on any SRR EEAE) - WL EMEIEL &

proposed changes to the Board to complement the Group’s
corporate strategy;

identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships based on the objective
criteria with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board;

(if)

SRR EEEAE S BITAE
B 2

REXBRENERESTS L ITIENLT
B eARAEERAETIESENX
BMAL  UHEREABALTHEE
EYRMREFSRLES

(i) taking into account the Group's corporate strategy and mix of skills, (i) ~ &8&T [z 2 £ [ ¢ 1 22 55 B8 LA 1% ok R P 28
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future, to make BRReE - A KR kZiAS B

recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive;

BEERARETZEUARES (LERE
fERATHARE) BETEaMEREERE
EoRHER

(iv)  assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors — (iv) =PSB IERITE S 2 B RERE
and review the Independent Non-executive Directors’ annual SN IERITESEES |$ﬁﬁf”ﬁ¢fﬁ§w g
confirmations on their independence; and make disclosure of its W B R ME )NIRBR A ERAE
review results in the Corporate Governance Report;

(v)  regularly review the time required from a Director to perform his/her  (v) EEIBN EERBITESEME N L 2 &
responsibilities and report to the Board of their findings; and M- TREEGERERNER &

(vi) review the policies on both the Board Diversity Policy and  (vi) 7(_{2:;5 ENAY RS- R A
Nomination Policy, as appropriate; and review the measurable ERREABEREZHR  RBRIESEEAR
objectives that the Board had set for implementing the Board BITEEEXNE L LB Ml E 2 7]
Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and FFERRMERER LX&EE(({E%
make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate Governance EORMEIANBEERFIER -

Report annually.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the 1EZEZE@BEFFEERVRIT—REH - NBE

Reporting Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held. Attendance & - 22 E8@ BT T1A8H - H/FEes

of the meeting has been disclosed on page 45 of this report. ZIERE R ImEF 45 B EE o
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The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy. Pursuant to the Board
Diversity Policy, the Board shall consider the benefits of diversity when they
review the Board composition. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to skills, background, experience, knowledge, expertise, culture,
independence, race, gender, and other qualities of Directors. All Board
appointments will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy and review the Board composition under diversified
perspectives annually to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
achievement of the strategic objectives and sustainable development of
the Company.

The Board has also adopted the Nomination Policy which sets out the
selection criteria and nomination procedures to identify, select and
recommend candidates for directorships.

Selection Criteria

When assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate to the Board
regarding the appointment or re-appointment of any existing director(s) of
the Board, the Nomination Committee should consider the following
factors:

(i) The candidate should be of good character, integrity and competent
to act as director of the Company;

(i) The candidate should possess the skills, knowledge, and experience
in the commercial and professional fields which are relevant to the
principal business of the Group;

(i) The candidate should be able to devote sufficient time and attention
to the Board; and

(iv)  The candidates should be considered on merit, against objective
criteria and with due regard to the diversity perspectives set out in
the Board Diversity Policy of the Company.
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Nomination Procedures

()

)

(iif)

(iv)

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a
meeting, and invite nominations of candidates from Board members
(if any), for consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may also nominate candidates for its
consideration;

The Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate due diligence
in respect of appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board,
prior to making recommendations for the Board's consideration and
approval;

The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the
Board for its consideration and recommendation in respect of re-
appointment of any existing Director(s) of the Board, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting;

The procedures for shareholders’ nomination of any proposed
candidate for election as a director should follow the “Procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a director of the
Company” which are available on the Company’s website; and

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.

During the Reporting Year, the Nomination Committee members (i)

reviewed and considered the structure, size, diversity and composition of

the Board; (i) assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; (iii) considered the re-election of directors at the AGM; and (iv)
recommended the aforesaid matters to the Board for approval.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and
one senior management member of the Group. The members of the
Executive Committee during the Reporting Year were:

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho (Chairman of the Board)

Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man (Deputy Chairman of the Board and
Managing Director for PFM Business)

Mr. Gary Tse Chi Chiu (Appointed as Acting Managing Director
for ISP Business with effect from 7 May 2020)

Mr. David Chan Tat Wai (Resigned as Acting Managing Director
for ISP Business with effect from 7 May 2020)

The authority and duties of the Executive Committee are set out in its
specific written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the
Executive Committee is available on the website of the Company. The
principal duties of the Executive Committee are, pursuant to the
Authorisation Matrix/Limits of Authority of each subsidiary, to approve
tender submission and/or payment requisition when the amount of tender
or payment exceeds certain limits, to approve banking matters, the issue of
guarantees to third party customers, the issue of shares under share option
scheme and promotion or appointment of senior management at
operation level, and other duties delegated by the Board from time to time.

The Executive Committee shall meet as and when required depending on
business and operation needs. Members' attendances would depend on
the importance of the matters to be transacted. During the Reporting Year,
the Executive Committee held 14 meetings to discharge their duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate governance
duties as below:

(i) develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has in place the procedures for Directors to seek an independent
professional advice if necessary.

DELEGATION TO MANAGEMENT

The monitoring of the day-to-day business operations of the Group and
the implementation of the business plans and strategies adopted by the
Board are performed by the senior management led primarily by the
Managing Directors of the Company.

The Group has also organised a management meeting for senior
management and other relevant staff on a monthly basis to review
business operations with significant issue, review the financial and business
performance against the budget approved by the Board, and review the
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

Risk Management Committee

With a view to further enhancing risk management at all levels, a Risk
Management Committee, as approved by the Audit Committee and the
Board, has been established to assume the responsibility for identifying,
evaluating, assessing and managing risk areas from company-wide
perspective. The Risk Management Committee comprises senior
management and corporate managers of the Group. Its findings and
recommendations are reported to the Audit Committee.
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Risk Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for establishing, maintaining and
evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve
business objective, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. To ensure systematic
coverage of all auditable areas and effective deployment of resources, an
every 3-year internal audit (“lA”) plan with reference to the risk assessment
results has been formulated and approved by the Audit Committee. During
the Reporting Year, the IA plan focused on the examination of the financial
and treasury management, management of litigation and claims,
procurement control and compliance with applicable rules and
regulations. Subsequent meetings were conducted to update the IA plan
in order to reflect the major changes in the organisational structure and
business objectives, review the IA reports and highlight the more
significant issues identified from the IA reviews and follow-up actions
taken. Meetings between the head of IA function and senior management
are conducted monthly to stay current with market developments and
changes in the business strategy.

Management is responsible for setting the appropriate tone from the top,
performing risk assessments, and owning the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls. The associated policies and procedures
for risk management and internal controls, which are properly documented
and communicated to staff, are designed to help ensure that the Group's
assets are safeguarded against unauthorised use or disposition; relevant
rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with; complete,
accurate and reliable financial and accounting records are maintained; and
key risk factors including operational, financial, market competition,
corporate cultural and reputation, safety and environmental compliance
and regulatory compliance risks which may impact the Group’s
performance are appropriately identified and managed.

To ensure the risk management process is consistent with the best

practice, the Directors review the existing practice, and their suggestions
will be incorporated into the Group's risk management framework in due
course.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ALl A~ N

TEEARSE

B ke E

EXER2RAERY  #RURKENEAEE
ZRBRER R AR IR RS2 RN KR
EHAEERGEEEEMIEERAREENES
BRZEE - WEARERBRRAKIBRE
HEEMIERERE - REERAFEHWEBEEMN
BRI EZEE - WHBHHBEER - 2RER
A ERFIEE=F XA BEZ ([ RHE
ZFE ThERZESHE - RREF
B AMELAETREPBLEBER
A REEIE - RBEH g TER AR &
MROIEER - RRBITMNERE EEHMAE
ZETE > ARRABBRE X B RNERE
B BRANEZRES  LEHBEHASER
W BER AR E 2 E KA R RETT
B AERBRETIERSRERES ART
% NEEMSERIEBRBEEB RN

EEEAENIBEREEER  HITRER
iy~ WERET ~ B MRS - BRERE
RABEE 2 BB R EEFEFZEEHLC
BUEETET - ZFHRRLEF S EHBHE
RAGBEETSEARAKCRE T RERRE
& BRAAIRROEKERET  UBERE
FTRCERIESTE - R N ] SEMURTT ¢ A KT RE
FEAKERENEE MK THEHEFE A
A(ERBE 22 NREARMEEARA
REFBRBRRARGEZ RERIRERE -

RERRREEEFEKERH B EFF
BIERE MV - EMEZRBNEE R RAA
AEEE R EIEER

—ETFFHR/  ARRERAERLTE




058

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\M_I/_/\—h-\

IExXE #&m

The Group's risk management framework comprises the following key
features:

(i) A distinct organisational structure for different responsible parties
with defined authority, responsibilities and risk management roles;

(i) The Board sets forth the proper risk management culture and risk
appetite for the Group, evaluates and determines the level of risk
that the Group should take and monitor regularly;

(i) The Risk Management Committee facilitates the risk assessment
process and timely communication to the Audit Committee and the
Board. Also, it ensures key business and operational risks being
properly identified and managed; and

(iv) A Risk Management Policy has been established to provide a
framework for the identification, analysis, evaluation, treatment,
monitoring and reporting of key risks at all levels across the Group to
support the achievement of the organisation’s overall strategic
objectives.

Identified potential risks are evaluated using appropriate qualitative and
quantitative techniques and risk responses (i.e. accept, reduce, transfer and
avoid) are formulated, which are consistent with the Group's risk appetite.
Risks are assessed based on a risk assessment matrix that helps to rank the
risks into four risk levels (i.e. Extremely High, High, Medium and Low) and to
prioritise risk management effort to determine the appropriate risk
mitigation plans.
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Internal Control

The Group has an IA function, which plays a major role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Group, to conduct independent reviews of the
adequacy and effectiveness of its risk management and internal control
system and report the review results regularly to the Board through the
Audit Committee.

To ensure systematic coverage of all auditable areas and effective
deployment of resources, an every 3-year IA plan with reference to the risk
assessment results has been formulated and approved by the Audit
Committee. During the Reporting Year, the IA plan focused on the
examination of the financial and treasury management, management of
litigation and claims, procurement control and compliance with applicable
rules and regulations. Subsequent meetings were conducted to update
the IA plan in order to reflect the major changes in the organisational
structure and business objectives, review the IA reports and highlight the
more significant issues identified from the IA reviews and follow-up actions
taken. Meetings between the head of IA function and senior management
are conducted monthly to stay current with market developments and
changes in the business strategy.

The Group is fully aware of its obligation of handling and dissemination of
inside information under the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”). The Group
has a set of procedures and controls in place to preserve the confidentiality
of inside information relating to the Group. All Board members and senior
management, who are likely to possess the Group’s inside information
because of their offices or employments in the Group, are bound by Model

Code. In addition, every employee is required to follow the guidelines of
the code of conduct and the staff handbook to keep unpublished inside
information strictly confidential.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

During the Reporting Year, the Board has conducted a review on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group through discussion with the Audit Committee, which covers the
major control procedures in areas of business/strategy, operational,
financial, compliance, corporate reputation and regulatory risk, and was
satisfied with the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The changes in the nature and extent of significant risks faced by the
Group and response plans to changes in its business and the external
environment have been evaluated. The scope and quality of ongoing
monitoring of risks and the internal control systems have been assessed.

The crisis over the novel coronavirus outbreak emerged since December
2019. The coronavirus transmission also exploded in Hong Kong over the
last year and a 4th wave of the outbreak in Hong Kong occurred in the mid
of November 2020. The coronavirus transmission occurred in Hong Kong
and other countries and it interrupted the progress of works (including the
supply of raw materials and labor). The Group experienced certain business
disruptions during the period as some construction works had been forced
to delay for completion due to the outbreak which impacted on the supply
of workforce and the ordinary operations of our customers or suppliers.
Some tender interviews, commencement of new contracts as well as the
existing contracts renewal were delayed given a concern over personal
healthcare. Manpower and resource allocation was arranged and various
hygiene instructions were issued in the headquarters and support the site
operation. The PFM team increased the operation expenditure to purchase
the hygiene equipment (e.g. face mask and sanitary tools) and employ
extra manpower for cleaning services in outbreak areas. The ISP team re-
scheduled the working sequence and prepared to claim extension of time
to mitigate the financial loss. The financial performance of car park as well
as repair and maintenance business were seriously affected because of
slow resumption on business activities in Q4 2020.

In 2020, no significant areas of concern that may affect the Group to
achieve strategic goals have been identified. The Board considered that the
risk management and internal control systems are functioning effectively
and adequately.
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In addition, confirmation from management on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group was received
during the Reporting Year.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experiences, training requirements and budgets of
the Group's accounting, financial reporting and IA functions.

Integrity Monitoring Committee

Each of our staff is given clear guidelines and codes of standard in the staff
handbook with integrity being put as the first and foremost code of
conduct. A whistle-blowing-type channel which is implemented by the
Integrity Monitoring Committee is to provide staff and contractors a
channel to report issues which might cause a significant financial loss to, or
an adverse impact on the image of the Company. The Integrity Monitoring
Committee comprises the Senior Quality Assurance Manager as chairman
of the Committee, the Financial Controller and the Senior Human
Resources Manager as members.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group on a going concern basis.
With the support of the accounting and finance functions led by the
Finance Director of the Group, the Directors have ensured that the
consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Year have been
prepared in accordance with appropriate accounting policies applied, if
any, consistently save for those new and amended accounting standards
as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the interim and annual financial statements, announcements
and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the
Directors aim at presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group's position and prospects. Financial information
put before the Board for approval by management is accompanied by
sufficient explanation to enable the Directors to make an informed
assessment.

The independent auditor’s report, which contains the statement of the
external auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the Company’s
financial statements, is set out in pages 90 to 92 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees paid/payable to BDO Limited, the Company’s external auditor, for
services rendered for the Reporting Year are set out as follows:

BRI <

BERSEFE AR FINNEZBEEBILE
BREAMEBHAERIAERREME
/N ERHEIIMT

Fees paid/payable

B ENER

HKS'000

Services rendered FriR AR 75 BT T
Audit services EAZ RS 1,220
Non-audit services IEEZ RS 148

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as
well as communications among Board members. The Company Secretary
complied with all the qualifications under the Listing Rules. The Company
Secretary is Mr. Eric Chan Kwong Leung, who is engaged and appointed by
the Company from an external secretarial services provider. The primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man, an
Executive Director.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

In addition to publishing interim and annual reports, announcements,
circulars, business updates and press releases, updates on the Group'’s
developments are also provided on the Company’s website which is
updated in a timely manner.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries from Shareholders are welcome through the following channels
to the Company:

(i) by post to the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of business at
8/F., KT336, 334-336 Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong

(i) by telephone at (852) 3471 2340

(i) by facsimile transmission to (852) 2751 8784

(iv) by email at investor@synergis.com.hk

(v)  on the Company’s website at www.synergis.com.hk under “IR

Contact” of “Investor Relations”
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An AGM is deemed as a forum for Shareholders to communicate directly
with the Board members. Notice of 20 clear business days together with
detailed agenda is given to Shareholders for the AGM and 10 clear business
days for all special general meetings of the Company. Separate resolution
is proposed at the AGM on each substantially separate issue, including the
election of each individual Director.

Procedures for Convening a Special General Meeting by
Shareholders

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any Shareholder holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at a general meeting shall have the right, by written requisition
served to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special general
meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Any vote of Shareholders at a general meeting
must be taken by poll. The chairman of meeting will explain the poll voting
procedures at the relevant general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at General
Meetings

The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(i) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the
requisition; or

(ii) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 8/F., KT336, 334-
336 Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company
would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and the
Shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses incurred in
giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under Sections
79 and 80 of the Companies Act of Bermuda once valid documents are

received.
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CONTINUOUS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT TERASCEERKT

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance =R EAGGEBIRITCEEAKE  BIER
enhancement including giving closer attention to any regulatory changes Y188 E(E (AR EH) - BhiF—E2ENE
with a view to maintaining a corporate culture built on ethics and integrity R EA B E XL RIEHKRENEEE

and increasing Shareholder value as a whole. (=

INVESTOR RELATIONS REERBRE

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents  RIREFE » AR RIMASERE FITES K
during the Reporting Year. BE) o
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HIGHLIGHTS OF 2020 ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

2020 FIRIE -

Sustainability is at the core of what we do and is a driver for our continuous
growth. As a responsible corporate citizen, we are committed to
integrating sustainability into every facet of our Company. By building
business resilience, providing quality services to our customers, prioritising
our community and peoples’ safety and well-being, as well as protecting
our natural environment, we aim to contribute to a world that provides a
viable future for all.

The Company's standalone 2020 Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG") report has been prepared to communicate our sustainability-related
visions, commitments, policies and performances. It adheres to the “comply
or explain” and “recommended disclosure” provisions of the ESG Reporting
Guide under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

Below are some key highlights of the Company's 2020 ESG performance:

HENERBRERE

AFERRERATENZL - BEEMATE
BRNB - ERARENEEAR - RAIR
ARBAFBERRBARMARNSTH B
BENEBERN  REPRHEEERY - &
FERLRMARMN L 2 EEU A KR ER P
MBARE  RABORBAE AREAITR
REOHE SR EL BRE

ARBBILA2020FRE - w2 HER (R
B AgEER RS EEENFERRME
BRFES AR BERRRE - HBFHIA
ERAIM 27 IR - L EEERREIE
S| [TEFHEERE] & [EEEE] 15 -

TREHIARDNR Z 2020FKE - @ RER

BMETHE

Sustainability at Synergis

Invited stakeholders to rank and prioritise the relevance and importance of the United

SENTHERE Nations Sustainable Development Goals to the Group to align with international
practices as well as provide a more comprehensive picture for the Board.
REFREfEZENTIRHEZENEATESS  RAIBFHOERTHE
ERABHAEENEBREE REELETIRLIEF

Business Continued to uphold strong corporate governance and proper risk management

XBEE whilst maintaining ethics and integrity.
EE2HRMANNARERNEENRERER - ANERBEEMESR -

Customers Harnessed technological innovation to optimise workflow and efficiency as well as

B/ improve overall automation such that quality and satisfaction are guaranteed.
MARMEIF KRB TERBEMEEX  WAHEEEEEL  EHMEREEMN
WEE -

People Prioritised employee health and safety by adopting novel coronavirus prevention and

ATER mitigation measures, increasing the use of e-learning platforms, and transitioning

from OHSAS 18001 into the new ISO 45001.
BERKANAEERFESENMERE G ENEFEELFeNFERALR
OHSAS 18001 @& B FTHY 150 45001 - B EZERE ITHIREMNEZ S ©

Community

Participated in various volunteering and fundraising events under the theme “Sharing

e ER Love” to encompass our Company's heartfelt care and concern towards the community.
SMTUATDEE | REENZTER IRBANETES - URERMIAIET
SHEHNBEMEL -

Partners Collaborated closely with our supply chain partners to enhance their sustainability

BHEE performance.

EEMNOHREESIERHERSE  MEFTHAFERRRR -

Environment
RIREHE

Installed solar panels at our managed properties to contribute towards a clean energy
future.

ERMEBRYERLZETABREEBR - AMEERARFEIRAARNR -

Please visit the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange to  Z0EX & AN A E)Z 2020 FER3% - L& RE AR
download the full version of the Company's 2020 ESG report.

SR BUAR T REZHOE -

—ETFFHR/  ARRERAERLTE




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Directors present the report and the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Reporting Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries are the provision of
PFM Business and ISP Business in Hong Kong, China and Macau. Particulars
of the principal wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 7 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the business review information are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 12 to 27 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Directors consider that environmental protection is essential to the
long-term development of the Group and will constantly improve
management practices so as to minimise waste, maximise efficiencies and
reduce the Group's negative environmental impact on the environment.

For details, please refer to the Company’s standalone “2020 Environmental,
Social and Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with such requirements. The
Group has been allocating system and staff resources to ensure ongoing
compliance with relevant rules and regulations.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, China and Macau while the Company itself was
incorporated in Bermuda and listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.
Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong, Bermuda, China and Macau.
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To ensure compliance with the Competition Ordinance, the Group has
conducted trainings for staff. The Group also steps up measures to increase
safety awareness amongst the management and staff to prevent accidents
in contravention with safety regulations.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Various risks that the Company may face have been disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report and the Notes to the Financial Statements
on pages 57 to 61 and pages 133 to 141 of this annual report respectively.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group ensures all staff are reasonably remunerated and the Company
regularly reviews and improves its policies on remuneration and benefits,
training, occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A customer
complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive, analyse and study
complaints and make recommendations on remedies with the aim of
improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a fair and
strict appraisal of its suppliers.

For details, please refer to the Company’s standalone “2020 Environmental,
Social and Governance Report”.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 93; and the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at
31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of financial
position on pages 94 to 95; and statement of financial position and change
in equity of the Company are set out on note 32 to the financial
statements.

The Board did not recommend the payment of interim dividend for the
period ended 30 June 2020 (2019: nil). To preserve funds for the operation
and business development of the Company, the Board did not recommend

the payment of final dividend for the Reporting Year (2019: nil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to share the Company's profits and
for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account,
among others, the Group’s actual and expected financial performance,
operating results, cash flow, financial condition and capital requirements,
Shareholders’ interests, contractual covenants, general business conditions
and strategies, possible effects on the Group's creditworthiness, state of
economy and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Such declaration and recommendation of dividends shall be determined at
the sole discretion of the Board and are subject to the restrictions under
the Companies Act of Bermuda, the Bye-laws and any other applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

The Company will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/
or modify the Dividend Policy. The Dividend Policy shall not constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company and there is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount in any given period.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the Reporting Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity on page 96 and in note 32 to the financial statements
respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the operating results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years and for the Reporting Year is set out
on page 181. This summary does not form a part of the financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the Reporting Year are set out
in note 16 and note 17 to the financial statements respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2020, calculated
under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to HK$15,506,000
(31 December 2019: nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws although
there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho (Chairman)
Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director for
PFM Business)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Man Tak

Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man

Mr. To Chun Wai (appointed with effect from 1 March 2021)

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen* (resigned with effect from 23 December 2020)

f Dr. Wong Yun Kuen resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman
of Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee with effect from 23 December 2020 as he would like to devote
more time to his other business engagement. He had confirmed that he had no
disagreement with the Board and there was nothing relating to his resignation that
needed to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders or the Stock Exchange.

The profiles of Directors who are in office as at the date of this report are
set out on pages 28 to 32 of this annual report.
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The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, and considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the terms of the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Director who has served on the boards of directors of the subsidiaries
of the Company as at the date of this report was Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man.

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2), Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho
and Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man shall retire by rotation at the 2021 AGM, and
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the 2021 AGM.

In accordance with Bye-laws 86(2), Mr. To Chun Wai shall hold office only
until the next following general meeting of the Company. He, being
eligible, has offered himself for re-election at the 2021 AGM.

Save for the aforesaid, the other remaining Directors would continue in
office.

The proposed re-election of Mr. To Chun Wai as Independent Non-
executive Director was made in accordance with the Nomination Policy of
the Company and took into account a wide range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of
services and independency, with due regard of the diversity perspectives
as set out under the Board Diversity Policy of the Company.

The Board had assessed and reviewed the written confirmation of
independence of Mr. To Chun Wai based on the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is satisfied that as at the date of
this report, Mr. To Chun Wai remained independent in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is also of the view that Mr. To Chun Wai would bring to the
Board his own perspective, skills and experience, and can contribute to the
Company. The Board believes that his re-election as the Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company would be in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at 2021 AGM have
entered into a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Save for the agreements disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, there were no transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance in relation to the Group'’s business to which
the Company’s subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which any Director and the Director’'s connected party
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of or at any time during the Reporting Year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes of the
information of the Directors, subsequent to the date of the interim report
of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2020, required to be
disclosed, are set out below:

Mr. Lau Man Tak

Re-designated from chairman and executive director to director of
TEM Holdings Limited (stock code: 8346) (Note) with effect from 13
January 2021.

Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man

Appointed as Managing Director of Alliance Capital Partners Limited,
a company engaging in advising on corporate finance and dealing
in securities, with effect from 1 December 2020.

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of TEM Holdings

Limited (stock code: 8346) (Note) with effect from 13 January 2021.

Note: The listing of its shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange was withdrawn on 12 January
2021 by way of privatisation.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”,
“Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar Rights” and “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company — Convertible Preference Shares” of this report,
the Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during
the Reporting Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-law 168, every Director or other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur
in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto, and no Director or other officers shall be liable for any loss,
damages or misfortune which may happen to or be incurred by the
Company in the execution of the duties of his/her office or in relation
thereto, provided that this Bye-law shall only have effect in so far as its
provisions are not avoided by the Companies Act of Bermuda. The
Company has maintained Directors and officers liability insurance during
the Reporting Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Analysis of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2020 is set out in note 22 and note 25 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required: (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the 2013 AGM, the shareholders approved the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option
Scheme as required to be disclosed under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
are set out below:

Summary of the Share Option Scheme
(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is set up for the purpose of recognising
and motivating the contribution of the Eligible Persons (as defined
below) to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any
Invested Entity (as defined below).

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme

Eligible persons entitled to participate in the Share Option Scheme
(the “Eligible Persons”) include:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries, or any entity in which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries holds an equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”); including any executive director of the Company, any
of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity and any employee
employed or to be employed by the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity, whether in Hong Kong or
in The People’s Republic of China ("PRC");
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(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

any shareholder of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity who
has, in the opinion of the Board, made contribution to the
business growth of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods and/or services to the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any business collaborator, business consultant, joint venture
or business partner, or technical, financial, legal and other
professional advisers engaged by the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
directors or the substantial shareholders of the Company, any
of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity who has, in the
opinion of the Board, made contribution to the business
growth of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity; or

the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects) of which includes any of the above-mentioned
persons,

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the options may

be granted to any company wholly owned by one or more of the
above Eligible Persons.
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(c)

(d)

Maximum number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme

At 2013 AGM, the scheme mandate limit for the Share Option
Scheme to allow the Company to issue a maximum of 33,200,000
options under the Share Option Scheme, representing
approximately 7.81% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company (i.e. 424,850,000 ordinary shares) as at 23 March 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, there were no outstanding share options
and there were not any share options granted, exercised, cancelled
and lapsed under the Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this
report, the maximum number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 29,600,000, representing approximately
6.97% of the total number of issued shares of the Company (i.e.
424,850,000 ordinary shares) as at 23 March 2021.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the Share
Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in any
12-month period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares already issued to such Eligible Person under all the
options previously granted to him/her which have been exercised
and, issuable to him/her under all the options previously granted to
him/her which are for the time being subsisting and unexercised,
exceeding 1% of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
last date of such 12-month period unless being approved by the
shareholders of the Company in a general meeting.

Where any proposed grant of option to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would
result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) and to be granted to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of the proposed grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total number of
shares in issue for the time being; and

(c)

(d)
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(e)

(f)

(9)

(i) the aggregate value of which, based on the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation
sheet on the date of the proposed grant, is in excess of HK$5.0
million, such proposed grant of option shall be subject to the
prior approval of the shareholders of the Company at a
general meeting in which all connected persons for the time
being of the Company (if any) (except where any connected
person intends to vote against the proposed grant of option
and his/her intention to do so has been stated in the circular)
shall abstain from voting at such general meeting and at
which any vote taken shall be taken on a poll.

Period for and payment on acceptance of an option

An offer for grant of an option must be accepted by an Eligible
Person (and by no other person) in respect of all the shares for which
the offer is made. Acceptance shall be made by such Eligible Person
by signing and returning the duplicate of the offer letter together
with the payment of a consideration of HK$1.00 for such grant to the
Company within the time period specified in the offer letter.

The basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any option granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board and
notified to each grantee and shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the nominal value of a share; (i) the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date on which
an offer for grant of an option (the “New Offer Date”) is made to an
Eligible Person; and (iii) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the New Offer Date
which must be a business day, provided that the subscription price
shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before exercise

There is no minimum holding period for which an option must be
held before exercise pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. The
commencement date of the period during which an option may be
exercised shall be specified by the Board in the relevant offer letter.
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(h) Remaining life

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing on 17 June 2013, the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme, unless otherwise terminated in accordance
with the rules of the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the Reporting Year, the Company has the Share Option Scheme
pursuant to which options may be granted, inter alia, to the Directors.

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Scheme” above, at no time during the
Reporting Year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their
spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors (excluding Independent Non-executive Directors)
nor their respective associates had any interest in business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group for the Reporting Year.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

Convertible Preference Shares

The Company issued and allotted 80,000,000 convertible preference shares
("CPSs"), as part of the consideration for the acquisition of ISP Business in
late 2012. The CPSs may be convertible into the ordinary shares at HK$0.75
per share subject to satisfaction of the minimum public float requirements
under the Listing Rules. As at 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report, none of the CPSs was converted nor redeemed.
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Convertible Bonds

The Company placed the convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$42 million (the “Convertible Bonds”) on 18 November 2019
pursuant to the placing agreement dated 24 October 2019 (the “Placing”)
by the placing agents to six placees, being individual, corporate investors
who are the independent third parties and are not connected with the
Company as well as its connected persons, whereby the Convertible Bonds
may be convertible into a maximum of 84 million conversion shares based
on the initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per conversion share upon
exercise in full of the conversion rights attaching to the Convertible Bonds.
As at 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, no conversion
share has been issued under the Convertible Bonds which will be due in
November 2021.

The gross and net proceeds from the placing amounted to HK$42 million
and approximately HK$41 million respectively. The net issue price for the
Placing is approximately HK$0.49 per conversion share. The net proceeds
from the Placing were fully used as the general working capital of the
Group according to the purpose of the Placing. The details of the Placing
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 24 October 2019
and 18 November 2019 as well as note 25 to the financial statements in
this annual report.

Save as above and other than the share option scheme described in the
paragraph titled “Share Option Scheme” above, the Company had no
outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at
31 December 2020. There was no issue or exercise of any convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the Reporting Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the Reporting Year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participated in mandatory provident fund schemes in Hong
Kong and in the municipal government contribution scheme in China.
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 4(h)(iii) to the
financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the following person/entity (other than Directors
or chief executive of the Company) had or were deemed or taken to have
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register of interests and short positions of
substantial shareholders (the “Register of Substantial Shareholders”)
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(@) Ordinary Shares
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of interests in the

ordinary total number of

Name of Shareholders Capacity shares held issued shares

HE®T

BEZEER RGBH

RN AW 14 ROBE MOEZEIL

Chu Yuet Wah (“Mrs. Chu”) Interests of controlled corporation (Note (i)) 225,518,633 53.08%

FRAE(ZFLL]) R EEE R (M) (Note (ii)) (FH7E i)

Champ Key Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 225,518,633 53.08%

(“Champ Key") EmEA A (Note (ii)) (B 7% (i)
Notes: it o -

(i) Champ Key being a company wholly-owned by Mrs. Chu is deemed to be a
controlled corporation of Mrs. Chu under the SFO.

(if) There were 424,850,000 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31
December 2020.

0] RIRE S RGP - Champ Key (T L+ 2
EREB 2 AR BERFTR L2 XIEE -

(ii) ANFEZE 2020912 A31 B2 B HITEEBR
&% 7 424,850,000 A% °
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(b) Convertible Preference Shares (b) TFIEBREER
Approximate
Number of percentage of
convertible interests in the
preference total number of
Name of Shareholders Capacity shares held issued shares
HE #&1T
BEZUER RISz
RREE v BERROGEE MHMOEZEIL
Mrs. Chu Interests of controlled corporation (Note (i) 80,000,000 100%
Eyodan RyEEBERER () (Note (ii)) (Bt % Gii))
Champ Key Beneficial owner 80,000,000 100%
BB A (Note (ii)) (PF=E (i)
Notes: BisE
0) The Company issued and allotted 80,000,000 CPSs to Smart Lane Holdings 0} Z8 /A B][A Smart Lane Holdings Limited ([ Smart
Limited (“Smart Lane”), as part of the consideration for the acquisition of ISP Lane] ) 317 K& Bt 8 80,000,000 B A] #% #2482 A%
Business in late 2012. As disclosed in the joint announcement of Champ Key and BRAD + YE AR 2012 F F AR UK IE = 5 8 R
the Company dated 30 November 2016, Champ Key (a company wholly-owned RIE B 7% 2 ZB0 R E o LA Champ Key &
by Mrs. Chu) as the offeror entered into the sale and purchase agreement with ARRATHEA20165 11 A30 B ZHE RS
Smart Lane as the vendor of the sale and purchase of 169,116,777 ordinary BB BFELLE2EHES 2 A A Champ Key
shares and 80,000,000 CPSs. Champ Key being a company wholly-owned by (EEAZHAN) Bomartlane(1E B E B
Mrs. Chu is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mrs. Chu under the SFO. 169,116,777 A% & 38 A% K 80,000,000 f% 7] 85 #2 (&
KRBT B R % - RIBESFRHE
&0 - Champ Key (FZ T2 BB Z A A))
WARRE L L 2 REGIEE -
(ii) There were 80,000,000 CPSs of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2020. (ii) AAREZE 2020612 A31 HZ B BITA R

18 22 A% A% 1% 4 80,000,000 A% °

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors were not B ESCAT# BEE SN - 202012 A31H » &
aware of any persons/entities (other than Directors or chief executive of EWEETEMAL BE(ARAESFHIT
the Company) who/which had or were deemed or taken to have any other ~ BURELRR SN AR TR RABBAR DT HE
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the —~ #AR BEA CEN AR AREZF L HE K
Company as recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders required ~ 158336 KRR T 7 & 2 X ERR B L 2 (£
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO. Hith e ok B ©
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Renewal of Continuing Connected Transactions

The terms of the 2017 General Business Services Master Agreement and
the 2018 ISP Works Master Agreement as well as the annual caps for
continuing connected transactions thereunder expired on 31 December
2019. In order for the Group to continue to provide general business
services and ISP works to Mrs. Chu and/or her associates, the Company and
Mrs. Chu entered into the General Business Services Master Agreement and
the ISP Works Master Agreement on 17 December 2019, each for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022 (both
days inclusive).

During the Reporting Year, the Company and/or its subsidiaries had
entered into the following continuing connected transactions which are
subject to annual review and reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:
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M TNYBETFETRRBEMAEZFEETZK
HRBEENFERERS :

(a) General Business Services Master Agreement (a) —MEBRKEAHZ
Pursuant to the General Business Services Master Agreement dated RIEEHA2019F12 A 17 B —RRER
17 December 2019, Mrs. Chu and/or her associates may engage the RiG#@m:sE TrE Rk SREBE AT
Group to provide general business services. The annual cap for the ZHEAEERRE —REBRYS - BE®R
General Business Services Master Agreement for the Reporting Year LEE —REBRBEHENEE L
was HK$6,000,000. Details of the transaction were summarised below R 57 #6,0000007C o K ZEBER T &R
and disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 BERA AT A2019F12 417 HK
December 2019. NERNIEEE -
Connected Annual  Nature and extent of the
person(s)  Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars Annualcap  consideration  connected person'’s interest
HEAL HEAH HR 3 FELR FERE BEALEGZHEREE
Mrs.Chu  General Business Services The period from 1 January Mrs. Chu and/or her associates to HK$6,000,000 HK$2,952481  Mrs. Chu is a substantial

Master Agreement dated
17 December 2019

Fat B#A20195 128178

Z—REBRI B HE

2020 to 31 December 2022
(both days inclusive)

B2020F1 A1 BEE
202412 A31 B 1LEME
(BEERMA)

engage the Group for providing
the general business services,
including but not limited to,
the property and assets
management, real estate
advisory services, fitting-out
works, renovation works,
general consultancy and
other ancillary services
FRTR/FEBEATRRE
AEBRE—REBRS
BEETRANEREE
BE  BELARSE
RETR BHIR-
— Rk R E B RS

shareholder and controlling
shareholder of the Company
and hence, a connected
person under the

Listing Rules.

AHE6,0000007C B 29524810 FRETARARZEERER
EiRkE - A LETRAT
ZHEAL
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(b) ISP Works Master Agreement

Pursuant to the ISP Works Master Agreement dated 17 December
2019, Mrs. Chu and/or her associates may engage the Group for
providing ISP Works on a non-exclusive basis. The annual cap for the
ISP Works Master Agreement for the Reporting Year was
HKS$8,000,000. Details of the transaction were summarised below
and disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17

(b) ZEARMHRIGHIEE TRAHR

BIEEHA2019F 12 517 BRI = A2 4
REREEIRAHE Ttk
Hig® A\ A ZREAEBIRIEBRELER
HENEMBPSHRIEE TR - BERS
FE - EFARMREHREL I8 :E

migt@%%%mwww:x%ﬁ

December 2019. BN T REZBRARF BHR2019F 12
R17 B RERKEE -

Connected Annual  Nature and extent of the

person(s)  Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars Annual cap consideration  connected person'’s interest

BEAL WHEAH HR 5 FELR FERE BEALEGZHEREE

Mrs.Chu ISP Works Master The period from 1 January Mrs. Chu and/or her associates HK$8,000,000 HK$6,988,509  Mrs. Chu is a substantial

2020 to 31 December 2022
(both days inclusive)

Agreement on
17 December 2019

to engage the Group
for providing ISP Works

It AfA2019%5128178
2 ENEH R
BEIREHE

B2020F1 A1 REE
20212 A31 B 1EEE
(REERMA)

TR/ HEBEAZEARER 80000007t %% 69835097C
REZARMESHRIEE TR

shareholder and controlling
shareholder of the Company
and hence, a connected
person under the
Listing Rules.
FRLRARAZEERRR
ERIRER - Bl A LT
RATZHEBEAL -

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) have
reviewed and confirmed that all the continuing connected transactions
mentioned above conducted in the year were entered into on the
following basis:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the relevant agreements governing these transactions
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements other than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group as above in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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In addition, the auditor of the Company has confirmed to the Board that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
above continuing connected transactions for the Reporting Year:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group where the transactions involve the provision of
services by the Group;

(i)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed in the
respective previous announcements of the Company.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
continuing connected transactions mentioned above.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 38.3% (31 December 2019: 31.9%) of the
Group's total revenue and the revenue attributable to the Group's largest
customer accounted for approximately 11.7% (31 December 2019: 9.0%) of
the Group's total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the year (2019: less
than 30%).

None of the Directors, any of their close associates, or shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital), had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers.

BANK BORROWINGS

The particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020
are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group donated HK$37,000 (2019: HK$53,000) for charitable and other
purposes during the Reporting Year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting
Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions of the Group are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements. In relation to those related party transactions that also
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Group as defined in the Listing Rules, the relevant disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have
been complied with.

PUBLICFLOAT

At the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and to the best of knowledge of its
Directors.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Year
were audited by BDO Limited who has expressed its willingness to offer
itself for re-appointment at the 2021 AGM.

A resolution will be proposed at the 2021 AGM to re-appoint BDO Limited
as the auditor of the Company for the ensuring year and to authorise the

Directors to fix its remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

Kingston Chu Chun Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Synergis
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 93 to 180, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Accounting for construction contracts — including profit
recognition, and contract assets/liabilities; and

Impairment assessment on receivables and contract assets.

ACCOUNTING FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS — INCLUDING
PROFIT RECOGNITION, AND CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Refer to note 7 and note 18 to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised revenue
from construction contracts relating to the interiors and special projects
which totalled approximately HK$375 million. The contract assets and
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$90 million (after provision for
impairment of approximately HK$773,000) and approximately HKS14
million respectively as at 31 December 2020.

The recognition of revenue and cost of sales for the Group'’s construction
contracts is based on the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation.

Progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is
determined by reference to work performed up to the end of the reporting
period. Recognition of profit on contracts requires significant judgement
and estimates of the total contract revenue and costs by management.
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Our response:

We tested the key controls on how management measure the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation, including
controls on estimated total contract revenue and costs, budgeted margins,
progress billings and progress payments of contracts.

Our work in relation to management’s estimated total contract revenue
and costs, and budgeted margins focused on the following procedures in
relation to material construction contracts within the Group:

Discussing with the Group's quantity surveyors and project
managers for the status of the projects, identifying any variations,
claims and provision on loss-making contracts, and obtaining
explanations for fluctuations in margins and the expected recovery
of variations.

Obtaining corroborative evidence, in relation to the above points, by
reviewing the project budgets, external architect’s instructions,
external architect’s certificates of work performed and minutes of
management’s regular internal meetings, on a sample basis.

Inspecting signed contracts to identify the total contract sum and
terms.

Agreeing the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation to the surveyors’ latest valuation and/or
external architects certificates.

Testing the calculations of contract revenue, costs, and construction
contracts assets/liabilities.

Where applicable, inspecting correspondence with the customers
and sub-contractors to obtain audit evidence on variations from
customers, claims from customers and sub-contractors.

We found the assumptions made by management in relation to
construction contracts (including profit recognition and contract assets
and liabilities) are supported by the audit evidence available.
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IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT
ASSETS

Refer to note 18, note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had receivables of approximately HK$270 million (after provision
for impairment of approximately HKS6 million) and contract assets of
approximately HK$90 million (after provision for impairment of
approximately HK$773,000) as at 31 December 2020.

Receivables of the Group comprise mainly receivables in relation to the
Group's business of (i) property and facility management services, and (ii)
interiors and special projects, and contract assets are in relation to the
Group's business of interiors and special projects.

The recoverable amount is estimated by management based on their
specific recoverability assessment on individual counterparties with
reference to the aging profile, historical payment pattern, the past record
of default and assessment of their financial position. Management would
make specific provision against individual balances with reference to the
estimated recoverable amount.

For the purpose of impairment assessment, significant judgements and
assumptions include identification of impairment indicators, the credit risks
of counterparty, the estimated timing and amount of future cash flows for
the determination of the impairment charge.

Our response:

We performed the following procedures in relation to the recoverability of
receivables and contract assets:

Testing the accuracy of aging of trade receivables at year end on a
sample basis.

Obtaining lists of outstanding receivables and contract assets, and
identifying any counterparty with potential financial difficulty
through discussion with management as well as conducting market
research on the industry.
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Assessing the recoverability of the unsettled receivables and contract
assets on a sample basis through our evaluation of management’s
assessment with reference to the credit profile of the counterparties,
historical payment pattern of the counterparties, publicly available
information and latest correspondence with the counterparties and
to consider if any additional provision should be made.

Testing subsequent settlement and contract work certification of
receivables and contract assets respectively after the Reporting Year
on a sample basis.

We found the key judgements and assumptions used by management in
the recoverability assessment of receivables and contract assets to be
supportable based on the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s 2020
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional AR IER AR ERETETHBRESD - &
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We — SBF] T S 2 2B « (R55 7T H BT o B
also: DI

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel
Practising Certificate Number P01220

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEEkEMZEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BHZE2020F12A31BILFE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
KtaF BET T BT T
Revenue U z5 7 1,127,656 1,569,280
Cost of sales and service SHE R AR (1,077,518) (1,426,360)
Gross profit EF 50,138 142,420
Other income H A 8 85,863 3,424
General and administrative expenses —BRITEAX (89,792) (93,371)
Interest expenses FEMAZ 9 (10,514) (7.338)
Net allowances for impairment losses FEWERFR R A HEEZRE
on receivables and contract assets SRR 5 (8,140) (729)
Profit before taxation B 75 A1 42 ) 10 27,555 44,406
Taxation FRI8 13 (13,342) (6,824)
Profit for the year F R 14,213 37,582
Profit for the year attributable to equity 2R RIFR#ERE A AFE(L
holders of the Company F R 14,213 37,582
Profit for the year FRIBER 14,213 37,582
Other comprehensive income/(loss): H 2 (FE) :
Itemns that will not be reclassified Hg g resmoEs
to profit or loss: Bam2IHE ¢
Actuarial (loss)/gain on long service REBBRZEEEZREE
payment liabilities (E18), Wz (1,186) 274
ltems that may be subsequently AHESEHSEEIEE2IER ¢
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating HEFINETFEE 2
foreign operations PEH =% 1,795 (577)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) EREMEEE (EE)
for the year 609 (303)
Total comprehensive income APTREFEAEMER
for the year attributable to equity EHWREEE
holders of the Company 14,822 37,279
Earnings per share attributable to the 22 TR #EFH AELEER
equity holders of the Company R
— basic (HK cents) — HAR(BBAL) 15 3.3 8.8
— diluted (HK cents) — B OB L) 15 2.8 74
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R

As at 31 December 2020
2020512 A31 H

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
MtaE BET T BEET T
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M R NRE 16 18,420 20,387
Investment properties EMZE 17 6,800 7,200
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIAE B 26 1,167 6,294
Prepayment TE IR - 415
Total non-current assets FRBEELEE 26,387 34,296
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets BHEE 18 90,337 312,863
Receivables FEU AR R 19 270,259 336,633
Deposits and prepayments e RIBNFIA 25,272 22,819
Taxation recoverable ] Uiz 2] 55 18 106 1,410
Cash and cash equivalents BE MBS EE 20 205,082 116,873
Pledged bank deposits/time deposits BRI REHE
with original maturities over three WBiE=1EA 2 HER
months 20 10,755 11,471
Total current assets REBEEHAK 601,811 802,069
Current liabilities REBEE
Payables and accruals ERER R ERTEA 21 345,630 506,619
Contract liabilities EHEE 18 13,583 15,892
Bank loans RITER 22 64,000 131,000
Convertible bonds AR E S 25 38,912 =
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 7,652 7,641
Taxation payable FE R IE 6,662 4,231
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 476,439 665,383
Net current assets REEERE 125,372 136,686
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERAEBE RS 151,759 170,982
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Long service payment liabilities REREEEE 24 1,516 1,576
Convertible bonds B (E S 25 - 35,882
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 4,376 2464
Deferred tax liabilities FEETRIEA E 26 385 400
Totalnon-currentliabilites ¥ #iBafFELsE 00000000 | 6277 | 40322
Net assets BEEFE 145,482 130,660
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ArA B AR IR

As at 31 December 2020
2020512 A31 H

2020 2019
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
e BETT BT
Equity attributable to equity holders 7572 B 1A A B R
of the Company
Share capital [N 27 50,486 50,486
Reserves feé {8 28 94,996 80,174
Total equity A 145,482 130,660
The notes on pages 98 to 180 are an integral part of these consolidated 2598 F #1830 B v i A S A MG RE Y
financial statements. 4RI o

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 Bif83 k& B E SN 2021 3 A23BHE - I

March 2021 and were signed on its behalf. HUATATRELES o
Kingston Chu Chun Ho Mandy Hui Suk Man

RETE B

Chairman Director

2 EBEFE

SToTEEH  REBRERLE




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE20200F 12 A3 BIEEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FEREARREREA
Equity Retained
component earnings/
Share Share Merger Exchange of convertible  (accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve honds losses) Equity

TERER  REEN/
Bx  R4EE  oRE 0 ENRRE  cEE@2  (REER)  REER
HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
A%TT  RBTn  A¥TR BBt ARTn AT EETn

At 1 January 2020 R2020F1518 50,486 185,420 1,513 (2,524) 5180 (109,415) 130,660
Profitforthe year EREH - - - - - 14213 14213
Other comprehensive income/foss): ~ Et 2/ (BE) :
Actuarialloss on long sevice RiR%EaE RS
payment liabiliies BE - - - - - (1,186) (1,186)
Exchange differences on REENRBEEL
translating foreign operations EiZEE - - - 1,795 - - 1,795
Totalother comprehensive income/(loss) E 2 E iz /(B18) 258 - - - 1,795 - (1,186) 609
Total comprehensive income PENEEE - - - 1,795 - 13,027 14,822
At31December 2020 R2020812831R 50,486 185,420 1,513 (729) 5,180 (96,388) 145,482
At 1 January 2019 #201951 718 50486 185,420 1513 (1947) - (145,950) 89522
Change in accounting policy SHHREY - - - - - (1321) (1321)
Restated total equity at 1 January 2019 1201941 1 BEVAEE5|
EraR 50486 185420 1573 (1947) - (147271) 8201
Profitfor the year ERgH - - - - = 37582 37582
Other comprehensiveincomefloss: ~ Et2ERE/(BE):
Actuarial gain on long service RERBEaRE R
payment liabilities Wz - - - - - 74 274
Exchange diferences ontranslating ~~ EISHEREL 7
foreign operations EHER - - - (577) - - (577)
Totel other comprehensive income/{oss) £t 2TME /(B1R) 2% - - - (577 - 4 (303)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2Ek%/ (BE)eE - - - (577) - 37856 37279
Issue of convertible bonds EaaRES - - - - 5,180 - 5,180
At31December 2019 R2019128318 50486 185420 1513 (254) 5,180 (109415) 130660

The note on pages 98 to 180 are an integral part of these consolidated S 98ZEFE 180 B Z M AZEHLRATHHREZ
financial statements. HERE S o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BHZE2020F12A31BILFE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
Hitat BETT BT T
Operating activities R
Cash generated from operations R EL 7S 29(a) 177,506 32,597
Interest received BUHE 890 522
Interest paid BEAIF A (7,053) (6,383)
Income taxes paid =N (4,495) (1,231)
Net cash generated from REXBEECZHSTHE
operating activities 166,848 25,505
Investing activities REEK
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  HBERZE
equipment (3,506) (5,040)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE -« ERLRE
plant and equipment Fr i858 302 413
Decrease/(increase) in pledged B (380) BEEEERTT
bank deposits/time deposits TR/ REHBEBSE
over three months =& Az FBFR 716 (605)
Net cash used in investing activities REXKEACEESTEE (2,488) (5,232)
Financing activities R 29(b)
Drawdown of bank loans BARITER 105,000 35,000
Repayment of bank loans EEBITER (172,000) (70,000)
Proceeds from issuance of 7% 1T 7% AR AR E S
convertible bonds, net of Fri5s08 -
transaction costs MR R SR - 40,749
Repayment of principal portion EEHERBEZAREEH S
of the lease liabilities (10,866) (12,297)
Net cash used in financing activities BEXKERAZHLTE (77,866) (6,548)
Net increase in cash RERBRSESHEEMZFHE
and cash equivalents 86,494 13,725
Cash and cash equivalents at the FzBReRkAeEE
beginning of the year 116,873 103,084
Exchange gain on cash W& KA e EHE 2 EL WS
and cash equivalents 1,715 64
Cash and cash equivalents at ERZRERRLEE
the end of the year 205,082 116,873

FRVEF1BALMERZFHRAMBHRERZ
ARCER Y -

The note on pages 98 to 180 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
L E

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda as an exempted company on 4 August 2003.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The Company’s shares were listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 9 October 2003.

The principal business of the Group is principally engaged in the
provision of PFM Business and ISP Business in Hong Kong, China and
Macau.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
Hong Kong dollars (HKS), unless otherwise stated, and were
approved for issue by the Board on 23 March 2021.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised standards — effective 1
January 2020

The HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended
standards, interpretations and amendments to standards that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

—RER

KA FR2003F8 4B RIE1981FH
REQNREEBREAMK I BERE
A Al FE P = 5E Hb U & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11,
Bermuda ° AN A EIfR 7 H 2003 4F 10 H 9 H
EEBHEX AR AR ([BAZFT])
ko

AEEZEZXBANEL  HERR
FEERERHEDERREEIEZBTIA
SEAESINESTZ SEREE S

RS AETIBAEIN - RERE B mER S
BF AR WE R2021F3 238 K&
SEEHETIE -

RINE BB R SRR (EEHY
%8 ))

A=A

(@) RHMHFET LEFTER —R
2020 F1 A1 BHEX

EEEMASEEMEZENAE
B E AT R AR B R AEREFTR]
HAEIERT - REREANERTA -

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Definition of a Business

R 8 5% (1£5])

BB R EERIE 35 (1B5T) HEBHER
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material
EE G ERE 1 KRB BEALTEE

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BN BHREERE 1658 (185T)

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020)

HEE A AANEESEE (R20205F6 A1 B2 &
F 6 ) 2 HART AR )

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
EB G ERIE 395 - HEMEHRELER
B RBEBYERELERE o5 (1BFT)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
FIREERSE

The Group has early adopted the amendment to HKFRS 16.
The adoption of the amendment to HKFRS 16 does not have
any significant impact on current or future periods.

The other new or amended standards that are effective from 1
January 2020 do not have any material impact on the Group's
accounting policies.
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(b) New/revised standards that have been issued but are (b) CEMEMKRERZIT &

not yet effective BT BB MR EEA

The following new/revised standards, potentially relevant to AT EARE BB RERETEE

the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are Rl eI BB IR S ERIE

not yet effective for the current financial year. The Group's "M BRABMBERERRE

current intention is to apply these changes on the date they o AREE BRI EI R R EEA &

become effective. WEAERAZEEE -
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation
e Rl ACCH ) 5 (2020), Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the

Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause?
BESEARDIERD RABEERER KB (2020F) - TR 27
— BRAHSEREREREXNTHAERNDE:

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use?

BB ERE 1657 (BF]) PMERRTE R A2 TG 50IR>

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

BR G ENE 7% (BR]) BREEH — BITalciA?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

BEBRBREEANE 175 R

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

BAEMHREERE 3% (BET) MRz it

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
and HKAS 28 Joint Venture*

BB REENZ10RRAS S REZBEMENFRAECEZRNEERERTE"
RIS 285 (153])

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-20207
BRMBREER(BE]) BBRBRELEN 2018 FE 2020 FAH 2 F R o
Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2!

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16 FIREENE — E[RE
EBGTERNE 0%  BETERS &
F4% - BEYBREENE T -
BB R S LRI oK KA BES
HRBE 1655 (1B3])

" Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
2021 51 A1 BFtAsk 2 & Fth 2 G FE BAfR AR 3

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
R20224F1 A1 BRIASZ &R 2 FEHRER

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
720231 A 1 BRIz & Fin 2 FEERE AR

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

R TETE 2 B sk 2 1& Fa6 6 IR Ak
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020),
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability and explain
that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at
the end of the reporting period. The amendments also
introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that
settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash,
equity instruments, other assets or services.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before Intended
Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, the proceeds from
selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct labour and materials)
or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (e.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).
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HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 will replace HKFRS 4 as a single principle-based
standard for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts in the financial statements of
the issuers of those contracts.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers to the
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
instead of the version issued in 2010. The amendments add to
HKFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the scope
of HKAS 37, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether
at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of
past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to
determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to a
liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition date.
The amendments also add an explicit statement that an
acquirer does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a
business combination.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. When the transaction with an associate or
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method,
any gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a
subsidiary that does not contain a business are recognised in
the profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains
or losses resulting from the remeasurement of retained
interest in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate
or a joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the new associate or joint venture.
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Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of standards,
including:

—  HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which permit a subsidiary that
applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts
reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of
transition to HKFRSs.

—  HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the fees
included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of
HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the entity or the lender on other’s
behalf are included.

—  HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend to remove the
illustration of reimbursement of leasehold
improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any
potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives that might arise because of how lease
incentives are illustrated in that example.

—  HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the requirement to
exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair
value of a biological asset using a present value
technique.
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Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result of
the interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The
amendments complement those issued in November 2020
and relate to (a) changes to contractual cash flows in which an
entity will not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying
amount of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest rate to
reflect the change to the alternative benchmark rate; (b)
hedge accounting in which an entity will not have to
discontinue its hedge accounting solely because it makes
changes required by the Reform, if the hedge meets other
hedge accounting criteria; and (c) disclosures in which an
entity will be required to disclose information about new risks
arising from the Reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these new
pronouncements will result in substantial changes to the
Group's accounting policies and financial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 R 2R BT o

ERAETERE39N  BEEMK
REEAEAS  BEMKREE
BlSE75%  BEAETBRELERNSE9
BREBVMKREEDE 1655 (5
i) RIREENE —FoRER

ZEERT AR AR R EE W E ([ 2
2 ) MEHA R ABREEFRK
BEM LR X EV RS
Z B8 o 2 FASE] ¥ 20204 11
ABH 2B ETRT  RNEA
B @R RECLEL ME
BROANNEERZ EBLIEER
NFAECHMTAZERE MaSE
FERFEARBEREERNE 2
BE) o) EASERE - WERW
EEME RS EZLE - A EEBHA
EREENRERER 2 EEmMF
IEHEHREHEE  RORE &
B ERFERREENEEE
R AR E A EEBEERRE
LR F 2 BRY o

AEBEHAEEEZSH MRS
HAKE 2 SRR MM BHREE

REARE -

—ETFFHR/  ARRERAERLTE




104

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 15w R MY ot

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis, except for investment
properties and certain financial instruments that are measured
at fair values, at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Group. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
Reporting Year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other members
of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, if any, is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from equity.
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(b)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information
obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus the non-controlling interest’s share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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(9]

Joint arrangements

The group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is a
contractual arrangement that confers joint control over the
relevant activities of the arrangement to the group and at least
one other party. Joint control is assessed under the same
principles as control over subsidiaries.

The group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as
either:
Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only the

net assets of the joint arrangement; or

Joint operations: where the group has both the rights to
assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint
arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint arrangements,
the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

The legal form of joint arrangements structured through
a separate vehicle;

The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

Any other facts and circumstances (including any other
contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests joint operations by
recognizing its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and

expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred rights
and obligations.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments and making strategic decisions.

Investment properties

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied by the
companies in the Group.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
property is carried at fair value. Fair value is revaluated bi-
annually based on active market prices, adjusted for any
necessary difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions. Changes in fair values are recognised in
profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in each asset's carrying amount
only when it is probable that there is future economic benefit
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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(9)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method based on estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicles
Furniture and equipment

Over the lease period
25%-33% per annum
10%-50% per annum

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An assets’ carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (note 6(a)).

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Financial Instruments
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is an account receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. An
account receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair
value through OCI. Debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using
the effective interest rate method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial
assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment'’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified
to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in profit
or loss.
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(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on account receivables, contract
assets, and financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that
result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is

then discounted at an approximation to the assets
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
account receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
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Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increase
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Credit-impaired financial assets
The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its

credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days
past due.
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Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the debtor; or

information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised
in profit or loss.
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Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is

represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the
current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount

through a loss allowance account.
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(iii)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair value, net
of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis;
(i) the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their performance evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial liability
contains an embedded derivative that would need to
be separately recorded.
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(iv)

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise, except for the
gains and losses arising from the Group's own credlit risk
which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including account
and other payables, borrowings, and the debt element
of convertible bonds issued by the Group are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense
is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into their respective items on
initial recognition. Conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own
equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the

holder to convert the loan bonds into equity, is included
in equity reserve.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(iv)

B %5 R 2R BT o

VFER®R - MDFEFA
BEMEmEEEQFER
B ATEEHREH L
HRENEERR - EAKE
BEMEERRMELK
@ MERRRIN - mFRE R
BEREMEzEREZS
HEMAEFR D BEERR
Ko RBEZXBERNAFE
BRFEITEERZETER
B EWELZ EATFE -

BB AT SR A &
BRBEKAGENSRAR
B B A R AR B L b B A5 AR
B BRERAKEAETA
BREFHNEHRD 2R
156 PR B R M 2R IR B SH RS
AHE - HENERAXNER
HERR.

1R TR B B I DA R 8
BRE PR B R R S E

B

AR R 2

AEBEMBETERAGBRY
BEME D 2 TR E S
RNFERARDIGERES
BIEE o MHMEREBINA
B E & FRIR & BB A H
MBEEABEEHRE 2K
RAIRATAZTAEE
BN ERKRATA -

RNLHERE - BEHDZ
NP EZFRENATRRER
ZHRITMGHEREFE - 17
Al AR 75 2 P 1S SRR S
ABEHRD 22 FEZR (B
KEARERER LB RE
2 HRR ) Bt AR A o

—ETFFHR/  ARRERAERLTE




118

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 15w R MY ot

(v)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the
balance stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will
be transferred to share capital and share premium.
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
dates, the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be released to the retained earnings. No
gain or loss is recognised upon conversion or expiration
of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.
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(vi)

(h)
(i)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole orin part as
a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at their fair
value on the date the financial liability or part thereof is
extinguished. If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. It
is the Group's policy to forfeit any untaken annual leave
with a specific time period. Subject to regular
assessment of staff turnover rate, a provision will be
made or reversed. Employee entitlements to sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave. A provision is made for the estimated liability up
to the Reporting Year.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus are made for the
estimated liability for incentive bonus as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the Reporting
Year, where there is a contractual obligation or past
practice that has created a constructive obligation, and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Retirement benefit

The Group participates in mandatory provident fund
schemes in Hong Kong which are defined contribution
plan generally funded through payments to trustee —
administered funds. The assets of the schemes is held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the government
in PRC, the subsidiaries in PRC participates in the
municipal government contribution scheme whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible employees.
The municipal government of the PRC is responsible for
the entire benefit obligations payable to the retired
employees. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the scheme is to pay the ongoing
contributions required by the scheme. The Group's
contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred.

Long service payment liabilities

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service
accounts payable on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their services
in the current and prior periods. That benefit is
discounted to determine the present value and
reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group's
retirement plans. The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method by a qualified actuary.
Actuarial gains or losses was charged/credited to the
other comprehensive income.
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(v)

Share option scheme

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the date of grant. Such fair value
is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period
with a corresponding increase in the share option
reserve within equity. Non-market vesting conditions
are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based on
the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of
whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

The Group also operates a phantom share option
scheme which is determined to be a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction with employees. An option
pricing model is used to measure the Group’s liability at
grant date and subsequently at the end of each
reporting period, taking into account the terms and
conditions on which the bonus is awarded and the
extent to which employees have rendered service.

Movements in the liability (other than cash payments)
are recognised in profit or loss.
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(i)

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment
in which it/they operate(s) (the “functional currency”) are
recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions occur.
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at the rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities of
foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity as exchange reserve. Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial
statements on the translation of long-term monetary items
forming part of the Group’s net investment in the foreign
operation concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment; and
investments in subsidiaries

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash generating unit,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating
unit.
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(k)

U]

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Reporting
Year in the countries where the Group's entities operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
tax related situations and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the Reporting Year and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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(m)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Lease
(i) The Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

Right-of-use asset
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the

commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date which
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
assets are also subject to impairment. The Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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Lease liability
Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement

date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification (i.e. a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g. a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset).

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the

commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of office equipment
that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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(n)

(ii) The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased assets to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group has leased out its investment property to a
number of tenants. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
returns and discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

Revenue are recognised when or as the control of the services
or goods is transferred to the purchaser. Depending on the
terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract,
control of the services or goods may transfer over time or at a
point in time. Control of the services or goods is transferred
over time if the Group's performance:

provides all the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the purchaser; or

creates and enhances an asset that the purchaser
controls as the Group performs; or

do not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the services or goods transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the purchaser obtains control of the asset.
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The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on output method that best
depict the Group's performance in satisfying the performance
obligation. The output method is made reference to the gross
value of contracting work to date as compared to the total
contract sum receivable under the contracts.

An entity is a principal if it controls the promised good or
service before transferring it to the customer. An entity is an
agent if its role is to arrange for another entity to provide the
good or service.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effect of a financing
component if it is significant.

Provision of services of property and facility
management

Property and facility management fees and other supporting
service fees are recognised when the services are rendered
and in accordance with the terms of agreements. There are
two types of agreement, namely management remuneration
contracts ("MR Contracts”) and lump sum contracts (‘LS
Contracts”). Under a MR Contract, the Group is remunerated
based on a fixed percentage of the costs involved in the
management of the property or facility, and only such fee is
recognised as the Group’s revenue. Under a LS Contract, the
Group is paid a lump sum fee which normally covers the costs
involved, thus the whole of lump sum fee is recognised as the
Group's revenue.

Provision of construction services

Under HKFRS 15, revenue from construction contracts is
recognised when or as the construction projects are
transferred to the customer. The control of the construction
projects transfer over time in accordance with the terms of the
contracts and the laws that are applicable to the contracts. If
construction projects create or enhance an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation over time and
therefore, recognises revenue over time in accordance with
the output method for measuring progress.
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Where the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by
applying the stage-of-completion method of individual
contract with reference to the certificates issued by the
customers, measured based on the value of work performed
to date to the contract value. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that
the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.

The excess of cumulative revenue recognised in consolidated
income statement over the cumulative billings to customers is
recognised as contract assets. The excess of cumulative
billings to customers over the cumulative revenue recognised
in consolidated income statement is recognised as contract
liabilities.

Variable consideration
For the consideration promised in a contract includes a
variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of

consideration to which the Group will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the promised services to a customer.

The Group estimates an amount of variable consideration by
using either the expected value method or the most likely
amount method, depending on which method the Group
expects to better predict the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in
the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its assessment
of whether an estimate of variable consideration is

constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances during
the reporting period.
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Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when control of
the goods has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customer. A receivable is recognised when
the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of
time is required before the payment is due.

Operating lease rental income

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts or refundable
deposits outstanding and the effective interest rates
applicable.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Contract asset is recognised when (i) the Group completes the
construction works under such services contracts but yet
certified by architects, surveyors or other representatives
appointed by customers, or (i) the customers retain retention
money to secure the due performance of the contracts. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified
to account receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to
the customer. If the considerations (including advances
received from customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to
date under the output method then the Group recognises a
contract liability for the difference.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

EmiHeE

HEE MmN E M EH S
B(AIEERRNERF) K T IAME
R o BUSERFR XN E iR
R R A3 141 B T (B A SR R A HO By
IR - (E 7R R8I [ 7 B m] W ERAS

e
A °

HEHEHESWA

REBEHSBANBRENEE
HARI SR

FEWA

MEBARKREERNS HATREEZ
& NOE B BRI R AR IR By b I &
MR,

BHNEENRERE

BHEERAKEATFRIUN
S E D E R R UK B RN
(R AR R EARIT) © HAR - UK
TR 8 AN 5= B W B AR (B A 2 1R 1 1
A - MR ER BB A EH
XAt e

BHAEEAKENE B R P K
REFENRESR) MEAREP
EERGHEL

BHEER () AR BRIEZE RS
BHTERERTRERABELE
BB RS2 EERD - BRI BRI E M ARR
& () EPREBRE T AERE
WIKHEIETT ° SCAERREHNE
ENERNSRERTP HARSER
EFNHBERBKIERR - nBRARE
(BREME P WERMTENFIR) B
e SRR TR ER M Y - R
AEEEREHAERERANEA

5 o




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 155 ¥R R MY At

(0) Related parties (o) BEAZL
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is @ MMBEATIER  ZHAL
related to the Group if that person: LZBATHAHERXEKE
AR R BN R (B B i E
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () HAREBEFEHIELE
[0 22 il e
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEBEEAZE
7k
(i) is a member of key management personnel of iy ABAEBEHAATNFA
the Group or the Company's parent. RAIFEEEAR
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following b)) EENTEMFRBELEAT -
conditions apply: B ASEGRE
()  The entity and the Group are members of the () EREAEEAR-—
same group (which means that each parent, BB & & ’A
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the CIRNE V=SNG SAE AL )
others). BARBIEREREE)
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —BEASEBEZH
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a VNGNS (657
member of a group of which the other entity is a S—EBAKBZEH
member). [PA=WNGI Pl TN
BENRR]) °
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MELHAR—F=H
party. ZEERA] o
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —ERABFE-HEBZ
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. BENR - ME—EHE
REE=-SEBZHE
NEI
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for V) ZREBAASENER
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an SEEHEERNES
entity related to the Group. & A 3% B BE R 2 AR A
sTEl -
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a vi) FZREBEX () FTEAIA
person identified in (a). PR RIEH] o
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()

(q)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
wages and salaries already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable and are recognised
as other income, rather than reducing wages and salaries.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. BRERERE
5.1 Financial risk factors 51 HEEREREE

[\ & 32 B FRUE B AR BB AR
RBECEATE  EFBEAT

Risk management seeks to minimise any potential material
effects on the Group's financial performance from the

following factors. [2\Bsz o
(@) Market risk (a) TZER
(i) Foreign currency exchange risk () SMNEREfE
The Group mainly operated in Hong Kong with AEBXTERBBL
most of the transactions settled in Hong Kong g RE DR F B
dollar and did not have significant exposure to HEE O RN
risk resulting from changes in foreign currency R 4B M M s E K&
exchange rates. B o
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIEE R
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from REBEZFE@EEEE
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings. REABEETEGEK -
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed LA B] 2 80 K 2= % LA & 2
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate FEFH 2 ERSAE
risk and fair value interest risk respectively. The EoRFEZBEERE R
Group's interest rate profile as monitored by % BB J A AR T 2 &
management is set out below. b o BRREER I ARE
EFEIFEREN T o
The following table details the interest rate profile TRAMRBEFER
of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the REEBRF =8
Reporting Year. =
2020 2019
Effective Effective
interest rate HK$'000 interest rate HK$'000
BRAIE BETT B BB T
Fixed rate borrowings [&E FR{E &
Convertible bonds AR ES 17.1% 38,912 17.1% 35,882
Lease liabilities HERE 4.7% 12,028 4.7% 10,105
50,940 45,987
Floating rate FERREN
borrowings
Bank loans RITER 3.7% 64,000 4.2% 131,000
Total net borrowings  JFHE 4B 114,940 176,987
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134

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 15w R MY ot

(b)

Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a

general increase/decrease of 50 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group's
profits for the year and accumulated losses by
approximately HK$532,000 (2019: HK$713,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of reporting period
and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for the borrowings in existence at that
date. The 50 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk mainly arises from deposits, cash
and bank balances, contract assets and receivables.
Current policies ensure that sales and services are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history and
subject to periodic credit evaluations. Collection of
outstanding receivables is closely monitored on an
ongoing basis.

As at 31 December 2020, a provision of approximately
HK$6,074,000 (2019: HK$94,302,000) and HK$773,000
(2019: HKS53,273,000) against receivables and contract
assets respectively based on the impairment assessment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company are responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. Certain customers have exceeded their
respective credit terms during the reporting. However,
management does not expect any significant losses
from non-performance by these counterparties because
of their satisfactory repayment history.
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Starting from 1 January 2019, for trade receivables,
retention receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group
determines the ECL collectively by using a provision
matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss
experience, as well as the general economic conditions
of the industry in which the debtors operate. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

For other non-trade related receivables, the Group has
assessed whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group will measure
the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than
12-month ECL.

The credit risk associated with deposits and cash and
bank balances is limited because the counterparties are
bank with high credit rating.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

— internal and external credit rating

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

— significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including
changes in the payment status of borrowers in
the Group and changes in the operating results of
the borrower
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FrEE 2 EEER

TERFLAAEEZEREE
RAEKMBEENEEERNR
AEBMAEBRNRKERR

% -

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group's
financial assets and contract assets as well as the

Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

136

Gross carrying  Accumulated  Net carrying
31 December 2020 12-month or lifetime ECL amount loss allowance amount
2020512A31H REARZHRBEESE REAE RiEERE WREFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  EMTR AETR
Account receivables Lifetime ECL (Simplified approach) 153,848 (3,008) 150,840
S FHRBEEEE (B
Retention receivables Lifetime ECL (Simplified approach) 88,432 (148) 88,284
FENRE & 2 HRBEEEER (B
Other receivables 12-month ECL 34,053 (2,918) 31,135
H it IR REAESREEER
276,333 (6,074) 270,259
Contract assets Lifetime ECL (Simplified approach) 91,110 (773) 90,337
AREE 2 HRBEEFR (M AZE)
Deposits 12-month ECL 9,268 - 9,268
Re RERESREEER
Gross carrying Accumulated Net carrying
31 December 2019 12-month or lifetime ECL amount  loss allowance amount
20196124318 REASEHEHEEEHE FEGE REHRERE RE%(E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT T
Account receivables Lifetime ECL (Simplified approach) 285483 (73,696) 211,787
FEHBR R 2 HRBEEER(BERE)
Retention receivables Lifetime ECL (Simplified approach) 105414 (17,069) 88,345
K RE S 2 HRBEEFA (B ZE)
Other receivables 12-month ECL 40,038 (3537) 36,501
H it R IR REARREEER
430,935 (94,302) 336,633
Contract assets Lifetime ECL (Simplified approach) 366,136 (53,273) 312,863
BREE 2 HRBEEER (I AZE)
Deposits 12-month ECL 11,450 - 11,450
Be REARBEEER
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Account receivables JEKARF
The Group has applied the simplified approach to MEWBERMS » NEEfE
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group B r =22 HBEHE
determines the expected credit losses by using a BEEBEEL TNHEEEE -
provision matrix, grouped based on share credit risk ANEBFRABREEEETEE
characteristics and the days past due. HEZEEE  BELAREE
[B B 4 B e 8 HA B BUE T
4 -
The loss allowances for account receivables as at 31 PR20204F }2 201912 H31H
December 2020 and 2019 were determined as follows: FEWEEZ N EREEE T
T
31 December 2020 Not yet 1to 31to 61to 91to Over
due 30days 60 days 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
2020%12f31H MAEE 12308 31Z60H 61Z90H 91Z180H 180RAML st
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)
RRAERETT) 87,560 22,155 5,538 4,507 3,471 30,617 153,848
Less: Individually assessed (HKS'000)
W RN (BT ) - - - - (1) (832) (833)
Carrying amount under collective measurement (HKS'000)
KA E T REE(BETT) 87,560 22,155 5,538 4,507 3,470 29785 153,015
Expected credit loss rate (%)
BEEEERZ - 0.50% 1.00% 1.50% 3.00% 6.17%
ECL allowance for collectively measurement (HK$'000)
KA BREEEBRE(RETL) - m 55 68 104 1,837 2,175
Individually assessed loss allowance (HK$'000)
ERIFEEREE BT L) - - - - 1 832 833
Total loss allowance (HK$'000)
BREEREE(BETT) - m 55 68 105 2,669 3,008
31 December 2019 Not yet Tto 3110 61to 9110 Over
due 30 days 60 days 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
2019F12A31A WAGH 12308 3NE60B 61Z0H 91E180H  180HAME @

(Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)

RESE(FETT) 116,262 47303 12989 7507 8072 93,350 285483
Less: Individually assessed (HKS'000)

W RN (B T ) - - - - (416) (724%) (72912)
Carrying amount under collective measurement (HK$'000)

KA E T REE(BETT) 116,262 47303 12989 7,507 7656 20854 212571
Expected credit loss rate (%)

BHEEERZ) - 0.10% 026% 043% 1.54% 265%

ECL allowance for collectively measurement (HK$'000)

HAH B BHEEHERE(BETT) - 47 34 3 118 553 784
Individually assessed loss allowance (HK$'000)

BRI HEERE(B%TT) - - - - 416 7249 72912
Total loss allowance (HKS'000)

BREBER(EETL) - 47 34 3 534 73049 7369
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Retention receivables

The Group has applied the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9 to measure the allowance for
credit losses at lifetime ECL. The retention receivables is
assessed for ECL by using the provision matrix. Other
than impairment on individual assessment of
HK$148,000 (2019: HKS17,069,000) of retention
receivables, the directors of the Company consider that
the allowance for ECL for the year ended 31 December
2019 and 2020 on retention receivables are insignificant
to the Group by using the provision matrix.

Other receivables and deposits

The Group has assessed these balances using 12-month
ECL basis as there was no significant increase in credit
risk for these balances since initial recognition. Other
than impairment on individual assessment of
HK$2,918,000 (2019: HK$3,537,000) of other receivables,
the directors of the Company consider that the
allowance for ECL for the year ended 31 December 2019
and 2020 on other receivables and deposits are
insignificant to the Group.

Contract assets

The Group has applied the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9 to measure the allowance for
credit losses at lifetime ECL. The contract assets are
assessed for ECL by using the provision matrix. The
allowance for ECL on contract assets of HK$773,000 is
recognized as at 31 December 2020.

Other than impairment on individual assessment of
HK$53,273,000 of contract assets as at 31 December
2019, the director of the Company consider that the
allowance for ECL on contract assets are insignificant to
the Group as at 31 December 2019.
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(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management
which includes maintaining sufficient bank balances
and cash, and having available funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

For bank loans containing a repayment on demand
clause, if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional
rights to call the loans with immediate effect, including
term loans of HK$29,000,000 (2019: HK$96,000,000) with
scheduled repayment dates, will be on demand for
repayment immediately. As at 31 December 2020, bank
deposits of HK$10,000,000 (2019: HK$10,160,000) is
pledged as security for the Group’s bank loan of
HK$35,000,000 (2019: HK$35,000,000).

Since the year end, there have been no changes in the
risk management department or in any risk

management policies.
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Financial risk factors VS ES
Liquidity risk (in HK$'000) mEE SRR (GEETIT)
Total
contractual
Less than Between Between  undiscounted Carrying
At 31 December 2020 120205 12831H Tyear  land2years  2and5 years cash flow amount
KTREE
SR-F  NY-ERE NIWELF HREREAE REE
Term loans subject to a WERER(ER
repayment on demand {E 2 EHER
clause 65,037 - - 65,037 64,000
Lease liabilities HEER 8,002 3,536 973 12,511 12,028
Convertible bonds A#RES 44,586 - - 44,586 38912
Payables and accruals R RIETER 301,940 17,454 26,236 345,630 345,630
Total @t 419,565 20,990 27,209 467,764 460,570
Total
contractual
Less than Between Between  undiscounted Carrying
At31 December 2019 R2019F 124318 1 year 1and 2 years 2and 5 years cash flow amount
AMBRAH
SR=%F NI-ERE NIMERE HENELE REE
Term loans subject to a MHRERER
repayment on demand {EF 2 EHER
clause 137,781 = = 137,781 131,000
Lease liabilities HERR 7921 2300 217 10438 10,105
Convertible bonds Bk ES 2940 44,586 = 47526 35882
Payables and accruals ERERRETER 459915 18,89 27808 506619 506619
Total @it 608557 65,782 28025 702,364 683,606
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5.2

5.3

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank loans
disclosed in note 22, net of bank balances and cash disclosed
in note 20, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of the review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues, issue of new debts or the redemption of
existing debt.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current assets and
liabilities approximate their fair values due to their short term
maturities as at 31 December 2019 and 2020. The fair value of
convertible bonds is classified as level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy has been determined in accordance with general
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow
analysis with the most significant inputs being the discount
rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties as at 31
December 2019 and 2020.
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6. CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. Such estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions.

(b) Impairment of receivables, deposits and prepayment
and contract assets

Management determines the specific provision for
impairment of receivables, deposits and prepayment and
contract assets based on assessment of the recoverability of
the balances. The assessment is based on the specific
recoverability assessment and ageing profile of the balances,
which requires the use of judgements and estimates. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of the balance, including the financial
position and the historical payment pattern of each
counterparty. The Group has set out policies to ensure follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue receivables and deposits.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has made impairment
provision of receivables and contract assets approximately
HK$6,074,000 and HKS$773,000 respectively. The Group has
been negotiating with the counterparties for the payment of
settlement. The determination of the provision involved
significant management estimation.
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(9]

Construction contracts

The Group recognises the revenue from design, supply and
installation service over time based on output method by
directly measuring the value of construction work transferred
to the customer to date relative to the remaining construction
works promised to be completed under the construction
contract. Most construction works take 1 to 3 years to
complete and the scope of work may change during the
construction period. The Group reviews and revises the
estimates of contract revenue, contract costs, variation orders
as well as the financial impact of claims, disputes and
liquidation damages prepared for each construction contract
as the contract progresses. The management's estimate of
revenue and the completion status of construction works
requires significant judgement and has a significant impact on
the amount and timing of revenue recognised. The
construction works performed by the Group would be
certified by the quantity surveyors of the customers or
payment applications from the in-house surveyors periodically
according to the construction contracts. The Group regularly
reviews and revises the estimation of contract revenue
prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses based on the construction progress and the
certification issued by the customers.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had certain claims over its
contract assets and receivables in respect of disputes or
prolonged negotiation between the Group and the employers
in certain building construction contracts. The Group is closely
monitoring the development of these contracts and has been
negotiating with the employer. The directors of the Company
are of the view that the carrying value of the balances as at 31
December 2020 would be fully recoverable. The determination
of the recoverability involved significant management

estimation.
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(d)

(e)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for PRC income taxes. There are a number of
transactions and calculations for which ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential tax
exposures based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will affect the income tax and deferred tax
provision in the period in which such determination is made.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group's
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group's financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities utilises market observable inputs
and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair
value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the ‘fair value hierarchy’):

Level 1:  Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

Level 2:  Observable direct or indirect inputs other than
Level 1 inputs;

Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from

market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on
the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures the below item at fair value:
Investment properties (note 17).
For more detailed information in relation to the fair value

measurement of the item above, please refer to the applicable
note.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 1. AHEHR
In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting provided RERETFTAEB 2 EERARENEAR
to the chief operating decision-maker, identified as the Executive Tiﬂf‘_ré BEg(HE5ARER AEE
Committee, who is responsible for allocating resources, assessing B RIB RIEREIEAE) 2 A
performance of the operating segments and making strategic MGHE  AEBATERIEEDH
decisions, the reportable operating segments and their results are as REFEMT
below:
property and facility management services; . M2 R E B E R AR
ancillary business including integrated procurement, laundry, . WENETS - BIEASEE KK
cleaning, security, maintenance and technical support BR - RE - ,\\’Eﬂ’}&ﬁimﬁ%ﬁﬁ
services; and % &
interiors and special projects. . EARERFIRIBEE °
Segment Results (in HK$'000) DEBEE (BET )
Corporate
Ancillary PFM ISP Overhead
PFM Business Business Business (Note) Total
NER WY NERRE  EAEHR THER
2020 2020% RiEEE B EEXE HRERER (RzE) At
Revenue Wi
— Atapointin time —RE-BEH - 13,017 13,017 - = 13,017
— Qver time ——BER 627,229 112,607 739,836 374,803 - 1,114,639
627,229 125,624 752,853 374,803 - 1,127,656
Gross Profit/(Loss) EH/(E8) 66,753 27,698 94,451 (44,313) - 50,138
Gross Profit/(Loss) Margin ESIVAESIE 106% 220% 125% ~11.8% - 44%
Operating expenses RERY (33,225) (15,460) (48,685) (29,455) (9,599) (87,739)
Interest expenses ﬂ 53 - - - (9,841) - (9,841)
Operating Profit/(Loss) g/ (58) 33,528 12,238 45,766 (83,609) (9,599) (47,442)
Operating ProfitLoss) Margin HE2ER (BR) ¥ 5.3% 97% 6.1% -223% - ~42%
Exceptional item* BHIER - - - (10,193) - (10,193)
Operating Profit/(Loss) after NREHER &K
exceptional item BeH/ (F8) 33,528 12,238 45,766 (93,802) (9,599) (57,635)
Interest expenses for KEERZFERS
acquisition loan - - (190) (190)
Interest expenses for lease HEFSHEY (379) (104) - (483)
Otherincome HiA 82,555 3,308 - 85,863
Profit/(Loss) before taxation RBiATER]/ (B8 127,942 (90,598) (9,789) 27,555
Taxation WA (6,860) (6,482) - (13,342)
Profit/(Loss) for the year ERER/ (FB) 121,082 (97,080) (9,789) 14,213
& Insurance compensation arising from commercial settlement with QBE. 5 B B2 BB IR 1T 7 S AN AR AR RO IRBR B (8 -
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Corporate

Ancillary PFM ISP Overhead
PFM Business Business Business (Note) Total

NER 2l MEREE  EARAR THER
2019 2019% RinERE 7 BEEE WREREH (F3E) o

Revenue Yegs

— Atapointin time —RE - - 16599 16599 - - 16599
— Overtime ——BRERH 600,965 113611 714576 838,105 - 1,552,681
600965 130210 731175 838,105 - 1,569,280
Gross Profit eS| 68316 23602 91918 50502 - 142420
Gross Profit Margin EF)E 11.4% 181% 126% 60% - 91%
Operating expenses TERY (36,007) (14565) (50572) (35,074) (8454) (94,100)
Interest expenses FERY = = = (5,408) = (5,408)
Operating Profit Yy 32309 9037 41346 10,020 (8:454) 4912
Operating Profit Margin HeEHE 54% 6.9% 5.7% 1.2% - 27%
Interest expenses for acquisition loan ~ WEEEFZ FIBFHZ - - (1320) (1320)
Interest expenses for lease HEFSRZ (402) (208) = (610)
Other income Hipl A 2847 577 = 3424
Profit before taxation BRBE AR A 43,791 10389 (9774) 44406
Taxation Fim (6,068) (756) = (6824
Profit for the year FREF 3773 9633 9774) 37582

Note: Corporate overhead mainly represents corporate and administrative activities, MizE: TREAXZALRIRITEES  URHEE
and shared services. A7 -

Information about a major customer

—REREFHNER

AEERHEFREA-—REERTF (2019
FENRHBEAREE AR 10% -

The Group's one of the customers (2019: none) with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue for the
Reporting Year.

Geographical analysis & o
2020 2019
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BETR | BBTR

Revenue &

Hong Kong a5 1,121,411 1,559,853
PRC EP 6,245 9,427
1,127,656 1,569,280

MiaE : ANEERAB 9% IAERBEE -

Note:  Over 99% of the Group's revenue derived from Hong Kong.
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OTHER INCOME 8. HlA
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BEETIT
Government subsidies (Note) XA R B (BT 5E) 85,989 -
Miscellaneous income Eablg A 1,037 2,191
Bank interest income RITAL WA 751 672
Rental income from investment properties ‘TEYHE 2 HERA 338 399
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - #aE RREZEE
plant and equipment (1,564) 7)
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment properties & ¥ % 2 AFE (Ei8), /W (400) 200
Exchange loss b i &8 (288) 31)
85,863 3,424

Note:

Almost all the government subsidies were granted from the Employment Support
Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Hong Kong Government, which
aim to retain employment and combat pandemic of novel coronavirus. As a condition of
receiving the subsidies from the ESS, the Group undertakes not to make redundancies
by 30 November 2020 after deducting the reimbursement to be paid to the respective
Incorporation Owners or clients in PFM Business.

R

AT BATRARE B BRI EAEES TH
MRFE | a8 ([RMEE ] - A B EERBHRE
REMFRBRES - (EARGSRUETEHUL
&M - AEBAFR 202011 A3 0B ZRITEHE -
EFEHREI A MERZEEEEFOERE
FUREERTE 2B o

INTEREST EXPENSES 9, RFEFEX
2020 2019
HK$’000 HKS'000
BET T BEET T

Interest expenses on: LTIEEMNFMEAX

— Convertible bonds — AR ES 5,970 667
— Bank loans — RITERK 4,061 6,061
— Lease liabilities —HE&aE 483 610
10,514 7,338

—ETFFHR/  ARRERAERLTE
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10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRBADEA
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Profit before taxation is arrived after charging: & Bl K 2 1k T 51 & 18 -
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments B LKA (BIEEEME) 653,284 645,459
Depreciation of property, M - IR REBEITE
plant and equipment 4,465 6,520
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETSE 11,653 13,286
Auditor's remuneration 2 X B 3
— Audit — E% 1,220 1,220
— Non-audit — JEEZ 148 158
Short-term lease expenses RERER S 660 468
11. STAFF COSTS, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS N BIRK(BREEMS)
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Wages and salaries ITENHSE
— included in cost of sales — A ABHER A 575,157 565,133
— included in general —ETA—MRRITERX
and administrative expenses 54,317 57,864
Pension — defined contribution scheme BRE — AEHKETE
— included in cost of sales — AT ASHER AR 21,807 20,211
— included in general — it AR RITHRX
and administrative expenses 2,003 2,251
653,284 645,459
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12. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 12. ESEARER
(@) Directors’ Emoluments (in HK$’000) (@ EEM<E(CE¥Tr)
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BESZHMEIINT

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12 A31BLEEE

Employer’s
Salaries, contribution
allowances  toaretirement
Fees and bonuses* benefit scheme* Total
EEHERK
E2 =i BRI
Name of Directors ESHA Be R4+ At @t
Executive Directors HTES
Kingston Chu Chun Ho N 150 1,200 60 1,410
Mandy Hui Suk Man FHRE 150 2,374 84 2,608
Independent Non-executive B FHTEE
Directors
Lau Man Tak BxiE 240 - - 240
Fric Lee Hon Man ZHW 240 - - 240
Wong Yun Kuen' EHE 235 - - 235
1,015 3,574 144 4,733
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZE2019F12A831AILEE
Employer’s
Salaries, contribution
allowances and to a retirement
Fees bonuses*  benefit scheme* Total
BRI
5& 28 B2
Name of Directors ERMA e RAEAT* 2 @ar
Executive Directors HITER
Kingston Chu Chun Ho PN 150 1,200 60 1410
Mandy Hui Suk Man? AR 104 1502 58 1,664
Terence Leung Siu Cheong? 2KE* 46 675 6 727
Independent Non-executive B FHTEE
Directors
Lau Man Tak B304z 240 - - 240
Fric Lee Hon Man ZHN 240 = = 240
Wong Yun Kuen =g 240 = = 240
1,020 3377 124 4521
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*  Except for the independent non-executive directors, the amounts represented * BRBUFENITERI G ZEEBEMIE
HAERERARA RS EHMB R R FTET

ZEBZ RBEEZ S -

emoluments in respect of services provided in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking.

2020 12 A 23 BB BHEB L IENITE

' Resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 23 !

December 2020. =
2 Appointed as an Executive Director with effect from 24 April 2019. ? H2019F4 A4 BBREZERNTES -
3 Resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 24 April 2019. 3 20194 A24 HBBHEMITES ©
(b) Interest of Directors (b) EEHER

) RNEEFE TEARAEZH

(i) During the Reporting Year, no retirement benefits,

150

()

payments or benefits in respect of termination of
directors’ services were paid or made, directly or
indirectly, to the directors; nor are any payable (2019:
Nil). No consideration was provided to or receivable by
third parties for making available directors’ services

B MR R RKE
M- BRERLEESRHZMN
FREARF - IR AT A L PR
it 2 RIE(2019%F : £&) - W
%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ

(2019: Nil). 77 stk ez (B (2019
F | o
(i) There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in () WEER  BERSHEM
favour of directors, their controlled bodies corporate B REZEEEELE
and connected entities (2019: Nil). LAEERBAIBmAZRS
(20194 : &) o

(iii)

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company's business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the Reporting Year (2019: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

During the Reporting Year, the five individuals whose

emoluments were the highest in the Group include two

directors (2019: one) whose emoluments are included in note
12(a). The emoluments payable to the other three (2019: four)
highest paid individuals during the Reporting Year are as

follows:

(9]

(i)

RAFERERANFEE LM
BRI EFEARRRIYZ
EBARREB ZEARR
5 THRAEH MART]
EREENHERETHE
BEAREZR (20194 « #E) o

EUESHFAL
RBEFE  AEERUKFEFHA

TREMR (20194 :
WEZ S B EE12

*%)%%*
NG

A J?’gﬁ%ﬁm:%(zomi |

)R

SHFALZMEFBEDT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HKS$'000

BT T BET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %% - 2285 R B WHZS 4,716 6,000
Pension — defined contribution scheme  E{RK® — RE KIS 126 197
4,842 6,197
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The emoluments of the above individuals fell within the
following bands:
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B %5 R 2R BT o

ERALHBEN FIATEHE :

Number of individuals

AE
2020 2019
Emolument band & #5 [
HK$1,000,001 to HKS$2,000,000 B K 1,000,001 7T E
75 #& 2,000,000 7T 3 4

During the Reporting Year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

13. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits/(loss) for the year after
application of available tax losses brought forward for both years.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents:

13.

RBEFE  AKESER AR
fUsxmFALNERAME - (FR
R A0SO A AN SR BB 1O B 2 3
TERRERAE -

BIR

MEFENBTENSRIIZERTEZ
HETERBER (BB NGRAaFFEE
82 7 nE)FATIBE AR K 16.5%E /& (2019
F 1165%) o AEE 2Nz F FLIE T
RAF AT T s I A& 7
BRI EE -

GV EYELES I ESHEVAE
N ZBUESEIT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T

Current taxation E HTIE

Hong Kong profits tax EBRFH

— provision for the year — FAHEHE 8,445 6,456
— over provision in prior years — BAFEEEEE (215) 77)
Deferred taxation JEIEFI IR 5,112 445
13,342 6,824
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The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the 7 £ [ B B A g A1 2 7 IE ER dR AN A B BT
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the ERRZHRREEE BRI A 2 =58
home country of the Company as follows: T
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Profit before taxation BR A58 A1 g A 27,555 44,406
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B E165%1E
(2019: 16.5%) (20194F : 16.5%) 4,547 7327
Effect of different taxation rates in H b F A% a) A R R A
other tax jurisdictions A 253 348
Over provision in prior years B E R (215) (77)
Income not subject to taxation (Note) BEFBRUA (FsE) (14,320) (49)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 7~ A #1554 A % 2,527 591
Unrecognised tax losses/(Utilisation of AR 2 FIEEE (B
previously unrecognised tax losses) WA REER 2 THIEERE) 20,550 (1316)
13,342 6,824
Note:  ESS income is not subject to taxation. MeE © RBLET IR A BT HBE -
14. DIVIDEND 14, KRE
At a meeting held on 23 March 2021, the Board resolved not to R2021F3A 38R TzEH L ES
declare final dividend for the Reporting Year (2019: Nil). SHERTNEIRREFE 2 KRS (2019
Fm) o
15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BREF
(@)  Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s @) SERERBNTIIBIEREEE AR
profit attributable to the equity holders less dividends (if any) 1l R 5 )55 I AT 8 40 (8 ST IS IS A
to convertible preference shareholders by the weighted BEAZRE(INE)BRAREFE
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the AB BT B INEFIHEE -

Reporting Year.

2020 2019
Profit attributable to equity holders IR iR B ARG R
(HK$'000) (BT 7T) 14,213 37,582
Weighted-average ordinary shares issued B 217 18 A% hntgE F 35 £k
(000) (FR) 424,850 424,850
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRREAREF| (BEAL) 3.3 88
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(b)  Diluted earnings per share for the Reporting Year is calculated b) RIFEFE2HREERZF TR
by dividing the Group'’s profit attributable to the equity A EEHB o iR N AT IR AR (5 6 T 3%
holders by the weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding TREBESRRENAER  BIE
after adjusting for the potential ordinary shares to be issued AR HEFRE 5 A FE {1 7N 52 s FI B DA 32
on convertible preference shares and convertible bonds. The TERRINEEHEGE - KAAQTA]
calculation of the diluted earnings per share attributable to LREREE AR SREER T
the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based on the TIiRIE A T 8UE -
following data:

2020 2019
Earnings 23
Earnings for the purposes of basic HERERBF BT
earnings per share (HK$'000) (B%FT) 14,213 37,582
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: #38 /& L3@AL 2 £
— Interest on convertible bonds — AR ES 2 T B
(net of tax) (HK$'000) (BT IR) GBS T ) - 667
Earnings for the purposes of diluted RERESTRFHEF
earnings per share (HK$'000) (BETIT) 14,213 38,249
Number of share RO E
Weighted-average ordinary B EITMET L @A (TR)
shares issued ('000) 424,850 424,850
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: #38 /&#E L@ 2 £ -
— Convertible preference shares (000) — — A B8 5 i (FR%) 80,000 80,000
— Convertible bonds (000) (Note) — AR 2 (R (BT 5E) - 10,126
80,000 90,126
Weighted-average ordinary shares TETE S IREER A 2 hnE
for calculating diluted earnings e EBER (TR
per share ('000) 504,850 514,976
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FhigEER R (B 2.8 74
Note: Bi%E
The effect of any potential exercise of convertible bonds is excluded from the FR] A8/ T N R ERE SN T ES T
calculation of diluted earnings per share in 2020 where the effect would be anti- E20200FBEERABINNtES HEER
dilutive. [REEH)
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. M¥  HBERZE
Right-of-use Leasehold Motor  Furnitureand
assets  improvements vehicles equipment Total
ERESEE HENEEHL RE  GERRE @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost A&
At1 January 2019 R2019E1 A 18 30572 137% 4671 59,662 108,701
Exchange differences ERER (69) (7) (35) (59) (170)
Additions NE 9727 403 1335 3,302 14,767
Disposals HE (191) (1) (870) (813) (1,885)
At31 December 2019 2019512 431 B 40,039 14181 5,101 62092 121413
Exchange differences R 246 2 9 165 505
Additions NE 12,539 170 27 3309 16,045
Disposals HE (29.127) (3403) (573) (4247) (37350)
At 31 December 2020 12020512 A31R 23607 10950 4647 61319 100613
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE
At 1 January 2019 20191 A18 (15,620) (10,309) (3558) (53302) (82,795)
Exchange differences EXER 58 7 29 56 150
Depreciation for the year ERME (13286) (2.211) (682) (3627) (19,.806)
Disposals e 151 3 520 751 1425
At 31 December 2019 2019F 124318 (28,703) (12510) (3691) (56,122) (101,026)
Exchange differences R (281) B) (88) (161) (533)
Depreciation for the year FRME (11,653) (779) (508) (3178) (16,118)
Disposals HE 29127 2560 270 3527 35484
At 31 December 2020 #2020 128318 (11,510) (10,732) 4,017) (55,934) (82,193)
Closing net book value FRRERE
At 31 December 2020 2020128318 12,187 218 630 5385 18420
At31 December 2019 1201912 4318 11336 1671 1410 5970 20387
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Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leasehold
landand  Furniture and
buildings equipment Total
HELHRET BERRE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT T BT
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1 H 14,020 926 14,946
Additions NE 9,361 366 9,727
Disposals HE (34) ©) (40)
Depreciation e (12,889) (397) (13,286)
Exchange differences ME =58 (11) - (1
Balance as at 31 December 2019 FA 20194 12 A 31 H X
and 1 January 2020 20204F 1 A 1 HRY & 10,447 889 11,336
Additions NE 12,539 - 12,539
Depreciation e (11,269) (384) (11,653)
Exchange differences b H =5 (35) - (35)
At 31 December 2020 M 20206E12 31 H 11,682 505 12,187
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At 1 January ®1A1H 7,200 7,000
Unrealised (loss)/gain arising from change AP EEBIEA 2 R
in fair value (E518), Mz (400) 200
At 31 December ®12A31H 6,800 7,200
Note: Bt &E -

The investment properties were valued as of year-end date on the basis of their open

REMERFRBBLEEDEGEMNE —AFR
HEEERFEERAR AR ARMEREMS

market value by an independent professional property valuer, Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited.

—ETFFHR/  ARRERAERLTE
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(a) Valuation processes of the Group

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value.
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2020 has been determined on the basis of
valuations carried out by independent valuers. Discussion of
valuation processes and results are held between the Group's
senior management and valuers at least once every six
months, in line with the Group’s interim and annual reporting
dates. At each reporting date the Group's senior management:

—  verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;

— assess property valuations movement when compared
to the prior period valuation report; and

—  holds discussions with the independent valuers.

Change in Levels 2 and 3 fair values are also analysed at each

reporting date during the semi-annual valuations discussions
date between the Group’s senior management.
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(b)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables analyses the fair value of investment
properties at different levels defined as follows:

— quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

— inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (Level 2).

— inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).
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(b)

Quoted prices

B %5 R 2R BT o

DN EER

TREITEERZBREDERF
BNt BRBRZEERMT

— RBEEXRBENERMS
EZRECRERR) (F—
R e

— FAF—BAZBEARINZ
BESREZABERB AR
B PwEx(BER) XME
BETEEER) (B -

— UFRERABRMGHEEC
BELBEHARE(TATE
RHABE) (=) °

in active Significant
market for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets (Level 1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
EEEERNERE BARHA BRFA
MELZRE ATBRR@MAZRE BEHAHE
(B—#) (B=#) (B=4)
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2020 7 20206F12831H
Recurring fair value REMATHEFE
measurements
Investment properties REWE - 6,800 -
As at 31 December 2019 72019412 431 H
Recurring fair value KEMANFERFE
measurements
Investment properties REWE = 7,200 =
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the MNBEFE  F—H F_MNE

Reporting Year.

Fair vale measurements using significant other
observable inputs (Level 2)

Fair value of the investment properties are derived using the
direct comparison method. This valuation method is based on
comparing the property to be valued directly with other
comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of the properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be
achieved by the property under consideration.

= N o

EAEAR M THER ARE 2
FEHE (EH)

S PN T d o
B o AR T DA T E 2
$EURHIR P2 A A& LR
172 BB BBETE - A - M
REWE L MEE TR  BEE
VBB AR - A R AT ALY
BRE Y E BRI BIE 2T
GiLER -
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18. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 18. EHNEEREE
2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
(k3 BET T BT
Contract assets BHEE
— contract work of ISP business — ERE N EFRIER
EBHEHIRE 0) 89,949 366,136
— property and facility service — W R F RS 1,161 =
Less: impairment B ORE (ii) (773) (53,273)
Total contract assets EREEER 90,337 312,863
Contract liabilities EHaE
— contract work of ISP business — EREMNLERIER
EBHEHIE (iii) (894) (11,230)
— property and facility service — W LR FER (iif) (12,689) (4,662)
Total contract liabilities EHBaEER (13,583) (15,892)
Notes: BiaE -

(ii)

Significant changes in contract assets of ISP Business

Contract assets have decreased as the Group has less outstanding workload as
at 31 December 2020 together with the impact of the progress of contract
works and timing of work certification as at year end.

Movements in the provision for impairment of contract assets that are assessed

for impairment collectively are as follows:

0)

(ii)

EARMRERBEEBR ZANBEENER

BHEERY  AAREER 20204 12 A 31
ARARKIRERRD  ERFRESHIRE
ERIEREREA T EFTE -

AMEE(ERPERE) 2 AEREED
o

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Contract assets BHEE
At 1 January ®1A18 53,273 53,273
Written-off b6 (53,273) -
Provision for impairment recognised BRI E RS 773 -
At 31 December M®12A318 773 53,273

For contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9 to measure the allowance for credit losses at lifetime ECL. The contract
assets are assessed for ECL by using the provision matrix similar with the
approach of trade receivables. After the assessment by the directors of the
Company, the allowance for ECL on contract assets are HK$773,000 during the
Reporting Year (2019: nil).
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(iii) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (iii) AN B EERN S
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current TRIBELEEBRENABEFBORAK
reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. FREARTCEREARNBEFEBRITNREL
BEEEMANSHEE -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BYTT BT
Revenue recognised that was included in the REIFIET A G N A BRI E R
contract liability balance at the beginning
of the period
Contract work of ISP business EREHRFRIA R EBHE L TE 11,230 6,804
Property and facility services LI EINE N by 4,662 4,149
(v)  Unsatisfied long-term contract work of ISP business vy ZERKRMHREHREBEZBHORTREHSH
T2
The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations resulting from TRINEREREARKMH R EHREAR EBHNE
long-term contract work of ISP business. HENTRORTERBLHOESE -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated 2 BEZE 12 B 31 B #8232 2ARTTHK
to long-term contract work of ISP business thatare = A& R AFFRIEH 2N RBHEH
partially or fully unsatisfied as at 31 December MRS EERE 355,700 679,900
Management expects approximately that HK$350,300,000 (2019: EEE B A TE R R2020F 128318 K
HK$599,800,000) to the unsatisfied contracts as of 31 December 2020 will be TERK A KB 78 350,300,000 7T (2019 4F : 7&K
recognised as revenue during the next reporting period. The remaining 599,800,000 7T) #§ EFRTHER AR T — & HIFA
HK$5,400,000 (2019: HK$ 80,100,000) will be recognised in the year of 2022 I 28 o 84 75 5,400,000 7T (20194F = B ¥
(2019: 2021). The amount disclosed above does not include variable 80,100,0007T ) #74 2022 4 & (2019 + 20214F)
consideration which is constrained. EIRER - EXARENSELRAARR

HIRTEARAE -
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19. RECEIVABLES 19. FEWERR

160

The credit period of the Group’s accounts receivable generally
ranges from 30 to 60 days (2019: 30 to 60 days) and the majority of
the Group's accounts receivable are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable by invoice date is
as follows:

AEBEUBERRZEEH KN T30E
60 B (20194 : 30260 H ) - REE 2 A
o U BR R YIRS KT E - B Z R
HAD 88 2 FEURBR R Z BRER D ATZA T

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEF T BT T
Accounts receivable FEUR BR X
0 to 30 days 0&30H 60,967 118,025
31 to 60 days 312 60H 41,734 37,013
61 to 90 days 61290 H 11,104 17,489
Over 90 days 90 B LA E 40,043 112,956
153,848 285,483
Retention receivables and other FEUR IR E & & H b FE UL FKIE
receivables 122,485 145,452
276,333 430935
Impairment of accounts receivable, FEWERR - EWRES R HAth
retention receivables and other EWFRIE 2 RE
receivables (6,074) (94,302)
270,259 336,633

Retention receivables

Retention receivables in respect of the contracting business are
settled in accordance with the terms of the respective contracts. As
of 31 December 2020, retention receivables held by customers for
contract works amounting to approximately HK$9,398,000 (2019:
HK$9,907,000) are expected to be recovered or settled in more than
12 months from the end of the reporting year, all of the remaining
balances are expected to be recovered or settled within one year.
Retention receivables are included in current assets as the Group
expects to realise these within its normal operating cycle.

The retention receivables are classified as contract assets until the
end of the retention period as the Group's entitlement to this final
payment is conditional on the Group’s work satisfactorily passing
inspection.

For retention receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9 to measure the allowance for credit
losses at lifetime ECL. The retention receivables are assessed for ECL
by using the provision matrix similar with the approach of trade
receivables. After the assessment by the directors of the Company,
the allowance for ECL on retention receivables are insignificant to
the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2020.
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20.
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Accounts receivable

As of 31 December 2020, accounts receivable of HK$63,281,000
(2019: HK$95,524,000) were past due but not impaired. These related
to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. Accounts receivable of HK$3,007,000 (2019:
HK$73,696,000) were past due and impaired.

B 7% ¥R 3% I 7

FE U BR K

72020512 A31H 4 #63,281,0007C
(20194 : 7% 95524,000 7T ) 2 JiE U BR %
B H B RRE o 3% FIHE % 2 0 8
YEEHCHENBIEFLEH@ - B
3,007,000 7T (2019 4F © % #& 73,696,000 7T )
2 FEUR AR SR E 8 B BORE o

Impairment of receivables FE W R IR B
2020 2019
HK$’000 HKS'000
BET T BT T
At 1 January ®n1A1H 94,302 94,812
Provision for impairment recognised BRI EREE 8,044 816
Written-off i EH (95,635) (1,111)
Doubtful debts recovery o qEp=ai (677) (87)
Exchange differences ME =5 40 (128)
At 31 December M12A31H 6,074 94,302

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of the receivables mentioned above. The Group does
not hold any collateral as security.

RBERHMEE cRREERRS L
MR 2 BREE -  AEELEFE
TR AR -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK 20. RERBEeEERCERETHE
DEPOSITS/TIME DEPOSITS X EBER
2020 2019
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BET T BEET T
Cash and bank balance Re RIR1THEE 87,349 60,597
Time deposits with original maturities BEIHBEA=EANUNTH
less than three months TEHATF R 117,733 56,276
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEE 205,082 116,873
Pledged bank deposits/time deposits with B HIRITER B2 E H
original maturities over three months 830 = & A &) 7 Bt 3K 10,755 11,471
215,837 128,344
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The majority of the Group’s deposit, cash and cash equivalents is
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The deposits, cash and cash equivalents disclosed above and in the
consolidated statement of cash flows include HK$20,347,000 (2019:
HK$16,692,000) which are held in the PRC. These deposits are subject
to regulatory restrictions and are therefore not available for general
use by the other entities within the Group.

Bank deposits of HK$10,000,000 (2019: HK$10,160,000) is pledged as
security for the Group’s bank loan of HK$35,000,000 (2019:
HK$35,000,000).

21. PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

The credit period of the Group's accounts payable generally ranges
from 30 to 60 days (2019: 30 to 60 days). The ageing analysis of
accounts payable by invoice date is as follows:

21.

AEBZzER  ReMRESFEREN
AR BN -

EXBENGTR  ReRBSEEMG
NG AR RER B 20,347,00078(2019
& B 816,69200070) M EF HFEE ©
ZEGCHRZEERS - ASEBEREM
BRI SEREAS—RAR -

R 1717 208 10,000,000 7T (2019 4F & 78
#10,160,0007T ) BIEAE BRITE FH
#35,0000007C 2 & 720194 : & #&
35,000,000 7C.) ©

BARRKETER

AEFREMNEFRZEEH RN F30E
60 B (20194F : 30E 60 H ) - 1R Z=H Hf
D7 ER R ZBREE DTN ¢

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Accounts payable FE{FBRTR

0 to 30 days 0£30H 152,828 286,450
31 to 60 days 312 60H 14,235 12,245
61 to 90 days 61290 H 8,116 7,663
Over 90 days 90 HEA £ 23,595 32,230
198,774 338,588

Retention payables, other payables ENMRES  HaESERRR
and accruals EstER 146,856 168,031
345,630 506,619

Retention payables in respect of the contracting business are settled
in accordance with the terms of the respective contracts. At 31
December 2020, retention payables held by the Group amounting
to approximately HK$6,302,000 (2019: HK$5,093,000) are expected to
be settled in more than 12 months from the end of the reporting
year.
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22. BANKLOANS 2. |ITER
2020 2019
HK$'000 HKS'000
BET T BEET I
Bank loans contains a clause of repayment #8717 & ZR i A1k ESRIE B 65K
on demand:
— Portion due for repayment within one year — 14 A 31| HA(E 18 2615 64,000 80,000
— Portion due for repayment in the — RE2F R HEZEE D
second year - 51,000
64,000 131,000
Notes: BiEE -
@) The Group had bank loans of HK$64,000,000 (2019: HK$131,000,000) @) AEBEGRITE S 64,000,0007T(20194F -
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. P& 131,000,000 7T ) AP #EEHE
(b) The bank loans of the Group carried weighted average interest rates of 2.7% (b) AEEZBITERZ NEFHIENEE27%
(2019: 5.4%) per annum. (20194 : 54%) °
© The Group's term loan of HK$29,000,000 (2019: HK$96,000,000) is subject to a (© AREE A B E R AE B 290000007t (2019
floating charge over the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries and £ A 96,0000007T) + ETIHEARRRE
personally guaranteed by an indirect controlling shareholder. EIf A Rz & E & e R ARR A A
EL ERIEZES AL -
(d) Bank deposits of HK$10,000,000 (2019: HK$10,160,000) is pledged as security for (d) $R1T7F 51 B A5 ¥ 10,000,000 7T (2019 6F « B ¥
the Group's bank loan of HK$35,000,000 (2019: HK$35,000,000). 10,160,0007T) + £ T 3 75 £ [E % ¥ 35,000,000
7T (2019 6 « #¥5 35,000,000 70) 2 SRITERE
YRR @ o
(@ The carrying amounts of loans approximate their fair values. (e) BEXMEEREREANERS -
23. LEASES LIABILITIES 3. HEESE
Leasehold Furniture
land and and
buildings equipment Total
HELH RE
REF REE wast
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
BETIT BT T BETIT
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1 H 12,439 992 13,431
Additions NE 8,007 366 8,373
Termination =k (34) ©) (40)
Interest expenses F BRI 555 55 610
Lease payments MERK (11,851) (446) (12,297)
Exchange differences PE 5 =% 28 - 28
At 31 December 2019 and M2019F 12 H31 B K
1 January 2020 202041 A1 H 9,144 961 10,105
Additions NE 12,339 - 12,339
Interest expenses F BRI 447 36 483
Lease payments MERK (10,424) (442) (10,866)
Exchange differences ME =5 (33) - (33)
At 31 December 2020 7202012 831H 11,473 555 12,028
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AREEERNREENT

Future lease payments are due as follows:

164

Minimum

lease Present

payments Interest value

REEEN FE BE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT BT T

Not later than one year 1TFN 8,002 (350) 7,652
Later than one year and 1FBE2FR

not later than two years 3,536 (116) 3,420
Later than two years and 2EBESFR

not later than five years 973 (17) 956

At 31 December 2020 7202012 831H 12,511 (483) 12,028

Minimum

lease Present

payments Interest value

HIEBER K M2 A

HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T BT T

Not later than one year 1R 7,921 (280) 7,641
Later than one year and 1 FRE2FR

not later than two years 2,300 (44) 2,256
Later than two years and 2FBESFR

not later than five years 217 9) 208

At 31 December 2019 7201912 31 B 10,438 (333) 10,105
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24. LONG SERVICE PAYMENT LIABILITIES

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least
five years of service with the Group. The amount payable is
dependent on the employee’s final salary and years of service, and is
reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s defined
contribution retirement scheme that is attributable to contributions
made by the Group. The Group does not set aside any assets to fund
any remaining obligations.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position is present value of unfunded obligation and its movements
are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24,

B 7% ¥R 3% I 7

REBRBERE

REZE(ERRBEHN) AEEREELH
RAKBRBFEELFIALTMAES
TEATEFLZENEEMNE —FBH
- XN EBDREREESHORK
FekREEHRMEE LMK EERE
AR EFRE HFORAE S T AR
REB 2B - REES \EBE
MEENREMRBOEEREES -

REZAMBRRR AR ZBEDRKR
BNBREZREREZEFHNT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BET T BT T
At 1 January MW1B1H8 1,576 1,963
Net charge to profit or loss R8P R F R
Current service cost BIVEA AR 755 A AR 123 114
Interest cost SN N 25 31
148 145
Net credit to other comprehensive income — R E M2 E Uz 5+ A ERE
Remeasurements: EHIEE
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from: BUTSBEEZRE
BB (M)
Liability experience KRR 990 (277)
Financial assumptions ﬁﬁﬁ“{? B4 196 5
Demographic assumptions SRR - Q)
1,186 (274)
Other EAh
Benefits paid BEF (1,394) (258)
At 31 December M12A31H 1,516 1,576
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B ENRAZEEZREBRROT ¢

The principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting purposes
are as follows:

2020 2019

% %

Discount rate BEIE & 0.25 17

Long-term salary increase rate REFHSERER 2.5 4.0
Long term average expected return on Bl RTEeFTEEEZ RS

mandatory provident fund scheme assets 78 A O] ¥y 3.0 35

RERMNETHERTIEBRREDNH
REEHFIT -

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the
significant principal assumptions are as follows:

Impact on defined benefit obligation
REBNEEZ2HE

Changein Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

RREE R % 38 N G2

Discount rate BEIR =& 0.25% Decrease by 0.6%  Increase by 0.6%
D 0.6% $EHN0.6%

Long-term salary increase rate RHF @B RE 025% Increase by 3.9% Decrease by 3.8%
#E03.9% > 3.8%

Long-term average expected BHEMEATESFTEIEE 0.25% Decrease by 44%  Increase by 4.6%
return on mandatory provident 2 fH 1578 HA B B 4.4% H#A14.6%

fund scheme assets

A EBREDNRERRE —ERRA
nE MEMABRRIZEZE - TR

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In

166

practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of
the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions,
the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation
calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is
2.4 years as at 31 December 2020 (2019: 2.4 years).
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Company issued 84 million, 7% convertible bonds with a
principal amount of HK$42 million on 18 November 2019. The
convertible bonds are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
bonds will mature by two years from the issue date with repayment
of principal amount or can be converted into ordinary shares of the
Company at the holder’s option at the fixed rate of one share per
HK$0.5 of the outstanding principal.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity conversion
component were valued by independent professional valuer,
Pretium Advisory Services Limited, at the issuance of the convertible
bonds and not subject to annual revaluation. The fair value of the
liability component was calculated using a market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bonds. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity conversion component, is
included in shareholders’ equity net of deferred income taxes.

The convertible bonds recognized in the statement of financial
position is calculated as follows:
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25.

B %5 R 2R BT o

KR ES

AR 20194 11 A 18 H 17 84,000,000
BR7um B ESH A BEABE
42,000,0007T ° AI R EH L BB EHE ©
BEHFERETHEF 2FARNEIE - FH AT
BEEEASHEIIEREERST B
AR

—_

05CH — M 2 EE KK H

/‘\jj{: on

BEPS KERERE Y 2 ARETIHR
837 = F (S EAM (Pretium Advisory Services
Limited) R 21T Al I IR & 25 B (B R fR 7
BEEMH-8ER ”Z’&fﬂﬁ?]@iﬁﬁg{
BIEMRESF 2 TISAXRGH - /A
(FERREREY 2 BE) T AREER
HBRIELEFTISH

R R R 2 AT R E ST E
T

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Equity component at 31 December R12B831BZEEE S 5,180 5,180

Liability component at 1 January R1ATBZEESS 35,882 =
Liability component on initial recognition at 7220194 11 A 18 B {1 &2

18 November 2019 ZBaEds - 35,569

Interest expenses =N 5,970 667

Interest paid EfFLE (2,940) (354)

Liability component at 31 December MR12B31BZEERS 38,912 35,882

Interest expenses on the convertible bonds are calculated using the

AT E 2R 2 FB

B S2 75 i R BB A

effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate of
17.1% to the liability component. None of the convertible bonds

were redeemed or converted during the Reporting Year.

EABERD 2 ERME171%5E -
BEFERN BEABRRESEBER K
o
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26. DEFERRED TAXATION 26, EIEFIIE

168

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using tax rates substantively enacted as at the
date of statement of financial position. The movement on the net
deferred tax (assets)/liabilities account is as follows:

ERBRERARMBRRNE 2 BREE
M 2 B R AR B AR B = ARG
H-BEHERE)AERBFEZ
g

2020 2019
HK$'000 HKS'000
BT T BT IT
Beginning of the year F4 (5,894) (6,339)
Deferred taxation recognised in RIBRER ZBEERIA
profit or loss (note 13) (FFsE13) 5,112 445
End of the year FR (782) (5,894)

The movement on the deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during
the Reporting Year is as follows:

RIETHIEE B kB A AR ahARE
2 SHAE BRAT) R ARG FE 2 E B0
T

At 1 January 2019
Charged/(credited) to
profit or loss

R2019F 1 H1H
RiEzg, (GtA)

At 31 December 2019
Charged/(credited) to
profit or loss

M2019F12A31H
REZHBR (5T A)

At 31 December 2020

7A2020F12H31H

Deferred tax Deferred tax
liabilities assets
EEBEEE BEERIBEEE
Accelerated Accounting
tax tax
depreciation | depreciation Tax loss Total
MEBBERE SHREBERE HIEER e
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETE | BETRE  B%TR  BETx
189 (484) (6,044) (6,528)
211 (456) 690 234
400 (940) (5,354) (6,294)
(15) (227) 5,354 5,127
385 (1,167) - (1,167)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that recognised of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group has recognised tax losses of
HK$162,980,000 (2019: HK$93,113,000) to carry forward against
future taxable income. The tax loss do not have expiry dates.
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EERRBEBE BB ERENEER
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally EHEEEAHNITEN TS S BREEEE
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax HEHRIBEaEIRE  MEEHIES &
liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal B — BB - RIA] R E R TE & B
authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate EIERTE G EEAE - Frt ABE IR
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of financial $H1& - Ty RBELLRE M BARRAEK AT
position. IR o
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$/000
BT T BETIT
Deferred tax assets EETH IR A = (1,167) (6,294)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIR A E 385 400
(782) (5,894)
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. KA
Number of
shares Amount
BB E &
'000 HKS'000
T A% BETIT
Ordinary shares ERER
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020and 2019412 8318 -
31 December 2020 20201 A1AR
2020512 H31 H 424,850 42,486

Convertible preference shares (Note) ] B A48 5T AR (BT EE)
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020and 72019412 A31H °

31 December 2020 202001 A1 B X
2020512 A31H 80,000 8,000
Ordinary shares and convertible preference B 277 MR 2 LB K
shares issued and fully paid Al EEIRE S Y
At 31 December 2020 72020F12H31H 504,850 50,486
At 31 December 2019 R2019%F 12 A31H 504,850 50,486
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Note:

80,000,000 CPSs of HK$0.75 each were issued as part of the consideration paid for the
acquisition of ISP business in late 2012. The rights, privileges and restrictions of the CPS
are set out below:

(i) Dividend
Holder of each CPS shall have the same entitlement to dividend and other
income distribution as the holder of each ordinary share of the Company and
shall rank pari passu with ordinary shares of the Company as to dividend
payments.

(ii) Return on capital
On winding up of the Company, the holder of the CPSs shall be entitled to the
return of capital on the basis of the issue price of the CPSs and in priority to
ordinary shares of the Company.

(iif) Conversion rights
The CPSs is convertible at the option of the holder at any time after the issue
date. Conversion of the CPSs shall be subject to, among others, the minimum
public float requirements stipulated under the Listing Rules or as required by the
Stock Exchange being satisfied.

(iv) Conversion price
The conversion price is HK$0.75, subject to adjustment in accordance with the
terms of the CPSs. The adjustment event includes consolidation, sub-division,
right issue, issue of the Company’s shares for cash and grant of options or
warrants to subscribe for new shares of the Company at a discount of more than
20% of the market price.

(v) Redemption

The Company shall have the sole right to redeem the CPSs at any time after the
issue at the issue price of the CPSs, i.e. HK$0.75 per share.
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28. RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group are set out on

page 96.

The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve

within owners’ equity:

Reserve

(E4i]
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28. B

AEBREENEDFHEENE R
TXHAER ABREANS FEENIEE R

B :

Description and purpose

R B #

Share premium

P74 B

Merger reserve

B O ER

Exchange reserve

BEE 5% o

Equity component of
convertible bonds

AR ESR 2 B

Retained earnings/accumulated loss

RE BN, REHEE

Prior to 3 March 2018, the application of the share premium account was governed
by s5.48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 32. In accordance with the
transitional provisions set out in s.37 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 622 (the Ordinance) any amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account at the beginning of 3 March 2018 became part of the Company’s
share capital. The use of this share premium balance is governed by s.38 of Schedule
11 to the Ordinance.

20183 A3 HAT RIMAEBRZEAXBERRGD (F32F) F 488K
HE - RIBEBRANEDI (56228 ) (FZIGHI) MR 115537 6Pl 2 3BIR 1R

7201843 A3 BRBERMN BER EMERFEDKABRAFRAE—HS °

AU ERMABERIZIGDINR 11 FE38IFRE °

Amount of proceeds on merger accounting relating to the difference between the

cost of investment and the nominal value of the share capital acquired.

Eﬁi%xélﬂzﬂiﬁauﬁzﬁﬁﬂx$’&$@2ﬁ%%ﬁﬁFﬂE’J’V FEETRIBEE IS
THEHE o

Gains/losses arising on retranslating the net assets of foreign operations into
presentation currency.

ENHEEINEEEEFERERERELN NS FE -

Equity component was equal to the difference between the net proceeds received
and the fair value of the liability component on issue of convertible bonds (i.e. option
to convert the debt into share capital).
ERBOEFNBETABRRES B RABEFIEFREG BRI A FELZHEL
ZH (AR EBER AR AR HIE) -

Cumulative net gains and losses recognized in profit or loss.

Rt MR F RN RS ER
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29. NOTESTO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

29, BRERBRMEE

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (@ MRBARAEKEXELEEZ
generated from operations: HEHRK .
2020 2019
HK$'000 HKS'000
BT T BT IT
Profit before taxation R 5 BT 4 A1) 27,555 44,406
Depreciation e 16,118 19,806
Impairment of receivables FEU RN 2 BB 7,228 816
Impairment of contract assets BHEEZRE 773 -
Interest income MBI A (751) (672)
Interest expenses FEMAZ 10,514 7,338
Fair value loss/(gain) on KEMEAAEEBE (W)
investment properties 400 (200)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE WERREZEER
plant and equipment 1,564 7
Operating profit before working EEESBEH ZLE R
capital changes 63,401 71,501
Decrease/(increase) in contractassets S AIVEERM D, (1) 221,753 (19,720)
Decrease in receivables JFE U BR FURL 59,007 42,684
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and e RIBAFRE G, SR
prepayments (2,256) 1,285
Decrease in payables and accrualsand B BRFR - EstE A RKH
long service payment liabilities rig 2B ERD (164,399) (63,153)
Cash generated from operations REEBREL RS 177,506 32,597
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(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () FMEXBELEZ2EBBYHERERX
activities (in HK$'000) (BT )
Bank Interest Lease Convertible
loans payable liabilities bonds
RITER FEAFIE HERE - THRREF
(note 22) (note 23) (note 25)
(Pt7E22) (Pt 5 23) (Bft & 25)
At 1 January 2019 20191818 166,000 52 13431 -
Drawdown of bank loans BRRTER 35,000 - - -
Repayment of bank loans EBRFITER (70,000) = - -
Bank loans interest paid BRRITERFE - (6,029) = =
Placing of convertible bonds Bl E Rk ES - - - 40,749
Interest paid on convertible bonds gt IR (&5 2 15 1 & = = = (354)
Lease payments MERK - - (12,297 =
Total changes from financing REREREZE
cash flow ek (35,000) (6,029) (12,297) 40395
Convertible bonds adjustment AR E AT = = - (5,180)
Lease adjustments MERE - = 8,333 =
Foreign exchange adjustments  JMNEFHE = - 28 -
Interest expenses FEFX - 6,061 610 667
Total other changes Hitnf % 58 = 6,061 8,971 (4,513)
At31 December 2019 R2019F12 318 131,000 84 10,105 35,882
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1H 131,000 84 10,105 35,882
Drawdown of bank loans BRRTER 105,000 - - -
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER (172,000) - - -
New lease g - - 12,339 -
Bank loans interest paid BAFITEHRRE - (4,113) - -
Interest paid on convertible bonds &t AT EHE N F & - - - (2,940)
Lease payments MERR - - (10,866) -
Total changes from financing MERGREZE
cash flow k] (67,000) (4,113) 1,473 (2,940)
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ HNE A% - - (33) -
Interest expenses FBHX - 4,061 483 5,970
Total other changes Hitnf % 858 - 4,061 450 5,970
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12A31H 64,000 32 12,028 38,912
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30. LITIGATION 30. EFEA

174

On 23 January 2020, the Company received a writ of summons
issued in the Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong
by QBE against the Company for a claim of total amount of
approximately HK$34.2 million which including the amounts that
the Company is not responsible to pay under the third parties Loss
Retention and Indemnification Agreement signed together with
Hsin Chong. The Company, recognized a provision of approximately
HKS$9.7 million as at 31 December 2019, reflects the directors’ best
estimate of the most likely outcome at that moment.

On 25 January 2021, QBE entered into the settlement agreement
with the Company after the conduction of the mediation in relation
to the QBE's claim. Under the settlement agreement, it is agreed,
among other things, the Company shall pay a sum of HK$19.5
million to the QBE (inclusive of all interests, costs, disbursements,
cost of mediation of the QBE) in full and final settlement of the QBE's
claims. Accordingly, the Company further recognised a provision of
approximately HK$10.2 million for the Reporting Year (2019: HK$9.7
million), included in other payables and accruals of the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020.
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31.

On the other hand, on 14 January 2021, Falcon Insurance Company
(Hong Kong) Limited, as the 1st defendant, and ISP Construction
(Engineering) Limited (“ISPCE"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as the 2nd defendant (collectively, the
"Defendants”), received a writ of summons issued by Fortune against
the Defendants for the net sum of HK$54.4 million regarding the
Defendants’ breaches of the surety bond executed by the
Defendants to guarantee due performance and observance by ISPCE
for construction of main contract works for Fortune Pharmacal New
Factory Development at Yuen Long given the ISPCE breaches of the
contract and/or its negligence in carrying out the works. ISPCE is
seeking legal advice in respect of the proceeding and would defend
its position as well as filed the summons with the High Court on 1
March 2021 for a stay of proceedings in favour of arbitration. The
hearing for the application to stay of proceedings to be held in mid
of June 2021. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is
premature to predict the outcome of the claim against the
Company. There is no provision recognized or contingent liabilities
disclosure as at 31 December 2020 as the directors of the company
consider the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefit is remote.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no other litigation

or claims of material importance is known to the directors to be
pending against the Company.

(a)
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S—HE R2021F1 8148 - 2R
B (BB)ERARMEAE—HEARS
MEER(IR)ERAB(FREE
Bl RARMBEEZENBAR)IEA
FowEANHE [ ZEWEAD KEIE
BEHEZZEREAZEASK  BRE
WEAERTHZEREARZSHRE
T HREBEANEERTZERORE
FTHERATLH=REENBEER I EE
BETIRZAN(FREERERZEL
N/ SREHAEETTIRRRERRER)  RE
& HB ¥ 54,400,000 TTH)FRE - FAZ &
MEEREZEZEFSREEZE R K
0 WER2021 F3 A1 BRAEEERE
REZUABMEMEXERFIAERE -
HAEEEREREF R ABEE S 2021
FeAPAET - AAREERAE BE
FERBEARRANRELEREFHTE - A
RARREERABRLCENZNER
i B AT B AR AR 0 AR 2020 F 12 A 31
BB B IR A A E -

M EXXCETIEEEE SN - 1A2020F12H318 -
BEEMM - WEEAMHSAQAFMNE
AEFRFARFTER ©

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEALXRS

Key management personnel compensation @) FEEEABSFMH
2020 2019
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BET T BEET T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %7 & ~ 3285 R EWHzs 18,473 19,924
Pension — defined contribution scheme Bk $ — REMKETZ] 634 690
19,107 20,614
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(b) Significant related party transactions b) EXBEALRS
Summary of the significant related party transactions carried RMEFEREBEIT 2 ENEE
out by the Group during the Reporting Year are follows: AT SHEWNT :
2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt BT T BT T
Service charges paid to ERINCIEEN S
— Company with common — 5 — L REER
controlling shareholder i /NG (i) - (726)
— Company controlled by —HB—BEEE
a director /NI (ii) (184) (224)
Services income from KRB TR R ZARBEWA
— Company with common — B — £ RER
controlling shareholder 8 PA/NE]| (iif) 2,465 2,692
Maintenance and technical KB TIRRZ#ER
support service income from By % 42 IR AU
— Company with common — B — A X RERR
controlling shareholder /N (iv) 488 1,672
Contracting work’s income from RETHRARZEL
TREA
— Companies with common — B %R
controlling shareholder [ Wrd/NG] v) 27,464 73,886
Notes: MeE

(ii)

(iii)

Service charges paid in respect of commission and documentation fee
for placing of convertible bonds were mutually agreed by both parties.

Service charges paid in respect of typesetting, translation and printing

services were mutually agreed by both parties.

Services income earned on services including property management,
agency services, consultancy fee, security, laundry, cleaning, etc.
rendered was mutually agreed by both parties.

Maintenance and technical support service income represents fees
earned on repair and maintenance works. The prices and terms were
mutually agreed by both parties.

Contracting work's earned from construction and fitting-out projects,

were mutually agreed by both parties.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

(i)

(iii)

MEERRREFFRZME KX
EXNZRESE i8I iHEmR
HR °

FRHEAR ~ B RE R DR AR5 S A B9 AR TS
M EEHREHIERRE

MIEERG(BEDEERE  KER
% BERE - KRR AXRERER
%) BERZ RISURA - THIRETT 15
4B ©

HeE R BRI AIE A R
RETERRZER - BR XGRS
ETTHE ©

MBEREEHARRZ AN ITIESE
THIREE 5 19 3E i AR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 155 ¥R R MY At

32, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND CHANGE IN
EQUITY OF THE COMPANY

2. ARAFMBMRRRRERLE R

RRFMBARR R

Statement of Financial Position of the Company

As at 31 December 2020

72020612 A31H

2020 2019
HK$’000 HKS'000
BET T BT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 1,498 9
Deferred tax assets EETRIEE 1 -
Subsidiaries oy NE] 89,204 89,204
Total non-current assets FRBEELEE 90,703 89,213
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H A e U GRIB 1 143
Deposits and prepayments & RIBRKRIE 336 333
Amount due from subsidiaries NG B 191,535 6,058
Deposit, cash and cash equivalents e e RIBEEHE 16,198 46,826
Total current assets REEEHTE 208,070 53,360
Current liabilities REBEE
Payables and accruals FERBR R R IEET B R 1,883 1,362
Bank loans RITER - 12,000
Lease liabilities HEEE 1,031 =
Total current liabilities BB EERHE 2,914 13,362
Netcurrentassets =~~~ hABEEFE | 205156 | 39998
Total assets less current liabilites =~~~ HERW|AABEEGE | 295859 | 129211
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIARE - 1
Convertible bonds A PR E A 38,912 35,882
Lease liabilities HEaE 355 —
Totalnon-currentliabilites ¥ hrBAMEE =~ | 39267 | 35,883
Netassets ~  &EFE | 256,592 | 93,328
Equity attributable to equity holders AATREFE AEGRER
of the Company
Share capital i@ 50,486 50,486
Reserves (e 206,106 42,842
Totalequity =  f=®&E | 256,592 | 93328

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved
by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2021 and was signed on its
behalf.

Kingston Chu Chun Ho &%
Chairman &

Mandy Hui Suk Man
Director 2%

FEREK

ARABMBERARKLEETSMN2021F3
RA23B#E  WHRATATREEE -
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Change in equity of the Company (in HK$'000) ERRERESHR(CEE T
Equity
component
of
Share  Contributed  convertible ~ Accumulated
Share capital premium surplus bonds losses  Total equity
TRRES
BE  RGEE  SABH  2EESS  REER RESE
At 1 January 2019 R019%1A1A 50486 185420 82601 = (229,003) 89,504
Issue of convertible bonds B ARES - - - 5,180 - 5,180
Loss attributable to equity holders AR IERE AIEEE
of the Company - - - - (1356) (1356)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 124318 50,486 185,420 82,601 5180 (230,359) 93,328
Profitattributable to equity holders AN RIRR#EIS B AE(G R F
of the Company - - - - 163,264 163,264
At 31 December 2020 #2020% 125318 50,486 185,420 82,601 5,180 (67,095) 256,592
33. HOLDING COMPANY 3. ERAH
The directors regarded Champ Key Holding Limited, a company E =18 Champ Key Holdings Limited ( 7
incorporated in British Virgin Islands, as its ultimate holding BREZESFMKAAR) BEEKE
company. NG
34, PRINCIPAL WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 4, FEZEWBLT
Place of
incorporation Issued and paid up/
Name and operation Principal activities registered capital
BRI AN BRTRHZE
£ Rk B FEXEK =R A

Interest held directly:
HEEEER

Synergis Holdings (BVI) Limited'

Driven Power Management Limited'

British Virgin Islands

REELERS

British Virgin Islands

RBREZES

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REEK

100,000 ordinary shares
of HKS$0.1 each
100,000 i& & AR EI(E
B 0.1 T2 B

100 ordinary shares of
USS$1 each

100 X B AXEI{E 1 =TT
ZEER

178
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Issued and paid up/

Name and operation Principal activities registered capital
AR R ERITRAZE
21 AR i 2 FEEK o AR A<
Interest held indirectly:
BiEEEER
PEM Business
Y MR E IR E T
Synergis Management Hong Kong Provision of property 206,837 ordinary
Services Limited management services shares of HK$1 each
and investment holding
AEEEREER AR B MY R EEIRYS 206,837 R B AR EE
MR B B T BB
Synergis Facility Hong Kong Provision of facility 2 ordinary shares of
Management Limited management services HKS$1 each
FARFBHEEEBR AR e REREE IR 2R EREEEE 1T
2 E B
Service Pro Limited Hong Kong Provision of maintenance and 2 ordinary shares of
technical support services HKS$1 each
AR ER AR o REEE RN ERE  2BRE8REEEE 1T
2 &R
SecurExpert Solutions Limited Hong Kong Provision of security and 2 ordinary shares of
consultancy services HKS1 each
MBERRLTRBER QA BB RRHHR 22 e A R AR 5 2REREEES 1T
Z BB
Laundrimate Service Limited Hong Kong Provision of laundry services 2 ordinary shares of
HKS1 each
HERERB AR LA BB AR RS 2IRBREEES 1T
Z BB
Master Clean Service Limited Hong Kong Provision of cleaning services 200,000 ordinary shares of
HKS1 each
RERBEERAE B RAUBZ RS 200,000 AX B AR EI{E
BT B
SynWave Services Limited Hong Kong Provision of procurement and 1 ordinary share of HKS 1
trading business
FRFRIE AR A A i RERBRE S EK REERE 1T
Z BB
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Name

=1

Place of
incorporation
and operation
AR R
A8 1t B

Principal activities

FTEXEK

Issued and paid up/
registered capital
BRTRAZE
o AR A<

Synergis Property Management
(Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd.?

ARMEERE R AR AT

Synergis Property Services
(Beijing) Co. Ltd. ?

FEMERS (JER)
BRAA
ISP Business

= R SR IRIE B X1

ISP Interiors Limited

SMERNEHER AT

ISP Construction
(Engineering) Limited

AREEmR(TR)BRAA

ISP Curtain Wall and
Aluminum Products Limited

AREiE M EH R AR AT

PRC (wholly owned
foreign enterprise)

FESNEFERE)

PRC (wholly owned
foreign enterprise)

FEONEEE
%)

Hong Kong

)

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

)

Provision of property
management, repair and
maintenance of
sophisticated equipment
and indoor cleaning
services, and property
management
consultancy services

RHEMEER - BIERE

FTERBRENBRRY

LA R W) 5 12 R ) AR A5

Provision of property and
facility management
services, property agent
and property
consultancy services

REWE LR
EIBRTS
F= 2 R 42 Jo
P b 2 B3 9 AR 75

Provision of fitting-out,
renovation and addition
and alteration works

RHEARE - BEE
INEE R T 72

Provision of demolition
work, addition and
alteration works and
special construction projects
RMEFETEEMER
MR TR MR E IR B

Provision of curtain walling,
cladding & related products
REERE Bk RAEESD

RMB31,000,000

AR ¥ 31,000,000 7T

RMB32,000,000

AR ¥4 32,000,000 7T

5,000,000 ordinary
share of HKS1 each

5,000,000 I & A EE
B Tz TR

22,000,000 ordinary
share of HKS1 each

22,000,000 A% &A% T (&
B Tz ERK

100,000 ordinary
shares of HKS1

100,000 & IR EE
B T TRk

! This is an investment holding company with no specific place of operation.
ZARR/—EREERAR - WEABLEE -

2 These are not registered company names but merely for identification purposes only.

ZEW IR R BE - EEEF -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEHHRE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT BT oL
Operating Results LexE
Revenue e 1,127,656 1,569,280 1,532,986 2,083,300 2433471
Profit/(l0ss) before taxation BRANER (FE) 27,555 44,406 (161,937) (53,751) (34,946)
Taxation HIE (13,342) (6,824) 1673 (1,770) (4,766)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERERN/(BE) 14,213 37,582 (160,264) (55,521) (39,712)
Non-controlling interests JER RS - - 246 1144 229
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity %],/ (&518) BB R
holders of the Company ARRIREREA 14,213 37,582 (160,018) (54,377) (39.483)
Assets and Liabilities BENERE
Total assets EEAE 628,198 836,365 838,874 1,120,897 1,197,562
Total liabilities BEGE 482,716 705,705 749,352 870,070 972,012
Non-controlling interests FEE R - - - (1,158) (14)
Fquity attributable to equity KARIBRERAA
holders of the Company el #ER 145,482 130,660 89,522 251,985 225,564

—ETFFHR/  ARRERAERLTE



MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS — INTERIORS AND SPECIAL PROJECTS
BRETHFEETREREE —EREHRISHKIEH

Anticipated
Commencement Completion
Description Date Date Client
15 BT B FRHRIBEH FF
Reprovision of an Indoor All-Weather Swimming Pool  August 2017 August 2021 The Incorporated Management
at Po Leung Kok Camoes Tan Siu Lin Primary School 2017 % 8 A 2021 8 A Committee of Po Leung Kok
at 6 Hoi Ting Road, Tau Ma Tei, Kowloon Camoes Tan Siu Lin
EENFERMHEEE6FARE BT/ & Primary School
oA N () Wik REBRFC/NELERES
Air Conditioning system Replacement and Addition September 2020 May 2022 English Schools Foundation
and Alteration Works at English Schools Foundation 202089 A 20225 B BEERWE
Quarry Bay School
RESBRIGEGHE ISR NEFE M RINER
BT A2
Renovation Works at 4/F to 6/F at Victoria Centre, December 2020 April 2021 Tin Hau Ventures Limited
15 Watson Road, Tin Hau, Hong Kong 202012 H 20214 4 A
FERBERBISHAESZHNHO4EBERZ
B A2
Landscape Works at Hysan Avenue, December 2020 July 2021 Hysan Development
Lee Garden One, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong 2020 12 A 202147 R Projects Ltd.
B8 RS E — BN FEEINE R TR FEBEXTEREBR AR
Addition and Alteration Works at Basement to 4/F, December 2020 August 2021 Capital Centre Realty Limited
5-19 Jardine's Bazaar, Hong Kong 2020 12 A 2021 8 A

BEBEES-195IEE 4B ETINER
METIE
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MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

TEREV=

Description Use Status Lease Term

3 Az R HEFH

Car Park Nos. P250, P251, P252, P253, P254, Carpark Rental Medium
P255, P256 and P257, Sun Hing Garden, JHEL agicl HHf

No. 2 On Po Lane, Tai Po, New Territories.
24/64,299th shares of and in
Tai Po Town Lot No. 26

R A2 B 2 ST ELEE P250 ~ P251 + P252

P253  P254 ~ P255 * P256 K P257 SREEfi KiTh
M ER 26 8% 55 64,299 10 2 2410

—ETFFHR/  ARRERAERLTE



CORPORATE INFORMATION

DNAEEH

Board of Directors

Exg

Audit Committee

EREES

Nomination Committee

REZEE

Remuneration Committee

FMZEEE

Executive Committee
BITEES

Company Secretary
ARWE

Financial Calendar

Announcement of interim results
Announcement of annual results
Annual General Meeting for 2021

Executive Directors

WiTES

Kingston Chu Chun Ho (Chairman)

REE(EE)

Mandy Hui Suk Man (Deputy Chairman and
Managing Director for PFM Business)

AR (B ERYE R K
BEEKEFLRALE)

Independent Non-executive Directors
B IEHITESR

Lau Man Tak

2=

Eric Lee Hon Man

FTHX

To Chun Wai

(R

Lau Man Tak (Chairman)
BINE(EE)
Eric Lee Hon Man

ZHX
To Chun Wai
IR (R

Eric Lee Hon Man (Chairman)
THX(EE)

Kingston Chu Chun Ho
R

Lau Man Tak

g

To Chun Wai

IR (R

To Chun Wai (Chairman)
HiRE(EE)
Kingston Chu Chun Ho
R

Lau Man Tak

g

Eric Lee Hon Man

FHX

Kingston Chu Chun Ho
REE

Mandy Hui Suk Man
FERER

Gary Tse Chi Chiu

Eric Chan Kwong Leung

BRESR

25 August 2020
23 March 2021
21 May 2021

184 SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

Auditor
4 (i

Principal Bankers

FEARRT

Registered Office
e

Principal Place of Business
in Hong Kong
ERTEEENY

Principal Share Registrar
and Transfer Agent

FERHBFRLE

Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

EREROBFETIE

Stock Code
g4

Board Lot
BFEEEN

Website
i

E-mail Address

g 3=k

NP EELE
N

2021 FREAFEAEG

BDO Limited
BAL EEREIMEBAERAR

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited

BB DBESRITAERRAA

Chong Hing Bank Limited

BIBRITAERA R

0O-Bank Co,, Ltd

TERERTROARAA

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM 11
Bermuda

8/F. KT336
334-336 Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong
Kowloon, Hong Kong

EBNE
BB E18334-336 91
KT336 /\1%

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12 Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

BARRELELBRAA

BBEFERKER 1835

AMBLI7181712-1716 554

02340

4,000 shares
4,000 1%

www.synergis.com.hk

info@synergis.com.hk

202048 A 25 H
202138238
202158218






www.synergis.com.hk
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